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<<« Customer Commitment

Maintaining thorough focus on and commitment to
all our customers; genuinely understanding our
customers, their needs and opportunities

Financial Strength and Risk Ma

Building and maintaining financial strength through
focus on cost control, profit margins, liquidity,
capital, leverage and avoidance of unquantifiable
future risks

<<« Operational Excellence

Maintaining attention to detail and attaining
excellence in every aspect of our operations

Employer and Employee Comm

Honouring mutual commitment with our staff that
is balanced between dedication and performance
at work by our people, and respect and nurturing
by the Group through appropriate training as well
as performance-driven compensation and benefits \
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive and Group Chief Financial Officer
Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive
Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Alternate Chief Executive
Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Alternate Chief Executive
Cliff Wai-Kin Chan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Paul Michael Kennedy
David Wai-Hung Tam
Paul Franz Winkelmann

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Seng-Lee Chan

Paul Franz Winkelmann

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Seng-Lee Chan
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze

David Shou-Yeh Wong
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Chairman

David Wai-Hung Tam

Paul Franz Winkelmann

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Doris Wai-Nar Wong FCG, FCS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Betty Wai-Yee Chung

Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology
Clement Poon

General Manager and Group Financial Controller
Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)

General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources
Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)

General Manager and Group Head of Compliance
Frederick Ka-Wai Lau

General Manager and Head of Group Risk
Vincent Ho-Wing Yau

Chief Executive Officer and Director of

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Pak-Hung Lau

Chief Executive Officer and Director of

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

REGISTERED OFFICE

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.L.LF.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com
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Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 80, was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in
1983. He is also the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited, Macau
Insurance Company Limited and various other companies. He serves
as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Bank, DSFH and DSBG. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President of
Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors and a Vice President of
The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. He holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electrical Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology and has over 55 years of experience in banking and
finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Vice
Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 68, joined the Bank in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before appointed as a Director in
1989, promoted to a Managing Director in 2000 and then appointed
as Vice Chairman in April 2011. He is the Vice Chairman, Managing
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, the
Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited, Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and a director of
various major subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a Non-Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongqging Co., Ltd. (listed in
Hong Kong and Shanghai) in which the Group has a 13.20% equity
interest. Mr. Wong is an Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.)
and a Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and
The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. He holds a Higher
Diploma in Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic College
(now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and has over 40
years of experience in banking.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 51, is currently a Vice Chairman and the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank and the Group General
Manager of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, the ultimate
holding company of the Bank). He joined the Bank in 2000, and was
appointed as an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in
March 2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as the Managing Director and
Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He was appointed as the
Group General Manager of DSFH in April 2011. He is also a Director
of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.,
Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and Macau Insurance
Company Limited. Mr. Wong is currently a member of the Industry
Advisory Committee on Long Term Business established by the
Insurance Authority, and a Non-official Member of the Trade and
Industry Advisory Board of the Trade and Industry Department. Mr.
Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Harvard
University, U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from
King’s College, London, and is a qualified solicitor in England and
Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Bank, DSFH and Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited.
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Deputy Chief Executive and Group Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Wang, aged 60, joined the Bank as the Group Financial Controller
in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for
the overall financial management and control, operations and IT
functions of the Group for a number of years. He was promoted as
the Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2011
and was re-designated as the Deputy Chief Executive and Alternate
Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He is also an Executive
Director and Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”), the Group Chief Financial Officer of the Bank, the
Group Chief Financial and Operating Officer of DSFH and DSBG as
well as a Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. and Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited. Mr. Wang is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from The University of Hong
Kong and has over 35 years of experience in financial management
and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 53, joined the Bank in 1998, and was appointed
as an Executive Director in 2007 and as the Deputy Chief Executive
in August 2011. He was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in June
2017. Mr. Mayhew is currently a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited, Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and Macau
Insurance Company Limited. He was an Executive Director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the ultimate holding company of the
Bank) during the period from August 2004 to May 2017. He also serves
as Head of Treasury and Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible
for its treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree (Hons) (in Chinese and Economics) from the
University of London. He has over 30 years of experience in financial
services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 54, joined the Bank as the Head of Retail Banking
in February 2012, responsible for the development and management
of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail brokerage, wealth
management businesses, private banking and vehicle financing.
She was appointed as an Executive Director in May 2012 and
an Alternate Chief Executive in May 2014. She holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Brunel University (UK) via Henley
Management College and a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Wong has over 30 years of experience in retail and
personal banking business with other banks operating in Hong Kong,
including Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank International.

Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Ma, aged 54, joined the Bank as Head of Commercial Banking in
February 2020, responsible for overseeing and supervising commercial
banking business. She was appointed as an Executive Director and
an Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in February 2021. She has
nearly 30 years of solid banking experience in Hong Kong, the United
Kingdom and the United States, mainly in commercial and corporate
banking with a full spectrum of clients in various sectors. Ms. Ma
attained a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from The London
School of Economics and Political Science.

Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan

Mr. Chan, aged 49, joined the Bank as General Manager and Head
of Wealth Management in 2009, and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Bank in March 2019. He is responsible for the
formulation and execution of overall business strategies of the Bank’s
wealth management business, including securities brokerage, retail
wealth management, and private banking. He holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree from the University of Cambridge and a Master degree in
Business Administration from the Harvard Business School. He is a
Chartered Financial Analyst of the CFA Institute and a Certified Private
Wealth Professional of the Private Wealth Management Association.
Mr. Chan has over 20 years of extensive experience in various areas
including financial services, manufacturing and public administration.
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Mr. Sze, aged 80, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in 1996. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
and Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited. He serves as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG, a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)
of the Bank and DSBG and the Chairman of the NRC of DSFH. He
was the Chairman of the NRC of DSBG from August 2005 to August
2017. Mr. Sze is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited, Nanyang Holdings Limited and Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. He was an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Min Xin Holdings Limited (resigned in April
2018) and China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited
(resigned in October 2018). Mr. Sze is a Fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a former partner of an
international firm of accountants with which he practised for over 20
years.

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 74, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in May 2012 and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), the immediate holding company of the Bank, in August
2008 after his retirement in June 2008 as the Chief Executive Officer of
Heidelberg China Limited. He was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee and the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Bank in December 2017. He has served as a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of DSBG since May 2011 and was further appointed as the
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of DSBG in
August 2017. Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience primarily in the
print media industry and has a sound knowledge of the Asian markets,
particularly in China.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in December 2017, a member
of the Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) of the
Bank in August 2018 and the Chairman of the RMCC of the Bank in
June 2020. He was also appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited, the immediate holding company of the Bank, in
December 2017.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member of the Finance
Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee of the
Principal Financial Group, Inc. (which is listed on NASDAQ in the
U.S.). He is an INED and a member of the Nomination Committee and
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate
Investment Trust (which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)). He is an INED and a member of the
Finance Committee and Corporate Governance Committee of First
Pacific Company Limited (which is listed on the Stock Exchange). He
is also a member of the Supervisory Committee of The Tracker Fund of
Hong Kong (a Hong Kong unit trust whose units are listed on the Stock
Exchange) and a strategic advisor of CreditEase Holdings (HK) Limited.
He is the Chairman of Harvard Business School Association of Hong
Kong Limited and an executive committee member of the International
Advisory Council of the Faculty of Business and Economics of The
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of Hong Kong from
December 2008 to November 2014 and a member of the Main Board
and GEM Listing Committees of the Stock Exchange from July 2015 to
July 2016. He was an INED and a member of the Audit Committee of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the ultimate holding company of
the Bank) from June 2013 to December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as the Head
of Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in 2010 and served as
the Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset Management Company until July
2015. He joined Jardine Matheson Holdings Group in 1984 and held
various positions in Jardine Matheson Holdings Group. In 2003,
he joined HSBC Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) as the Chief
Executive Officer, Asia Pacific. From 2007 to 2010, he served as
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of Morgan Stanley
Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business School,
U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies) and a BA degree (in
Political Science) from Stanford University, U.S.A.

Mr. Paul Michael Kennedy
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kennedy, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Bank in December 2018. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Octopus Holdings Limited and Octopus
Cards Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director of Vistra
Group Holdings (BVI) Ill Limited. He was a financial services partner
of KPMG Hong Kong from 1991 to 2006 and Managing Partner of
KPMG’s Shanghai office from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Kennedy was chief
operating officer and executive director of the Securities and Futures
Commission during the period from 2006 to 2010 and he subsequently
took up a role as a Managing Director of HSBC Hong Kong’s Global
Banking Division from 2010 to 2012. Mr. Kennedy was appointed as
Special Advisor to the Chief Executive of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) in January 2013 and subsequently served as
the Group Chief Financial Officer of HKEX from May 2013 to December
2017. He continued to serve as Senior Advisor of HKEX until July 2018.
Mr. Kennedy is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Accounting
and Financial Administration from the University of Bangor in the
United Kingdom and has over 35 years of experience in the financial
services industry encompassing auditing and professional advisory
services, regulation, risk management, banking and listed company
management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Risk Management and Compliance
Committee of the Bank in March 2019. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited. He started
his career with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited in 1968 and held various senior positions until February 1999.
In March 1999, Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng Bank Limited and was a
Deputy General Manager and a Head of Commercial Banking during
2003 to 2008 and the Chief Risk Officer from 2008 until his retirement
in 2012. He was also a director of Yantai Bank, a city commercial
bank in Yantai, from December 2012 to June 2017. He is currently
an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited and a Non-Executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of Nameson Holdings
Limited. Mr. Tam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers and the Chartered Institute of Bankers in the U.K. and an
associate of the Institute of Bankers. He holds a master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr.
Tam has more than 45 years of experience in commercial banking
industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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FEREE Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann
BUINTEE Independent Non-Executive Director
SR A - 655% © FA2020F5 B E R AR Mr. Winkelmann, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
TZBYUIEMITESR - EREESHENAKLER Executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member
EEREHEZEENKRE - BNAKHERERE of the Risk Management and Compliance Committee of the Bank in
RABZBIERTEERERZEEKE - @ May 2020. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director and
RS EN1984F A R K BTN E 15 a member of the Audit Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
FrlBERKE]) » WH1990FKBEEA - Limited. Mr. Winkelmann joined PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) in
WAELBKETESRICRREENE]E 1984 and was admitted to partnership in 1990 to become a member of
BAZ— o HEBEFIEEAR RER S mgE Rt the first group of partners to set up PwC’s financial services practice in
TE - BIEFEER KBRTERRARERERE Hong Kong. He specialized in the audits of financial institutions, both
MEKETEARAREI4F EE2014F6A - local and international. He was partner-in-charge of PwC’s risk and
BN REEBKERNRERRRKEZHFINE compliance matters for Greater China for 14 years up to June 2014. He
BEA BREEEBESAUKENE RFERTE was also the leader of PwC’s Greater China Risk and Quality function
A - 7420014 - BIMAZEBOKEBBEEGRAE overseeing auditing and ethical standards within PwC. In 2001, he
REEE  MEEZERBEEBKETERES joined the governance Board of Partners of PwC in Hong Kong and
BIMEEBEME - #102014F6 AN E IR KE subsequently was appointed to the Management Board of PwC China
EEKE - FEREAER2014F7 AE20154F and Hong Kong. Following his retirement from PwC Hong Kong in
12 AHIMIEER EROKBEASHRER - &R June 2014, Mr. Winkelmann was engaged as a senior advisor of PwC
MERNEREH - fIEREERABREBIZHRD in Hong Kong on risk and quality matters during the period from July
RFREEFG BN ITESTRIFERIEE - 2014 to December 2015. Mr. Winkelmann is currently an Independent
BN RREEEERDLAERENDZE G/ NMAFFRE Non-Executive Director and a Non-Industry Member of the General
B E - BT8R %4 720044 20094 HAR V& (E Committee of the Insurance Complaints Bureau. He is also the Non-
EXRGMASETYRRESEMNZESERFE IA Eligible DP Member of Disciplinary Panel Pool of the Insurance
WHR2009F EEFE ST AEE K - 72005 Authority. He was the Chairman of the Financial Reporting Standards
F o REZTARREIRNERKBEZEGRE T Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
HAGLF o RS R c A R2016F4 A 220193 A A (“HKICPA”) from 2004 to 2009 and the President of HKICPA in 2009. In
MEERERBERBITHAEY - BABEEE 2005, he was appointed to the Standing Committee on Company Law
MAEMERGENFBHENR=—2REEX Reform and served for a period of 6 years. Mr. Winkelmann was the
B4 o Chief Executive Officer of Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong
from April 2016 to March 2019. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Business) Degree from Trinity College,
Dublin.
12 DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Betty Wai-Yee Chung
Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology

Ms. Chung, aged 55, joined the Bank in January 2019 as the Deputy
Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology,
and was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Bank in April
2020. Ms. Chung has over 30 years of solid banking and IT experience.
Prior to joining the Bank, she held various IT positions in multinational
and regional financial institutions. Ms. Chung holds an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science
from Purdue University, U.S.A.

Mr. Clement Poon
General Manager and Group Financial Controller

Mr. Poon, aged 51, joined the Bank in January 2003 as the Head
of Financial Accounting Department and was appointed as General
Manager and the Group Financial Controller of the Bank in December
2014. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
attained a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy. He is a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and an
Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Poon has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management in the banking industry.

Ms. Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Chan, aged 49, joined the Bank in January 2018 as General
Manager and Group Head of Human Resources Division. Ms. Chan has
over 27 years of experience in the human resources field, of which 24
years are in the banking and financial industry. She graduated from the
University of Strathclyde, U.K., with a Bachelor of Arts degree followed
by a Postgraduate Diploma in Human Resources Management.
Ms. Chan is a Fellow of The Chartered Institute of Personnel and
Development of the U.K.
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SEEEAE@ SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
EREEE Mr. Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)
AAAETE R EFH AT E General Manager and Group Head of Compliance
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Mr. Wong, aged 55, joined the Bank in 2014 as General Manager
and Group Head of Compliance. Mr. Wong has solid experience in
managing regulatory compliance and providing compliance service,
with many years of experience in the financial services sector and
regulatory supervision. Mr. Wong attained a Bachelor Degree of
Commerce (Accounting) from The University of Birmingham, UK,
a Master Degree of Finance from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia and a Master of Laws Degree in International Corporate and
Financial Law from University of Wolverhampton, UK.

Mr. Frederick Ka-Wai Lau
General Manager and Head of Group Risk

Mr. Lau, aged 50, joined the Bank in 2010 as the General Manager
and Head of Market Risk, and progressed to become the Head of Risk
Management and Control Department within the Group Risk Division
of the Bank in 2012. Mr. Lau was appointed as the Head of Group Risk
in April 2018. He has over 25 years of working experience covering
mainly risk management and other roles in the banking sector, and
also in regulatory supervision capacity. Mr. Lau attained a degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a master degree in business administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Yau, aged 58, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Alternate
Chief Executive Officer and Head of Business Development of Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary
of the Bank, in September 2012. He was appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB China in December 2014 and the Chief Executive
Officer of DSB China in February 2015. Mr. Yau has over 30 years of
experience in the banking industry in China and Hong Kong, and had
assumed various senior executive positions in Standard Chartered
Bank before joining the Bank.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 56, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
(incorporated in Macau) in January 2020. Mr. Lau has over 30 years
of solid banking experience in Hong Kong and Macau. He started his
career in banking by joining HSBC in 1986 and immediately before
joining the Bank, he was the CEO of HSBC Macau Branch.
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The Board of Directors and the Management of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(the “Bank” or the “Group”) are committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices and devote considerable
effort to identify and formalize best practices. We believe that sound
and effective corporate governance practices are essential for
delivering sustainable value, enhancing a culture of business integrity
and maintaining investors’ confidence. Good corporate governance
promotes and safeguards the interests of shareholders and other
stakeholders including customers and employees, thereby enhancing
the credibility and reputation of the Bank.

The Bank abides strictly by the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, and observes the rules and guidelines issued by regulatory
authorities including the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA?”). It
has complied with the requirements set out in the Supervisory Policy
Manual module CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” (“CG-1”) and CG-5 entitled
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” (“CG-5"), Guidance
on Empowerment of Independent Non-Executive Directors and the
circulars on Bank Culture Reform issued by the HKMA in all material
aspects.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Bank has in place a corporate governance framework which
identifies all the key participants of the Group and the ways which
they relate to each other and their roles in the application of effective
governance policies and processes.

The Bank has adopted a set of Board Governance Policy and
Procedures (“BGPP”) since 2013. The BGPP of the Bank is subject
to regular review and update to ensure compliance with the latest
regulatory requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES (Continued)

The BGPP has been developed in pursuance of the requirements of the
CG-1, which has laid down the governance framework and structures
of the Bank covering the responsibilities of the board, the organization
and functioning of the board, board committees, appointment of
directors and succession, board qualification and training, delegation
of authority and oversight of senior management, evaluation of the
board and individual directors, governance in group structure, controls
on structures established on behalf of customers, risk management,
and legal obligations of directors.

The supervision of the management and direction of the business and
affairs of the Bank shall be vested in the Board, who, in addition to the
powers and authorities set out in the Bank’s constitutional documents
expressly conferred upon them, may exercise all such powers and do
all such acts and things as may be exercised or done or approved by
the Bank. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board shall take into
account the legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other
relevant stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Bank has the ultimate responsibility for the
supervision, leadership, operations and financial soundness of the
Bank. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board actively engages
in the affairs of the Bank and is cognizant of material changes in the
Bank’s business and the external environment in which the Bank
operates. The Board acts honestly and in good faith in the interest
of the Bank, and on an informed and prudent basis, having regard to
the legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other relevant
stakeholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises fourteen
members, of whom eight are Executive Directors and six are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Members of the Board are as
follows:

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong — Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) — Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong - Vice Chairman, Managing Director and
Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang — Deputy Chief Executive and
Group Chief Financial Officer

Nicholas John Mayhew — Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong — Alternate Chief Executive

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma — Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Paul Michael Kennedy
David Wai-Hung Tam
Paul Franz Winkelmann

The biographical information of the Directors is disclosed in the
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” of this Annual Report.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities, including professionalism and integrity, to discharge
its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In addition, the Board
collectively has adequate knowledge and expertise relevant to each
of the material business activities that the Bank pursues and the
associated risks in order to ensure effective governance and oversight.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

According to the Terms of Reference of the Board, the key
responsibilities of the Board include:

° setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of the
Group

° approving annual budget and business plan, and monitoring
performance and execution of plan

o establishing and overseeing risk governance

° appointment and oversight of senior management, and ensuring
competent management is in place

o setting corporate values and standards

. overseeing the remuneration policy

° ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate structure

° ensuring effective audit function and internal control

° ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect of the

structure, operation and risk management of the Bank

° matters involving conflict of interest of substantial shareholder or
any Director

° material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the ordinary
business or operation of the Bank), investments and business
reorganization

o material capital projects with long-term commitments

° delegation of authority to Board level Committees or individual
Directors (for approving specific transactions)

° delegation to Senior Management the authority and responsibility
to manage the regular businesses and affairs of the Bank and its
subsidiaries consistent with the objectives and strategies of the
Bank, and within the risk framework and limits approved by the

Board
° appointment of Directors and Senior Management
° actively engaging in succession plans for the chief executive and

other key senior executives as appropriate

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition, special
Board meetings are held when necessary. Dates of regular Board and
Board Committee meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide
sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. For
special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given. Board agenda
is approved following consultation with the Directors and Senior
Management. All Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through other electronic means of communication,
of Directors. The Board held four regular meetings and three special
meetings in 2020.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated its authority to various committees to deal
with specific matters under written terms of reference, which set out
in detail their respective authorities and responsibilities. The Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Risk
Management and Compliance Committee were established under
the authority of the Board. The composition and terms of reference of
these committees are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that
they remain appropriate and in line with the regulatory requirements,
the Group’s business and changes in governance practices. All Board
Committees adopt the same governance processes as the Board
as far as practicable and report to the Board on their decisions or

recommendations after each meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“AC”) has the authority to review all matters
related to financial statements and disclosure, audit work performed
by internal and external auditors, internal control systems, risk
management system and compliance for the whole Group. The
AC reports to the Board following each AC meeting, drawing the
Board’s attention to significant issues or matters of which the Board
should be aware, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed, and making relevant
recommendations.

The AC meets at least three times a year with the Bank’s executives
including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Group Financial
Controller, Head of Group Risk, Group Head of Internal Audit, and
representatives from the Bank’s external auditor. Special meetings of
the AC are held when necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the AC comprises three members
and all the members are INEDs. The members of the AC are Messts.
Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman), Seng-Lee Chan and Paul Franz
Winkelmann. The AC held three meetings in 2020.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The AC was established with written terms of reference and its major
roles and functions are as follows:

° To ensure the objectivity and credibility of financial reporting

° To review the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements

° To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor

° To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards

o To approve the appointment, resignation or dismissal of the
head of internal audit

o To approve audit plans

o To review the effectiveness of the internal audit function

° To review findings and reports of the internal and external
auditors

° To review and monitor the integrity of the Bank’s annual and
interim financial statements, including significant financial
reporting judgments used in producing the financial statements

° To review the Bank’s internal controls and reports its major
findings and comments to the Board

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) is responsible
for overseeing the remuneration matters of the Bank, and also to
review and endorse the nomination of candidates for appointment as
Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs), Executive Directors and
Senior Management, prior to the approval by the Board of the Bank.
The NRC reports to the Board regularly on its findings, decisions and
recommendations.

The NRC meets at least twice a year and at such other times as the
NRC deems appropriate.
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BEXEEETZZEEW BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
RERFMEZEEGS @ Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Continued)
BA$¢¥?§EI RERFWEEGH=-AHEX K As at the date of this Annual Report, the NRC comprises three
D BBUIEHNITES  WHBZIERITESH members, majority of whom are INEDs and is chaired by an INED. The
FEfE - RERFNEZESSKE RREF KA (E members of the NRC are Messrs. Seng-Lee Chan (Chairman), Robert
&)~ REMESEERTTELE - RERFTMES Tsai-To Sze and David Shou-Yeh Wong. The NRC held four meetings
BH2020F BT T IR G © in 2020.
RELFWNEZESXEEREFREAGRES The NRC was established with written terms of reference and its major
B HE2UMeERBENT - roles and functions are as follows:
. EEREREEFRAEEEABZRE . To review and endorse the nomination of directors and senior
management
. BES S EITARITH N GIE AR E RE e To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the design
e R and operation of the Bank’s remuneration system
. BENMERSHBARRITZHWNEERE . To review and make recommendation to the Board in respect of
iElE the Bank’s remuneration policy and practices
. B hEREERSEEEAS 2 EEHH . To review and endorse the specific remuneration packages of
5B directors and senior management
o TRIRTE BAMRAT AR THO BN GBI R KB e To ensure that regular review of the Bank’s remuneration system
and its operation is conducted
. SV EERIEEERHEZEENERE - A . To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
MR RE T - WAES SR (AE Board and also its committees at least annually and make
i recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
o FHRTEEe NEZESMEERE LK . To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of the
W LHEREEZENEEEKEMMENK functioning of the Board and also its committees, particularly in
respect of the composition of Board and committee members
. BB EESRITAE LN E KA e To advise and assist the Board in discharging its culture reform
ZBE and related responsibilities
22 DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) is to
provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s risk management
strategy and development, review risk management issues and the
resolution thereof, review risk management policies and major risk
limits prior to the approval by the Board, and review major regulatory
compliance issues and development, and exercise oversight on the
compliance function and activities of the Bank. It has the authority to
conduct any enquiry and review on matters related to risk management
and compliance with risk policy and regulatory requirements. The
RMCC reports to the Board following each RMCC meeting, drawing
the Board’s attention to significant issues or matters of which the
Board should be aware, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed, and making relevant
recommendations.

The RMCC meets at least four times a year with the Bank’s executives
including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Head of
Group Risk, Group Head of Compliance and Group Head of AML and
Financial Crime Risk. Special meetings of the RMCC are held when
necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the RMCC comprises three INEDs
and the Chief Executive of the Bank. The members of the RMCC are
Messrs. Blair Chilton Pickerell (Chairman), David Wai-Hung Tam and
Paul Franz Winkelmann, who are INEDs of the Bank and Mr. Harold
Tsu-Hing Wong, who is the Chief Executive of the Bank. The RMCC
held four meetings in 2020.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Risk Management and Compliance Committee (Continued)

The RMCC was established with written terms of reference and its
major roles and functions are as follows:

° To assist the Board in reviewing all major risk management
policies and risk limits, including capital management policy and
capital plan, as well as the recovery plan

o To assist the Board in reviewing all major compliance and legal
issues, including those relating to anti-money laundering

o To assist the Board in overseeing the implementation of the
stress-testing programme, reviewing the stress-testing results,
including the stress test against capital plan and ensuring that
suitable actions are taken to mitigate potential risks where
necessary

o To monitor and ensure that major risk management policies and
risk limits of the Bank and its subsidiaries comply with relevant
regulatory requirements, and follow up on non-compliance issues
and their resolutions

o To provide periodic update to the Board on its work, finding and
recommendations

° To review any risk and/or compliance issues raised by the HKMA
which are considered significant by the Head of Group Risk,
Group Head of Compliance, Group Head of AML and Financial
Crime Risk or Group Head of Internal Audit

o To oversee the resourcing for the risk management and
compliance functions of the Bank, including anti-money
laundering and counter-terrorist financing

o To interact with the AC to ensure consistency and compatibility
in actions and minimize any potential gaps in risk management
oversight

o To promote sound risk governance and a strong risk
management culture and provide guidance and oversight on the
development of risk management strategies as well as the risk
tolerance and risk appetite of the Bank
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The Bank’s risk appetite is defined as the level of risk the Bank is
willing to take, having regard to its resources and financial capacity,
strategic objectives and regulatory constraints (e.g. capital and liquidity
requirements), with the expectation that the risk taken or to be pursued
is sufficiently compensated or at acceptable return with reasonable
confidence level. Against this background, the risk appetite framework
is comprised of a Risk Appetite Statement (“RAS”) and a set of
risk tolerance is established. The RAS covers five key dimensions
of the risks and returns of the Bank, namely the target returns to
shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency, liquidity and others while
more granular risk types including credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and other less quantifiable risks (e.g. operational risk,
reputation risk and strategic risk, cyber risk, legal risk and conduct
risk, etc.) are controlled under different risk limits and risk mitigation
measures that constitute the risk tolerance of the Bank.

The RAS is a high level statement which sets out the risk-return
requirements as well as the risk taking capacity of the Bank, taking
into account its financial and capital strength and covers a wide range
of metrics including return on average shareholders’ funds, liquidity
maintenance ratio, core funding ratio, leverage ratio and measures of
impact on profitability and capital adequacy ratio under selected stress
scenarios, etc. Moreover, to ensure that the Bank’s operations and
risk taking activities are in line with the RAS, the Bank has adopted a
set of risk tolerance levels to govern and control specific categories of
risk, which is made up of major quantitative risk limits as well as some
qualitative measures.
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RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK (Continued)

As for the process of risk appetite setting, the Board determines the
optimal risk appetite having regard to the Bank’s capital, risk and
strategy. In addition, the Board is responsible for overseeing the
development and monitoring of the Bank’s risk appetite to ensure
that the Bank is able to achieve sustainable growth in pursuing its
business strategy, operating within its tolerance levels. The RAS is
designed to be consistent with the Bank’s business strategy, risk
and return balance and market outlook, for the medium to longer
term and it is not intended to be changed frequently, unless there are
significant changes in the Bank’s strategy and operating environment.
Furthermore, during the annual and other ad hoc reviews of the RAS
framework, risk scenarios covering different courses of development
of the global economies including highly stressed scenarios are
developed for the purpose of conducting the firm-wide stress test. The
results together with regulatory developments will be taken as one of
the key considerations in the review of risk appetite.

Compliance with the RAS and risk tolerance is monitored and reported
to the Board and the RMCC respectively on a quarterly basis to ensure
that the businesses of the Bank are conducted within the requirements
of the risk appetite framework. Moreover, the risk appetite framework
and major risk appetite limits are subject to the review by the RMCC
and the Board on an annual basis, when the annual budget and
medium term plan of the Bank are reviewed and approved, or new
business and risk strategies are to be approved.

RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD

The Bank uses a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors. The proposed appointment will
first be reviewed by the NRC, taking into account the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
NRC, the proposed appointment will then be reviewed and, if thought
fit, approved by the Board after due deliberation.

In accordance with the requirement under the Banking Ordinance,
approval from the HKMA will need to be sought prior to the
appointment of any person as a Director of the Bank.
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BOARD (Continued)

The Bank issues appointment letters to each of the INEDs, setting
out the terms and conditions of their appointments. For proposed
appointment as INEDs of the Bank, the factors as laid down in the
HKMA'’s Guidance on Empowerment of INEDs will be considered to
assess the independence of a proposed INED of the Bank. The same
factors will be revisited to reassess the independence of any INED
who has served the Board of the Bank for more than 9 years, where
applicable.

Pursuant to the Board Appointment and Succession Policy of the

ZRFMNEEGVARRBEIRBZIREARER Bank, the Board or NRC should satisfy itself that the candidate

ANEBLMEZRE - MWEAZRIEBA TSR RIFE - nominated for appointment is a fit and proper person for appointment,
taking into account the following features and attributes of the
candidate:

. FHR . age

. ERESRIEXEER . education background and professional qualification

. KEB(LERTIEREELR) . experience, especially working and commercial experience

. e KR . stature and reputation in the community

. B¢ . capability

. BERREBEBEE . professional and/or business management skills

. PERaE N> . track record

. BEBTIHE(LERIERFNITES KB . independence of mind (particularly in the case of non-executive

JEITES) directors and INEDs)
. ER P sk AR AR ITER P FIR . any financial or other interest in the business of the Bank

o  HME=RK
o ARMEE
s  HEAE

BREERESEXNENARTEAEEMNMNES
T UBFEGMERTRERNELLRERE
N REERIREATEIENTERE

. IEEgHMRERERE(REERNEM
BEINEA - EXRIEMLERE

\

° other directorship
° intellectual strength
° fitness and propriety

Candidates as proposed Board members should not have any
conflict of interest that may impede their ability to perform their duties
independently and objectively or subject them to undue influence from:

° personal, professional or other economic relationships with other
members of the board or management (or with other entities
within the group)

. HEfAL - BIERE . other persons including shareholders
. i@ A SRR T AL 5| e Sk B 52 B . relationship arising from or connected to past or present
AR EIR positions held
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RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD (Continued)

A Board director candidate has to confirm that there is no conflict of
interest prior to his/her appointment, apart from clearance under the
relevant regulatory requirements relating to connected lending.

REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Remuneration information in line with the requirements set out in CG-5
is disclosed in the Regulatory Disclosure Statement at the Bank’s
website at www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct
link:

http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html

MAJOR SHARE OWNERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS AND
RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited. The ultimate holding company of the Bank is Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited. Both Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited are listed companies in Hong
Kong.

The Bank’s related party transactions are set out in Note 42 to the
Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

OTHERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Bank did not engage in
any material and complex or non-transparent structure that is difficult
for supervisors and stakeholders of the Bank to reasonably assess the
risks to which it is exposed.

L'
S

O &
A AL



a»
@D @D @D mm
EECRIREHE2020F 12831 HILFE 2 HE
E MBI PEREK -

RIRITERARI([ARIT ) 2 EBEKARME

RIT - M REMABRERYE - MBRARZZRZE
58I R B T R 7E26 o

RENABIER

FIRTTREWB AR ([REE ])EZE2020F12 A
S1AEFEZEEHNEISE 2 A RN -

ExeERTHEREER182EBT - HIK
112,840,000 7T © B 020209 A17 AIR#E &R
o

EECRARBEREREERI7E T A H
291,400,000/ 7T ©

EBER

AR ARIRITE E2020F 12 A31 H LB FE AKX
FRTEEER AR Z2ENB AR - EIL AR
ITIRIBECE A D AED ) 5 388(3)(b) 15 HE 34 G 1 &
EREL2020F EFEER o

[}
KERITRFERAZ B FBH NI BHREME
37 ¢

B

REBRFE 2 7E REABHHT4,000/87T

EEEHREE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) are the
provision of banking, financial and other related services. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 35.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$1.82 per share,
totalling HK$112,840,000, which was paid on 17 September 2020.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$4.7
per share, totalling HK$291,400,000.
BUSINESS REVIEW

No business review for 2020 is prepared as the Bank is exempted
under section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance since
it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited for
the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Bank during the year are shown in
Note 37 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$74,000.
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Exg DIRECTORS
AEEARERAREAHAIARRITEESE The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong

T Chairman
EE e Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)

BIF/E Vice Chairman
FHEE Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

BIF/E - BEFARITIEFITIHARH Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Bk Robert Tsai-To Sze*
B B ) Seng-Lee Chan*
EmE" Blair Chilton Pickerell*
L (2 5 Paul Michael Kennedy*
R David Wai-Hung Tam*
EER* (71202095 A1 HEZT) Paul Franz Winkelmann* (appointed with effect from 1 May 2020)
RRA*(57202142 F25 H Btt) Yuen-Tin Ng* (deceased on 25 February 2021)
FlAZ Gary Pak-Ling Wang

HITEE - BITTIABE R E B AR Executive Director, Deputy Chief Executive and

Group Chief Financial Officer

= Nicholas John Mayhew

HTEFEFENTHAEH Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
FEE Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong

HITEFEFELTHARE Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive
PR ER Cliff Wai-Kin Chan

HITEE Executive Director
B (FR2021F2 A18AEZL ) Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma (appointed with effect from 18 February 2021)

HITEFEFELTHAE Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive
2k 3= (7220201 A31 B &HT) Eddie Shing-Tat Lau (resigned with effect from 31 January 2020)

HITEFEFELTHARE Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive
B ITEE * Independent Non-Executive Directors
BARRBRIT A ERMET EEEARESE There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association for

T DRI EEEERT - retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the
boards of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the
date of this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of
Subsidiaries” section which follows this Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes (the “Schemes”) as approved
by the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)
and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s ultimate
and immediate holding companies respectively, eligible participants
may be granted options at a consideration of HK$1 per option to
subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG. The exercise price per option
share is varied by tranches of grant, which is concluded on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) being determined as no less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the relevant shares traded on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on the date
of grant; and (ji) the average closing price of the relevant shares traded
on the SEHK for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

The following were arrangements which subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year which enabled the Directors of the
Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in its

holding companies.

Directors’ interests in the Schemes during the year are described
below:

(@ Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”)

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2015, the
shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”),
the Bank’s ultimate holding company, approved the adoption of
a share option scheme of DSFH (the “DSFH Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the

Bank under the DSFH Scheme and no Directors had outstanding
options under the DSFH Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

(b) Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Scheme

(the “DSBG Scheme”)

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2014, the
shareholders of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the
Bank’s immediate holding company, approved the adoption of a
share option scheme of DSBG (the “DSBG Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the DSBG Scheme.

During the year, save for Messrs. Gary Pak-Ling Wang, Nicholas
John Mayhew and Eddie Shing-Tat Lau (resigned on 31 January
2020) and Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong, no other Directors of
the Bank had outstanding options granted under the DSBG
Scheme and none of the Directors had acquired shares in DSBG
by exercising options granted under the DSBG Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Bank or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT
IN RELATION TO THE BANK’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Bank’s business to which the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Bank or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have been set out in Note 42 to the financial
statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, the Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The
Bank has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board
Hon-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to 23 March 2021, being the date of the Report of the Directors of
the Bank for the year, are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick

CHAN Wai-Kin Cliff

CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)
CHIU Yuk-Fai Alick

FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

HO Ka-Yeung Eric

KONG Yiu-Fai (Eddie KONG)*

LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

LAU Pak-Hung

LAU Shing-Tat Eddie*

LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)
Nicholas John MAYHEW

NG Yuen-Tin* (deceased on 25 February 2021)
POON Clement

POON Wing-Fai Jimmy*

SZE Tsai-To Robert

WANG Pak-Ling Gary

WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)
WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

WONG Shou-Yeh David

WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

YAU Ho-Wing Vincent

YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

*

Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant subsidiary(ies)
of the Bank.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

#Z20204F12 A31H [L 5 /Z For the year ended 31 December 2020
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1 J a» a® a® a® a® a® a® aD a®
OIPESED gD GO ED O ED g §D G5 ¢ D ¢ D ¢ T O TP ¢H TP EB o) TP g TP @B ¢
[ /N € [ /N [ /N [ /N ) [ /N ] [ /N - [ /N ] [ /N ] [ /N ) €
BfaE
Note 2020 2019
FEUA Interest income 7 6,210,466 7,472,638
FEZH Interest expense 7 (2,525,102) (3,416,863)
BRI B A Net interest income 3,685,364 4,055,775
PR & KBS WA Fee and commission income 8 1,381,782 1,433,414
R E KA H Fee and commission expense 8 (199,981) (286,450)
FHREERBAERA Net fee and commission income 1,181,801 1,146,964
FEERA Net trading income 9 313,527 102,773
Hib @I A Other operating income 10 60,772 68,474
EERA Operating income 5,241,464 5,373,986
BEY Operating expenses 11 (2,842,918) (2,861,392)
MR EEEA 2 EERR Operating profit before impairment losses 2,398,546 2,512,594
EEREEE Credit impairment losses 13 (646,968) (356,386)
HRETREREEEEZ Operating profit before gains and losses on
Wi K& BB AT 2 & E R T certain investments and fixed assets 1,751,578 2,156,208
HEHMEEEE 2 FEHE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (3,027) (6,568)
WEMENTFERAR 2 FEE Net loss on fair value adjustment of
investment properties (84,240) (28,289)
BENUAF AR ZEBEEEA Net gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets
HEEHEWaEN S EE 2 at fair value through other comprehensive
Wi (E518) income 13,448 (24)
R 2 R EEE Impairment loss on goodwill 25 (98,239) =
NG e Share of results of an associate 710,370 701,857
BN AR E RIEEE Impairment loss on the investment in an
associate 23 (531,000) (287,000)
FE(GHEEGE 2 5 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 33,190 32,072
BR#t AT R Profit before taxation 1,792,080 2,568,256
1A Taxation 14 (316,618) (852,986)
4R 1T IR SR PEAE F %A Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Bank 1,475,462 2,215,270
FABEEF228H 2 E I AGRE M B wET 2 — The notes on pages 41 to 228 are an integral part of these consolidated
& o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B E2020%12 318 |EF[E For the year ended 31 December 2020
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a® a» a» (1 J a»
a® (1 4 a®
€ > (/N ) mmmm

[ /N ) - [ /N € [ /N ) -
2020 2019
FEEF Profit for the year 1,475,462 2,215,270
FEHMEE KL Other comprehensive income for the year
ARt BN EERE WERIEE Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
BHE Investments in securities
NAFEFEBREZS T AEMEE  Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair
Wi BB TR 2 AT EZE)FHE value through other comprehensive income (78,340) 395,412
NAFETEEEZS) T AEMEME  Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
WamiEH LA EREEEER of debt instruments at fair value through other
L) 558 comprehensive income 6,423 4,487
F (k) EEEIE REEE AR ¢ Net (gain)/loss realised and transferred to income
statement upon:
—EEUATFEFZEBHES - Disposal of debt instruments at fair value through
FFAHMEERE BB TIA other comprehensive income (13,448) 24
B bt 2 EER IR Deferred income tax related to the above 18,906 (52,137)
(66,459) 347,786
REFIMEE IS HRRAEN =2 Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities 387,859 (159,946)
TEEFNEERE WasiRWIER ¢ ltems that will not be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
UAFEFEBEZS T AHMEME  Net change in fair value of equity instruments at fair
Wan s E T E 2 A FEZE)FEE  value through other comprehensive income (1,387) 951
B bt 2 IRIER 1A Deferred income tax related to the above 2,516 (157)
1,129 794
HRFIEE 2 FEE MmN Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 322,529 188,634
HRBEREFE2E NGRS Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,797,991 2,403,904
FA1B R F228B 2 IR A EHEKR 2 — The notes on pages 41 to 228 are an integral part of these consolidated
2B o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2020412 H31H As at 31 December 2020
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a» a® a® a® a® a® a® aD
WIP g D GBS ED ¢OED g D @5 ¢ TP ¢ D ¢ T O TP O TP EB O TP o TP
€ [ /N [ /N [ /N ) [ /N ] [ /N - [ 7N ) [ /N ) [ /N ] [ /N ]
i3
Note 2020 2019
BE ASSETS
B RERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 17 15,262,452 17,642,131
TERITIE 1218 A WE|BRRIAF K Placements with banks maturing between one and
twelve months 5,355,765 5,494,972
RIEEERSENES Trading securities 18 5,080,047 8,387,953
UAFEFEAEEHABRNEMEE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18 - 328,768
TEESMTA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,135,814 567,816
BHEEFRREMEEE Advances and other accounts 20 146,832,539 144,621,236
AR TER2 B HZ 8T A Financial assets at fair value through
FHBHNCHEE other comprehensive income 21 41,815,923 42,163,205
AR AT BR M S R B E Financial assets at amortised cost 22 22,834,243 15,644,389
B NI E Investment in an associate 23 4,277,927 3,888,775
HREFREERE Investments in jointly controlled entities 24 105,553 96,363
EE Goodwill 25 713,451 811,690
B EE Intangible assets 25 58,252 58,252
1TEE KA E T B E Premises and other fixed assets 27 3,866,036 3,228,270
REME Investment properties 28 682,911 1,208,641
TR A E Deferred income tax assets 34 124,680 115,216
BEAG Total assets 248,145,593 244,257,677
=L LIABILITIES
RITIEK Deposits from banks 3,500,442 2,465,069
TESMTIA Derivative financial instruments 19 3,191,188 1,093,028
HREEERAENEE Trading liabilities 30 1,570,675 5,516,558
CYSHES Deposits from customers 31 191,241,681 183,544,477
BBITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 32 8,125,802 6,750,825
BEER Subordinated notes 33 3,828,458 5,510,181
HibR B RIER Other accounts and accruals 7,035,788 10,805,338
BIEATRIA & & Current income tax liabilities 382,648 470,748
EETRIBRE Deferred income tax liabilities 34 11,598 17,293
EES55 Total liabilities 218,888,280 216,173,517
B EQUITY
[N Share capital 37 6,200,000 6,200,000
HifFH(REREAT) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 38 22,158,726 20,985,573
BRES Shareholders’ funds 28,358,726 27,185,573
HEMERMTIE Additional equity instruments 39 898,587 898,587
EEaE Total equity 29,257,313 28,084,160
BnkaEes Total equity and liabilities 248,145,593 244,257,677

BEEN2021F3 A23 Bt/ RIFHERA o

FHE
BRI

FAAEEF228E Z Mz ARG MBHREKZ—

March 2021.

Hon-Hing Wong
Director

financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Managing Director

The notes on pages 41 to 228 are an integral part of these consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B E2020%12 318 |EF[E For the year ended 31 December 2020
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a» a® a® a® a» a® a® a® a»
w TP > WEB o> T > EB o T S a» o «»
@ - [ /N ) m w - @ Q Q - [ /N ) @ [ /N ) - [ /N )
FRITRREMG R
Attributable to the shareholders of the Bank
R
ERMTA
R Hittf# % REEF  Additional
Share Other Retained equity EREs
capital reserves earnings instruments  Total equity
202051 A1 B &8 Balance at 1 January 2020 6,200,000 1,002,061 19,983,512 898,587 28,084,160
FERRA Profit for the year - - 1,475462 - 1,475,462
FEEMEENE Other comprehensive income
for the year - 322,529 - - 322,529
PABRAESZ (AR IR 1E B Provision for equity-settled share-
E R BB R E A based compensation and other
HE adjustment - 820 (352) - 468
BIMERIETAZ Distribution payment of additional
KRR equity instruments - - (41,266) - (41,266)
PRI IEREREY - B398 Reclassification of net change
ATEFEEEFEFA in fair value of equity instruments
Hfth 2 E AR 1 at fair value through other
TAZATHEEEER comprehensive income
upon derecognition - (13,853) 13,853 - -
2019F REAMR 2 2019 final dividend - - (471,200) - (471,200)
2020F R HfR B 2020 interim dividend - - (112,840) - (112,840)
2020512831 B &84 Balance at 31 December 2020 6,200,000 1,311,557 20,847,169 898,587 29,257,313
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2019F1231H L FZ (4) For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)
(LAVEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a® a® a® a® a» a® a® a®
DN @il @I i el  w i wen W ™ Wil w i I e
€ [ /N [ /N [ /N ) [ /N ] [ /N - [ /N )
APITRR B R
Attributable to the shareholders of the Bank
I
BRIETA
R Hitf#i REBEF  Additional
Share Other Retained equity ERAT
capital reserves earnings  instruments  Total equity
20191 A1 H &% Balance at 1 January 2019 6,200,000 812,021 18,455,241 898,587 26,365,849
AEAE B ERE.R]  Changes on initial application
F165% 22 of HKFRS 16 - - 9,817) = (9,817)
&5 7201941 A1H Restated balance at
i 1 January 2019 6,200,000 812,021 18,445,424 898,587 26,356,032
FE R Profit for the year - - 2,215,270 - 2,215,270
FEHMEEKE Other comprehensive income
for the year - 188,634 - - 188,634
PARRAE S, (5 AR 16 5 Provision for equity-settled
BT 2 B share-based compensation - 1,406 = = 1,406
BIMERIETAY Distribution payment of additional
IREFRIE equity instruments - - (41,682) - (41,682)
P& EREGRES - EFT A Reclassification of net change
DFEEEEESHA  in fair value of equity instruments
ﬁﬁtiﬁﬂﬁl =0k 3aied at fair value through other
TAZRATEEZEFE comprehensive income
upon derecognition - - - - -
2018 RHM S 2018 final dividend - - (452,600) - (452,600)
2019 HHAIR 2 2019 interim dividend - - (182,900) - (182,900)
2019F12A31 H &8 Balance at 31 December 2019 6,200,000 1,002,061 19,983,512 898,587 28,084,160
FEMNBEEF28E 2 MF ARG E M B HwEK 2 — The notes on pages 41 to 228 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

a® a® a® a® a® a® a® a® [ J a®
PALLE A @D @ D aP® AL a® a® a® a®
w e A S Do Py P Oma@®
FfaE
Note 2020 2019
RETH2HERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEEB(FTA),MAR ST Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 40(a) (2,995,688) 10,295,517
RETEZEHERE Cash flows from investing activities
BETERAMETEEE Purchase of premises and other fixed assets (137,110) (101,593)
&S B EEMS A Proceeds from disposal of other fixed assets 136 927
REEBFAR SR Net cash used in investing activities (136,974) (100,666)
RMETEEHERE Cash flows from financing activities
BATIRIBETS Issue of subordinated notes 40(c) - 1,753,426
BREERS Repayment of subordinated notes 40(c) (1,746,731)  (1,765,339)
HEBBZNK Payment of lease liabilities (183,248) (177,895)
RIMER M T A 2 REFIE Distribution payment on additional equity
instrument (41,266) (41,682)
SNEBBITRERKRER Interest paid on subordinated notes and debt
BHZHE securities issued 40(c) (229,021) (291,958)
k3 ERARAR S Dividends paid on ordinary shares (584,040) (635,500)
BEEBMAR ST Net cash used in financing activities (2,784,306)  (1,158,948)
HERERRELEH OBY), Net (decrease)/increase in cash
HINEEE and cash equivalents (5,916,968) 9,035,903
FURERERRLIEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 24,422,893 15,417,604
MESREAT 7 52 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 182,879 (30,614)
FERAERERRELER Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year 40(b) 18,688,804 24,422,893
FAMEERF28H 7 HzE T B ERR 2 — The notes on pages 41 to 228 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a® a® a® a® a® a®
a® a® aD ab a®
wmw-w mmwm mm-

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Everbright Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 23 March 2021.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair

value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a» a» (1 J a»
a® a® I'I a®
> (/N ) @ @ P> QQ-Q

-
2. FEEHEHREHMEm@

21 wmEEE@m)
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R 1 I B o %%ZF“$EZEHME
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant
impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions
changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions
are appropriate and that the Group’s financial statements therefore
present the financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

A number of new or amended standards became applicable for
the current reporting period. The Group did not have to change
its accounting policies or make retrospective adjustments as a
result of adopting these standards.

The following amendments to accounting standards are
applicable for annual reporting periods commencing on
1 January 2020:

° Definition of Material - amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
° Definition of a Business — amendments to HKFRS 3

o Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

° Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 1, amendments

to HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and HKFRS 7
“Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform is the market-wide initiative
to replace or reform interbank offered rates (“IBORs”) that are
commonly used to determine interest cash flows on financial
instruments such as loans and advances to customers, deposits
from banks and customers, debt securities and derivatives. The
objective of the reform is to replace IBORs with alternative risk-
free interest rates (“RFRs”) that are based on actual market
transactions. Consequently, financial contracts which currently
make reference to IBORs may need to be amended such that
they will make reference to the alternative RFRs in the applicable
currency going forward. Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7 modify some specific hedge accounting requirements
to provide relief (the “temporary relief”) from the potential effects
of the uncertainties caused by the interest rate benchmark
reform.

Significant judgement will be required in determining when
uncertainty is expected to be resolved and when the temporary
relief will cease to apply. As at 31 December 2020, there is still
uncertainty on the reform of IBORs, and the Group has applied
the temporary relief on all its hedge accounting relationships
based on reference benchmarks that are subject to the IBORs
reform or replacement. The Group continues to closely monitor
the market progress on the transition of IBORs to RFRs.

The Group has certain outstanding interest rate swaps which
are exposed to different types of IBORs, (predominantly US
Dollar London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”)). These interest rate swaps are
designated as fair value hedge of certain of the Group’s fixed
rate financial instruments including debt securities held at fair
value through other comprehensive income and amortised cost,
bank borrowing, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated
notes issued. The notional amount of interest rate swaps
designated as subject to hedge accounting relationships and
the temporary relief as at 31 December 2020 is approximately
HK$42 billion.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2, amendments to
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts”, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16 “Leases”

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform and
relate to:

(i) changes to contractual cash flows — financial instruments
will not be derecognised, but the effective interest rate
will be updated to reflect the change to the alternative
benchmark rate;

() hedge accounting — hedge accounting will not be
discontinued solely because changes are required to
be made by the reform, if the hedge meets other hedge
accounting criteria; and

(i)  disclosures — information relating to new risks arising from
the reform and how the transition to alternative benchmark
rates is managed is to be disclosed.

are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective from

1 January 2020 or not yet effective that would be expected to have a

ial impact on the Group.
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(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an
associate includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment

loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the income

statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a service to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended period
of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period the service is
provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities

Measurement methods

Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs,
premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (assets that
are credit-impaired at initial recognition) the Group calculates the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on
the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows.

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the
carrying amount of the respective financial assets or financial liability
is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original
effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at
FVOCI which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or
loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises the
difference as follows:

(@  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using
market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° Fair value through profit or loss (including held for trading);

° Fair value through other comprehensive income; or

o Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition
of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables
purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on:

o the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

o the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
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into one of the following three measurement categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii)
below. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as
part of “other” business model and measured at FVPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business model for
a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows
for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated. Securities held for trading are held principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio
of financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. These securities are classified in the “other” business
model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a
residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in OCIl and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in
the “Net trading income” in the income statement.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(ii)  Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI and with the exposures arising from loans to
customers, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each
reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

° An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

. The time value of money; and

° Reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts is recognised as a provision as
part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The carrying amount of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI is their fair value. Their
impairment allowance is recognised as part of “Investment
revaluation reserve”.

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)  Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does this
by considering, among others, the following factors:

. If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to
amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

. Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as
a profit share/equity-based return that substantially affects
the risk profile of the loan.

° Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is
not in financial difficulty.

° Significant change in the interest rate.

o Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

° Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements
that significantly affect the credit risk associated with the
loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at
fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the
asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered
to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation
purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the
Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised
is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially
in circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the
debtor being unable to make the originally agreed payments.
Differences in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit
or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.
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(iii)  Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount
is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities
and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that
result in derecognition if the Group:

° Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

° Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

o Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the
assets without material delay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition
are therefore not met. This also applies to certain securitisation
transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated residual
interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the
Group applies continuing involvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of
the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the amortised
cost of the rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the
transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to
the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the Group
when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is

measured at fair value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
this classification is applied to derivatives, financial
liabilities held for trading (e.g. short positions in the
trading booking) and other financial liabilities designated
as such at initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
presented partially in other comprehensive income (the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise
to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining
amount of change in the fair value of the liability). This is
unless such a presentation would create, or enlarge, an
accounting mismatch, in which case the gains and losses
attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability are
also presented in profit or loss;

Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or when
the continuing involvement approach applies. When the
transfer of financial asset did not qualify for derecognition,
a financial liability is recognised for the consideration
received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;
when continuing involvement approach applies; and

Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(i) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of
debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well
as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
The terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any
fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative factors,
such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in,
changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features
attached to the instrument and change in covenants are also
taken into consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any
costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortised over
the remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° The amount of the loss allowance; and

° The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the
amount of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any
commitment to provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that
can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial
instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded
derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

° Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to those of the host contract;

° A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

° The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement unless
the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts at fair value
through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship
between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values of hedged items.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)

(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
under “Net trading income — Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are attributable
to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity. The adjustment to
the carrying value of a hedged equity security and remains in
retained earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement under “Net trading
income”. For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with
designated financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and
losses arising from changes in their fair value are included under
“Net trading income — Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at
fair value through profit or loss”.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Bank or the counterparty.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position with
appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case of
delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed and
repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or court
orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed to the
Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets held for
resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Segment reporting (Continued)

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury, Overseas
Banking and Others.

2.13 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Bank and major part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within the
corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a distinction
is made between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying
amount of the assets. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement,
and those related to changes in the carrying amount, except for
impairment, are recognised in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment
revaluation reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§

67



a®
a®
mm

68

RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a» a» (1 J a»
a® a® I'I a®
> (/N ) @ @ P> QQ-Q

-
2. FEEHHEREHMEm@

214 TERHMEEEE

TEIZEEMRAENEM - REEAREES
ZHE T R EAEEEERELRANBSRITE
#l - BELABRRERBRBRWEZSFABZ
SHi e

REE-REEMREANRESRBREZRE
ﬁ&/@‘“ﬂﬁﬁ P AR GZIR B 2 BN AT DA T S B
BB EZRPKNAT @R EEZREE
EP‘JZ{’EF‘MI%Jé{EﬁEu (RFEBEME) - BER
TR Z REES AR - A RS
PSR E A 2 AR R M s R A HIRR

HEARMEREZHE T Z T ERRA
BEBRARZKGHGEN NBRASMEREEZ
HETHMEHEFEMEENTERBERET
8 WIRNATNIRZ A ERFHD BEKRAER
fA:

- 1IE RESHE SR
- EEE REEHE A E L
BiERAE (—ARE3ZE105F
Z )
BE 2 FIpBEIMEAFHN T ERS BHRGH

S WEAEZER TR -

WEEZEEERNEMG RS - BIZE
B2 REE GRS E R E 0 04 58 (T
2.17) °

HE 2 e kB BIR R AGRIEERE(EEE
&EER EALBmeEEW
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land classified
as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:
- Premises Over the remaining period of lease
- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives

and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10
years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income

statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property, or for which the market has become less
active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental

income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They
include core deposits, contracts and customer relationships intangible
assets, and trade names. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years
using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use
are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the investment
in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon receiving dividend
from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s share of the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the
Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s share of
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In
such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income within
the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of financial
assets at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to equity, is also
credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently recognised
in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant investments.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is the
fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at each
reporting period with any change in the cost recognised in the
income statement, with a corresponding credit or adjustment to
the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the holding company will issue new
shares to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount
from the “Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share
capital” account.
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POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee were classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable,

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date,
if any

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees, if any

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

° any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the
Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as
a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the

control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core
to the financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to
achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management
and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated
by the Board oversees and guides the management of different risks
which are more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group
Risk Division (“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition,
Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy
sets out the core values and high level risk management direction of
the Group, taking into account of the overall business strategy and
direction, under which a robust Risk Appetite framework is established
to guide the strategic planning process and strengthen the risk-return
management. Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite framework sets out
the types and amount of risk that the Group is willing to take in order
to achieve its business plan. The Group’s risk appetite metrics are
composed of key indicators for measuring capital, risks, return and
liquidity and this is supplemented by a set of risk tolerances made
up of major risk limits of the Group. In order to ensure that business
is conducted within our established risk appetite, monitoring on
the compliance with the risk appetite limits and risk tolerance is
undertaken on a quarterly basis. In this connection, the Group has
set out its Risk Appetite Statement that covers five key dimensions
of the risks and returns of the Group, namely, the target returns to
shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency, liquidity and other key risk
measures. The GRD is responsible for the ongoing monitoring of the
compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement and the regular reporting
of the status to the RMCC and the Board. Moreover, the Risk Appetite
framework and major risk appetite limits are subject to review by the
RMCC and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market

risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds
and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currencies and interest rates.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of these financial
instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms of
hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that
do not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting
are discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair
value hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt
securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate (mainly LIBOR
and HIBOR). Pay-floating/receive-fixed interest rate swaps are
matched to specific issuances of fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/
receive-floating interest rate swaps are matched to fixed-rate debt
securities held with terms that closely align with the critical terms of
the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks,
such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by the Group. Interest
rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from
fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt securities held, whose
fair value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in fair value of an issued liability or debt security
are significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships
meet the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of the
fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional amount of
the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Possible
sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(i) changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

(i)  the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before next
fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark rate of
the interest rate swap;

(i)  changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

(iv) the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit risk
on the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not reflected
in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in
interest rate; and

(v)  differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31 EAESRTARK@ 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
31.1 HERBEERY FETEESIHTLET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

A accounting (Continued)
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Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

REEFH T I R4 B A F R @ b A FEH
ZEHTA -

The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging
instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.

£

Z|E A
2020%12H31H 31 December 2020 Maturity
1R 10 E 5F N E

Less than 255 More than
REER - RERE R Risk category - interest rate risk 1 year 1-5 years 5 years
BT BE-FE Hedge of issued liabilities —

certificates of deposit
[ Nominal amount 1,456,811 100,000 -
19 ] E A 2R Average fixed interest rate 1.13% 2.55% -
HhEITZ BEIAEER Hedge of issued liabilities —
subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount 1,937,913 1,744,121 =
5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 4.25% 5.00% =
HHEITZBE-EE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
H{E Nominal amount 813,923 = =
9 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 3.25% - -
HihiEg 2 A A FEE A E#F) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AT AE A2 E W A E RS2 through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 1,826,676 13,395,237 7,719,326
S5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 4.34% 3.84% 3.54%
HORIE R 2 A SRS BR A Hedge of debt securities held at
BEEHEH amortised cost

H{E Nominal amount - 5,950,602 7,040,029
S ] E A = Average fixed interest rate - 3.28% 3.32%

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

A accounting (Continued)
FIRE Mz D FEY @) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)
FH A
201912 H31H 31 December 2019 Maturity
1FELAR S 56 E

Less than 54 More than
[ B 8 Rl — ) = [ Risk category — interest rate risk 1 year 1-5 years 5 years
BT BE-FRE Hedge of issued liabilities —

certificates of deposit
HE Nominal amount 4,447,271 470,000 -
19 ] E A 2 Average fixed interest rate 2.26% 2.20% -
BT BEAEES Hedge of issued liabilities —
subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount 1,752,008 3,698,682 -
9 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 6.63% 4.61% —
HHREITZBE-EE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
HE Nominal amount - 817,604 -
9 ] RE A 2 Average fixed interest rate - 3.25% -
b g 2 A A EE A E#F) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AT A A2 R A E RS2 through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 1,020,058 11,088,515 9,556,679
S5 ] E F = Average fixed interest rate 3.78% 4.06% 3.59%
HORIE R 2 A SR NS BR A Hedge of debt securities held
BEEHE S at amortised cost

HE Nominal amount - 1,405,242 4,029,446
S ] E A = Average fixed interest rate - 3.81% 3.63%
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accounting (Continued)

3. MBEREE@® 3.
31 EREEMTARE@® 3.1
311 FERBEERE FEEEZITET
B
AFEEF Fair value hedges

BREEREMIER 22BIT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows:
2020
REEHBRRRA
BELARE NS
RERZ AR
BRZAYE
Fritans  HARRAEER
Hohan Accumulated
BREHMEREER mgnEs  amount of fair value
ZHWER 2D FE SATESE hedge adjustments
UneRELLE Changein remaining in the
f .Acclum:la(tjed ar:lou:t oft s statement of
alrt\;a :e de 39-: JlfS rln:n : BBAREREL hedge used for financial position
on . e hedge .| em include 2HEE T for any hedged
HREE in the carrying amount Uil ineffectiveness items that
Carrying amount of the hedged item tatement offinancial for2020  have ceased to be
gE 8 BE &%  positionin which the () adjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  hedged item is included Note (a) gains and losses
B - 1,561,697 - 4886 EEANENE (10,964) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
fBET - 3,828,458 - 146424 REETH (87,553) -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
[£& - 818,745 - 4792 HER 4354 -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
FEJATEEEK 24,497,071 - 1,442,337 - NATEI2EREY 906,548 -
FET A 2ENEN AR 2 E g
Debt securities held at Financial assets at fair
fair value through other value through other
comprehensive income comprehensive income
RELNERRATIRS 13,812,919 - 822,288 - DB 308,174 -
Debt securities held at Financial assets at
amortised cost amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows: (Continued)

Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

2019
REEMBIARR
BEILRES R
R g
BRZATE
Hh2EREes
Accumulated
B RRRRE FRNETE20195  amount of fair value
ZHWREZDYE HREM hedge adustments
HRRARLR mEEE remaining in the
Accumulated amount of S AT{ERE statement of
fer value hedge adjustments HBRREREEL R Changein  financial position
on the hedged tem included B8 ZEE value subject to for any hedged
KA inthe carrying amount Line item in the hedge used for items that
Garying amount of the hedged item statement of financial calculating hedge  have ceased to be
)3 Bf BE BE  postionin which the ingffectivengss  acjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilties Assets Liabilities hedged item is included for 2019 gains and losses
FE - 491,274 - (,997) EENEE (10,562) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
ffEEH - 5,510,181 - 50491 RIEEH (100942) -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
B8 - 826,811 - 007 BIER (13,791) -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
WRZNATE SR 247170 - 465,052 - NATEHZEEEY 756,797 -
FERINCE R Gt AR 2 EEH
Debt securities held at fair value Financial assets at fair
through other comprehensive value through other
income comprehensive income
RELNEBRAIRS 5,651,040 - 216,352 - ERRATIR 105,546 -
Debt securities held at Financial assets at
amortised cost amortised cost

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and

™ hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:
2020
BRGE
20205
HAHER
ZATERD
Change in
fair value
BBRRRATS used for FERRRKE R
HWIEYIER calculating  Z¥HE¥
Line item in the hedge Ineffectiveness
EEE statement of ineffectiveness  recognisedin  WERBEABSHH AR
T Carrying amount financial position for2020  profitfloss) ZIEE
Nominal BE &f& where the hedging Z(F) Z(B)  Line item in profit or loss that
amount Assets Liabilities  instrument is included Note (a) Note () includes hedge ineffectiveness
FlzER
Interest rate risk
MR — 1,556,811 4,689 - (TESRIA 9,671 (1,293) AATFEHHMERSRIALF
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial 3t/ (B18)
hedge of certificates of instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
deposit financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
MR H — bR (R ETS 3,682,034 146,314 - (TESRIA 88,423 870 RARTEHTHEECRIALS
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial s/ (B18)
hedge of subordinated instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
notes financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
GilES=RiR Pl 813,923 4,720 - fTEERIA (4,266) 88 AATEHMHEBSRIAZE
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial Wit/ (B18)
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
Flsie 8 — ¥ 2 VAT E 22,941,239 940 1436209 fIAESRTA (904,718) 1,830 BAATEHHHABSRIELF
ir2 BREH AL 2 ARG Derivatives financial Wi/ (E8)
EBES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - financial instruments subject to
hedge of debt securities held at fair value hedge
fair value through other
comprehensive income
I iE H — S 2 DA 6 12,990,631 33,168 855309 fTESRIA (328,774) (600) AAFEEHMHBHSRIALE
ARG BTS2 5 Derivatives financial s/ (B518)
Interest rate swaps - - instruments Net gain/(oss) arising from
hedge of debt securities held at financial instruments subject to
amortised cost fair value hedge
5t Note:
() BERERAERNSEATESRRANEHE B (@  The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each
W IR B RNE N (B E B B R H e 2 T category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in
BEMATEZTMER EZE - value of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the

change in fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the
current year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and

INRNC-)) hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)
2019
RREE
20194
RN
ZDTEES
HBRRERARS Change in
YT AZIER fair value
Line item in the used for R
EEE statement of calculating  ZHHEH EEABSMREN
e Cartying amount financial position hedge Ineffectiveness 278 H
Nominal BE B8 where the hedging ineffectiveness  recognised in  Line item in profit or loss that
amount Assets Liabilities  instrument is included for2019  profit/(loss) includes hedge ineffectiveness
kel
Interest rate risk
=i B — T 4,917,271 1,283 6,247 fTAESRTA 10,352 (210) AATEHARNEHESBIE
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial ZFE/ (B18)
hedge of certificates of instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
deposit financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
F|%i5 8 — Sk (BT 5,450,690 58,929 494 {TESRIA 100,923 (19) BATEHHIEESHIE
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial 23N/ (518)
hedge of subordinated instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
notes financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
MRS - hEE 817,604 9,048 - PTESRIA 13,870 79 AATEHHNREHLRIA
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial Z3E/ (B18)
hedge of borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments subject to
fair value hedge
HEE 8 - E AR TE 21,665,252 36,903 496,334 {THESHIE (750,221) 6576 FAATEHHNEESHIA
SR ARSI AL R AR Derivatives financial 2/ (B18)
ERER instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - financial instruments subject to
hedge of debt securities held fair value hedge
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
MR IEH — S 2 DR 5,434,688 4,001 219597 fTESBIA (104,791) 755 RBATEHHHEESHIA
BATIEA AR RS Derivatives financial ZFE/ (B18)
Interest rate swaps - instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from

hedge of debt securities held at
amortised cost

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving major
credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (‘CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of
the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees are
all chaired by the Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors
and senior business and credit officers as members. Credit risk
measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring requirements are

detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies
and are approved by different levels of management based upon
established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures,
limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by
management, credit committees and GRD. The Group’s internal
auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits to ensure compliance
with credit policies and procedures, and regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval and

review of new products and activities, and credit policies with details of
the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The
credit grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and loan
specific information collected at the time of application (such as
disposable income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and
financial indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate exposures).
For retail exposures, this is supplemented with internal data such as
delinquency status and external data such as credit bureau scoring
information on individual borrowers. In addition, the scorecards enable
expert judgement from the credit risk officer to determine the final
internal credit grade for each exposure. This allows for considerations
which may not be captured as part of the other inputs into the
scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of portfolio
held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending
of retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a periodic
basis by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a Probability of
Default (“PD”).

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at the borrower
level. A relationship manager will incorporate any updated or new
information/credit assessments into the credit grading scorecard on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the relationship manager will also update
information about the creditworthiness of the borrower every year from
sources such as financial statements. This will determine the updated
internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with external
default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD master scales
are calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit grade.

Treasury

For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury
portfolio, external rating agency credit grades are used. These
published grades are continuously monitored and updated. The PDs
associated with each grade are determined based on default rates
published by the rating agencies.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on

changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured
based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with
HKFRS 9 is that it should consider forward looking information.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets
are those financial assets that are credit impaired on initial
recognition. Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis
(Stage 3).

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§

91



RIFEER R M ot

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a» __a@ a» _ _a@»_a@p__ ¢
oo==co @ AL L A co"-" w TS > e co==co @ cozgz

- @
3. HBEREE@
32 FERRBm@®

322 FAHIEEERE

T BRI IR E A 7R EER B IR 2 MER
EBATREZ EERESREERI)

-
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets):
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Change in credit quality since initial recognition
< >
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The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
SICR when one or more of the following criteria have been met:

° when there is significant adverse external credit rating transition
for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment grade to non-
investment grade, or one notch downgrade for bond with original
non-investment grade at purchase

° when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from one
notch to five notches, for corporate portfolio

o when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

° when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for corporate
portfolio

o when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according
to the loan classification of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?”). The decision to classify the loans is based on
the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of individual
counterparties being default.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a portfolio
level for all retail financial instruments held by the Group. In relation to
corporate financial instruments, where an Early Warning list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed at the counterparty
level and on a monthly basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
revised as when appropriate by the respective credit departments of
the portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial
instruments in the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is aligned
with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets”), when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
° a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

° the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider otherwise;

° the borrower is bankrupt;

° it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to the
loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify the
loans is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood

of individual counterparties being default; and

° the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the
borrower’s condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired
unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash
flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of
impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or
more is considered credit-impaired.

32.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit
losses are the discounted product of the PD, exposures at default
(“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), defined as follows:

o The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation.

o EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed
at the time of default, over the next 12 months (“12M EAD”) or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime EAD”). For example, for a
revolving commitment, the Group includes the current drawn
balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn up
to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it

occur.

° LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss on
a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty, type
and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit
support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months
and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
loan.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

32.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for
each future month and for each individual exposure. These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood
of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier
month). This effectively calculates an ECL for each future month,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed.
The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective
interest rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on
a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime
of the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data
and is assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and
credit grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the
expected payment profile, which varies by product type.

° For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over
a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any
expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early repayment/
refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

o For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted
by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion
factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining
limit by the time of default.

. For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the

maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilized amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

32.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the
factors which impact the recoveries made post default. These include
collateral type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to
market/book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and
recovery costs observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to note 3.2.2.4 for
an explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc., are
regularly monitored and reviewed.

3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD
and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the
“base economic scenario”) are provided by some economic research
institutions and the in-house economic research team on a regular
basis and provide the best estimate view of the economy over the next
five years. For the economic variables out of the forecasting periods
(i.e. after the next five years), the point-in-time default risk level at the
last forecasting period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default risk
level of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables on
the PD, EAD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the impact changes in these
variables have had historically on default rates and loss rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group concluded to have two
additional scenarios to capture possible outcomes beyond those under
the base economic scenario, namely the good and the bad scenarios.
The good and bad scenarios are set with reference to the historical
observations of the macroeconomic factors and the Group’s loan loss
experience over a period of 20 years. The scenario weightings are
determined by a combination of statistical analysis and expert credit
judgement, taking account of the range of possible outcomes for each
chosen scenario.

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the change
in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop indicator. This
determines whether the whole financial instrument is in Stage 1, Stage
2, or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should be
recorded. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as
either a probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1), or a probability
weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted
ECLs are determined by running each scenario through the relevant
ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

As with any economic forecasts, the projections and likelihoods of
occurrence are subject to a high degree of inherent uncertainty and
therefore the actual outcomes may be significantly different to those
projected. The Group considers these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes that the chosen scenarios are
appropriately representative of the range of possible scenarios.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Management judgements and overlay

During the year, the COVID-19 pandemic had led to a rapid
deterioration in business conditions and unprecedented economic
uncertainty globally and greater difficulty in determining ECL
calculations, which require the consideration of various forward-
looking economic parameters and forecasts, and the likely evolution
of credit risk and default. Highly uncertain and volatile macroeconomic
forecasts driven by the COVID-19 significantly impact the performance
of the ECL models with the modelled ECL outcomes overly sensitive
under such extreme conditions. Moreover, the scale and nature of the
COVID-19 had led to governmental actions globally to apply social
distancing requirements or even lock-down measures, while providing
support to their economies and offering relief to those sectors severely
impacted by the pandemic. These factors impacted the practices
or operations of our customers and thus would also affect the
performance of our ECL models. Against this background, the Group
has been monitoring the outputs of the ECL models closely, and
undertook additional risk management procedures and risk assessment
involving credit expert judgement in the measurement of ECL for 2020.

Considering the various support and relief measures offered by
the governments, in particular the Pre-approved Principal Payment
Holiday Scheme supported by the HKMA, in 2020, a longer term view
on the forward looking development of the portfolios was considered
appropriate, as part of a process to work out an appropriate
adjustment, to balance the rather sensitive model outputs driven by
the uncertain and short-term movements in economic forecasts.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Management judgements and overlay (Continued)

In addition, the Group conducted detailed thematic reviews on the
major portfolios, supplemented by scenario analysis where appropriate,
to formulate credit expert judgement on portfolio development and the
appropriate amount of management adjustment to ECL allowances
based on ECL model outputs. The resultant adjustments during the
year include management overlays to increase ECL allowances for
the retail and commercial banking portfolios to align with longer-term
relationships between unemployment and the pressure on corporate
borrowers induced by COVID-19 and borrower defaults. On the other
hand, management underlay was made on the Treasury portfolios
to suppress the overestimated default risk predicted by the models
which was not observed in the portfolio, and was not in line with
external credit rating agencies and internal credit assessment. As of
the end of December 2020, the amount of management adjustments
on top of ECL model outputs as a percentage of the balances of the
HK commercial banking portfolio, HK retail banking portfolio and HK
treasury portfolio are set out below.

EEERE
EREBEER
WEDL
Management
Adjustment as
a percentage
of outstanding

72020F12H31H As at 31 December 2020 balance
BBRERITAS HK Commercial Banking Portfolio 0.16%
BEATERTHEE HK Retail Banking Portfolio 0.06%
BBV EXBEE HK Treasury Portfolio -0.18%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Management judgements and overlay (Continued)

As explained above, in the derivation of the Probability Weighted
Average ECL amount, the Group used three scenarios namely Good,
Base and Bad scenarios (see also below). Due to the overly sensitive
model results described above, the ECL outputs also need to be
adjusted for the purpose of the Bad year scenario. In this regard,
historical peak default experiences were referenced to come up with
an expert judgement on the stressed probability of defaults for 2020
to replace those default rates generated by the models. This allowed
a more reasonable, but adequately stressful Bad case for 2020, such
that the existing methodology to determine the Bad scenario based on
the highest model ECL starting from 1995 could still be applied, but in
a more appropriate manner.

The above adjustments and arrangements were subject to management
review and oversight to assess reasonableness of these adjustments.
As the COVID-19 pandemic is still revolving, with the timing and path
of economic recovery still highly uncertain, the Group will put these
model adjustments under regular review to make sure that they reflect
latest market development as well as underlying assessment on the
performance of the credit portfolios.

Economic variable assumptions

In its models, the Group relies on a broad range of forward-
looking economic information as inputs, such as the forecasts of
macroeconomic factors like property price indices, GDP growth rates,
unemployment rates, and interest rates. A range of macroeconomic
factors is maintained based on statistical data tests and expert
judgement to ensure that relevant factors could be taken into
consideration in the ECL models.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based on
the underlying assumptions described in the below table. In particular,
the “base” scenario makes reference to a set of macroeconomic
forecasts from different economic research institutions and the in-
house economic research team and the “good” and “bad” scenarios
depends on the simulated ECL using a designated period of historical
macroeconomic variables. The year of the lowest simulated ECL was
assumed good scenario whereas the year of the highest simulated
ECL was assumed the bad scenario. A designated period of historical
data that covers peaks and troughs of economic cycles were selected

for this exercise to ensure the selection of scenarios stays unbiased.
Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario

Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The base
scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic forecasts
which formulate a “base case” view of the most probable
future direction of relevant economic variables.

Good This scenario is determined as the year of having lowest
ECL by applying a full set of applicable historical economic
variables to the entire portfolio starting from 1995.

Bad This scenario is determined as the year of having highest
ECL by applying a full set of applicable historical economic
variables to the entire portfolio starting from 1995. However,
as discussed in above subsection of management
judgements and overlay, the performance of the ECL
models was undermined by the volatile macroeconomic
forecasts driven by the COVID-19 pandemic and the
government relief measures to address the pandemic. The
applicable probability of default for 2020 under the Bad
scenario was therefore determined by expert judgement
made with reference to the historical peak default
experience instead of adopting the default rates generated
by the models.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are set
out as below.

SEHAATIE F 198 1S HAATHE
Average of 5-Year One-Year
7A2020512H31H As at 31 December 2020 Forward-Looking Forward Looking
AR HAEEREEKE Hong Kong GDP Growth g Base 2.8% 4.8%
(BADL) Rate (%) R1F Good 2.9% 4.8%
TR Bad 1.3% -5.9%
ESEEYEER Hong Kong Residential Property 2 Base 5.8% 5.6%
EHEH(AHLL) Price Index Change (%) RYF Good 121% 11.1%
TR Bad -15.5% -32.5%
BREREXR(BOL) Hong Kong Unemployment EHp Base 4.0% 5.2%*
Rate (%) Rif Good 3.1% 3.1%*
TR Bad 6.0% 5.9%*

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)
AR EEE 2 RE (E) Economic variable assumptions (Continued)
5F HARTIE T8 14FEARTHE
Average of 5-Year One-Year
#K2019F 12831 H As at 31 December 2019 Forward-Looking Forward Looking
AR HAEEREEKE Hong Kong GDP Growth g Base 1.6% -1.3%
(BDH) Rate (%) R Good 2.9% 4.8%
TR Bad 1.3% -5.9%
ESEEYEER Hong Kong Residential Property 2 Base 4.3% 1.2%
EEEFH (AL Price Index Change (%) R Good 12.1% 11.1%
TR Bad -15.5% -32.5%
BREREXR(BOL) Hong Kong Unemployment EHp Base 3.5% 3.6%*
Rate (%) Raf Good 3.1% 3.1%*
TR Bad 6.0% 5.9%*
* ZE1VFHATEMERN ERK1FHZFERTHR * These one-year forward looking rates represent forecast average rates for
o one year.

RESHKEBRZRNAMEE - REBETRE
EELERRAEFT TRKBEL S 2 A EEE
BRSO - W DT R AN R S AR
BESE R EAZE BB ARRTE 2R AE
HEIRAR ©

To derive the probability weightings for the selected scenarios, an
economic state analysis that covers a full economic cycle to estimate
the range of probabilities in different economic states is performed.
The use of historical data that covers peaks and troughs of economic
cycles is adopted for the analysis ensures that calculated probabilities
stay unbiased.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

To supplement the economic state analysis for more forward looking
elements and to capture latest developments of the market and
economy, assessments are performed by the in-house economist
and the Group Risk function with expert judgement exercised for the
determination of the probability weightings application to the three
scenarios.

The weightings assigned to each economic scenario, “base”, “
and “bad” as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, were 70%,
20% respectively.

good”
10% and

To reflect the updated market conditions as at 31 December 2020,
the Group adopted a set of weaker forward-looking assumptions in
the base case scenario, which is reflected in an increase in the ECL
allowances at 31 December 2020. The probability weighting assigned
to the economic scenarios, as shown above, remained unchanged.

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated
within the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory,
legislative or political changes, have also been considered, but are not
deemed to have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has
been made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored
for appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as
follows:

(i) Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured
borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(i)  GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’

performance and collateral valuations; and

(i)  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on

mortgage collateral valuations.
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3. HXEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
322 FBHIEEEEE @) 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3224 MATEHIEEBBRER > AT ER () 3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)
R T () Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
AN RERERERSENLEZSRERNER Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from
BREMEEELDHMNEEA &L EBETERE reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual
EEEER s & assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:
=& Retail
EHREERFENY
ECL Impact
2020 2019
REE Unemployment rates +1% 20,294 12,580
-1% -5,569 -1,106
EEREERR GDP growth rates +0.5% -2,408 -2,209
-0.5% 2,453 2,244
MR BRI Property price indices +5% -624 -284
-5% 4,571 450
g=E3 Corporate
EHREERFIENY
ECL Impact
2020 2019
KEFEX Unemployment rates +1% 17,187 128,952
-1% -9,890 -65,802
HAEREERE GDP growth rates +0.5% -11,753 -15,239
-0.5% 12,804 16,559
E YT Property price indices +5% -15,880 -22,035
-5% 22,255 23,089
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 JHESE i R IZEHIBEE 2 B K 3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies
REBERERIERAIRZSEFEE - 17550 The Group has an established framework to manage and control
BIREEEREEREFBAESR ZRAR - BIEK concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or counterparty
BRAIRZRSGEFEE  TEXKBER 2R ER group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower or counterparty
HE - ERHRRMKAMAEEZ S ST HER - group, industry or country are in place and their exposures are
monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.
BRAIXRZEFEE 2 ESREBEEEUER The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are

capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the
overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to
the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All
these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit
risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions,
the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved financial
institutions, and uses established market practices on credit support
and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative
counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution
counterparty, including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved
by the GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit rating
of individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral and
their characteristics are established within the credit policies, as are
the respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse
to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the
Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(@) Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral for securing loans and advances. The principal
collateral types are:

° Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises and
accounts receivable;

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities;

° Charges over deposits; and
° Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where
possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as soon
as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans
and advances.

(o) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments or
underlying assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement or
analogous master agreement in order to follow the standardised
market practice of close-out netting arrangement in the event of
default or early termination and in accordance with the regulatory

requirements.

Collateral arrangements with most counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement
activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
outstanding amounts of financial assets written off before completion
of enforcement activity of the underlying collaterals was HK$59 million
(2019: HK$48 million). Please refer to Note 3.2.9 for the total amount
of loans and advances to customers, loan commitments and financial
guarantees with or without collateral held by the Group written off in
2020 and 2019.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements

The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure of
financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount of financial
assets below also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment

At 31 December 2020
BEE/ %528

Gross carrying/notional amount

BHEE
BREE  REBAUT BRER
% Special  Sub-standard At ECL B
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
BANBHRER Balance and placements with banks 20,626,699 - - 20,626,699 8482 20,618,217
—B&EH - Stage 1 20,626,699 - - 20,626,699 8,482 20,618,217
- %EQZ - Stage 2 - - - - - =
—fEE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
?ﬁﬁ;ﬂﬁ FEETA Debt instruments at fair value through
E J‘MENME’JH%I,E\ other comprehensive income 40,043,117 - - 40,043,117 33,778 40,009,339
—REEA - Stage 1 40,043,117 - - 40,043,117 33,778 40,009,339
-2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[EER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - =
DERKATIRMERFTA Debt instruments at amortised cost 22,858,465 - - 22,858,465 24,222 22,834,243
—B&EH - Stage 1 22,858,465 - - 22,858,465 24,222 22,834,243
—Fek2 - Stage 2 - - - - - =
—FEE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
EPER Advances to customers 135,116,751 888,020 1,573,803 137578574 1,251,164 136,327,410
BB - Stage 1 125,011,296 - - 125,011,296 486,431 124,524,865
) - Stage 2 10,105,455 888,020 - 10,993,475 208,225 10,785,250
53 - Stage 3 - - 1573803 1573803 556508 1,017,205
B5ER Trade bills 3,790,517 - 607 3,791,124 8,859 3,782,265
—RaErt - Stage 1 3,782,143 - - 3,782,143 8,848 3,773,295
—fEEx2 - Stage 2 8,374 - - 8,374 1 8,363
—[BER3 - Stage 3 - - 607 607 - 607
B HIE R EMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 6,677,503 3,710 64,334 6,745,547 22,683 6,722,864
BB - Stage 1 6,666,069 - - 6,666,069 10,287 6,655,782
~Pedi - Stage 2 11,434 3,710 - 15,144 547 14,597
LT - Stage 3 - - 64,334 64,334 11,849 52,485
ERAERBBER Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 78,455,814 33,015 291 78,489,120 155,969 78,333,151
—BEEH - Stage 1 75,855,320 - - 75,855,320 146,243 75,709,077
) - Stage 2 2,600,494 33,015 - 2,633,509 9,726 2,623,783
—Res - Stage 3 - - 291 291 - 291
At Total 307,568,866 924,745 1,639,035 310,132,646 1,505,157 308,627,489

ERBUBBERE - EFIRUA

Pzt

BEEFHH AR MEARENEBTAEZHA
ELRENREEGFETESHENE

HEEEE -

For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance
maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

At 31 December 2019

BEE/ 4528
Gross carrying/notional amount
BHEE
BREE  REEUAT BREE

% Special  Sub-standard Bt ECL B
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RITMERRER Balance and placements with banks 23,139,527 - - 23,139,527 2424 23,137,103
S EY - Stage 1 23,139,527 - - 23,139,527 2424 23,137,103
—f&E2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[BER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -

WATESEEEZEHA Debt instruments at fair value through
L2 EhEMEFTA other comprehensive income 41,247,785 - - 41247785 27355 41,220,430
S EY - Stage 1 41,247,785 - - 41247785 27355 41,220,430
—f&E2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[BER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
DESRATIRMEB LA Debt instruments at amortised cost 15,655,922 - - 15655922 11,533 15,644,389
LY - Stage 1 15,655,922 - - 15655922 11533 15,644,389
—f&8R2 - Stage 2 - S = S = =
—fRE3 - Stage 3 - - S S S S
RFER Advances to customers 134,885,092 1,014,153 1,049,226 136,948,471 1,008,586 135,939,885
—[B&1 - Stage 1 129,025,419 - - 129025419 474635 128,550,784
—[B&R2 - Stage 2 5,859,673 1,014,153 = 6,873,826 152,754 6,721,072
LT - Stage 3 = = 1,049,226 1,049,226 381,197 668,029
BHZE Trade bills 3,381,956 = 11,907 3,393,863 1,989 3,391,874
—B&1 - Stage 1 3,356,669 = = 3,356,669 1,982 3,354,687
—[B&2 - Stage 2 25,287 = - 25,287 7 25,280
—E&3 - Stage 3 - - 11,907 11,907 - 11,907
JEGTRIE RE AR E Accrued interest and other accounts 5,244,203 4,118 59,717 5,308,038 18,561 5,289,477
—[BEA - Stage 1 5,233,405 - - 5233405 8,496 5,224,909
—[BE2 - Stage 2 10,798 4118 - 14916 598 14,318
—[BE3 - Stage 3 - - 59,717 59,717 9,467 50,250

B RIRER Loan commitments and financial

quarantees 81,210,407 23,846 10931 81,245,184 148642 81,096,542
— BB - Stage 1 78,548,873 = - 78548873 140,087 78,408,786
— g2 - Stage 2 2,661,534 23,846 - 2685380 8,555 2,676,825
—[BE3 - Stage 3 = = 10,931 10,931 = 10,931
At Total 304,764,892 1,042,117 1,131,781 306,938,790 1,219,090 305,719,700
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PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail

Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30
DPD.

Class 2 “special mention”, which generally covers loans with
31-90 DPD.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are
current in meeting commitments and for which the full repayment
of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which
borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to
credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan quality
cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans
in which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is
likely to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable
and the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/
or interest; or loans that are considered uncollectible after all
collection options have been exhausted.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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(1) ZAFEREFEHNESREE@®

BE
F1EAER |28 AREEFHR/BB-K
A E2 X SZEFH)ER o

2RI |82 AEMEERT R RB+
EB-Z R ZHFRIER

SE3MER RS AT | BB ARMEETRR
CCC+HMA T 2R ZHF R

(2 BAERENSREE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
Treasury

Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with
internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

BREE
Gross carrying amount
2020 2019

FEBERSNEE Trading assets

—ESES — Debt securities 5,080,047 8,387,953

—$T4&ETA - Derivatives 945,983 457,652
HHHTET AR Hedging derivatives 189,831 110,164
AT B2 B EEEH ABED Financial assets at fair value

BREE through profit or loss

—EBES - Debt securities - 328,768
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed
with reference to the following:

o 3.1% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2019: 2.3%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
constituted 1.14% (2019: 0.77%) of the total loans and advances
to customers; and

° 74% (2019: 77%) of the investments in debt securities and other
bills have at least an A- credit rating.

3.2.6 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

2020 2019
BN BT ERE Gross loans and advances 137,578,574 136,948,471
Rk - R EEEER Less: total impairment allowances (1,251,164)  (1,008,586)
R Net 136,327,410 135,939,885
EEREZERRBR Credit-impaired loans and advances 1,573,803 1,049,226
kR ¢ PEER3 AL Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (556,508) (381,197)
HEE Net 1,017,295 668,029
BEER DA TE Fair value of collateral held* 787,030 590,496
FEEREERRBFEEFER Credit-impaired loans and advances as

NBFBEE DL a % of total loans and advances to
customers 1.14% 0.77%

* ERBAFEREBERRTEREFREES
# MEPERIEEETE

Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of
collateral and outstanding loan balance.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§

113



RIFEER R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. HKEREEm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 EERMEm@m)
326 EF KRBz @)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

IRFIR3E BN R ARA R R EEE D RIE
ERRBHRZADL

The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance as a
percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad internal

rating classes.

2020 2019
WEEE B
HEMREREE e
ADL BOL
ERRBHK  Impairment EFXKEZ  Impairment
B2tk allowance as Aot allowance as
Loans and a % of Loans and a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
% % % %
487 Class
1—1E% 1 - pass 98.2 0.4 98.5 0.4
0 HEB|EsT 2 — special mention 0.7 11.4 0.7 10.0
3—IRARIIATR 3 - sub-standard or below 1.1 35.4 0.8 36.3
100.0 0.9 100.0 0.7
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PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(@) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
impaired under HKFRS 9

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

BFEERR
[ B R WEEE IREE DNEE
Gross  Impairment Carrying Fair value of
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
HAERK Loans to individual:
—fEAR — Credit cards 12,645 10,447 2,198 -
—RIBER - Mortgages 186,507 34,054 152,453 166,302
—Hfth - Others 415,559 185,205 230,354 88,549
REEER : Loans to corporate entities:
—HHEN - Term loans 218,901 36,303 182,598 138,547
—RIBER - Mortgages 112,384 9,142 103,242 91,163
—B5/E - Trade finance 349,314 163,020 186,294 108,633
—Hfth - Others 278,493 118,337 160,156 193,836
EERBECERERE Total credit-impaired loans 1,573,803 556,508 1,017,295 787,030
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(F) REBVMBREENFIRESER (@ Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
BEZ2EFERR BN (@) impaired under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
FEEMAD
[E\ B 42 58 B BREE NEE
Gross Impairment Carrying  Fair value of
2019412H31H At 31 December 2019 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EEREIER Credit-impaired loans
AR : Loans to individual:
—fEAR — Credit cards 16,835 14,251 2,584 -
—RIBEN - Mortgages 41,881 3,691 38,190 39,683
— HAth - Others 287,805 136,103 151,702 577
EER : Loans to corporate entities:
—BHEN — Term loans 233,055 66,321 166,734 177,317
—RIBER - Mortgages 137,177 16,159 121,018 130,594
—EBS5mE — Trade finance 180,868 61,503 119,365 137,395
—EAtb — Others 151,605 83,169 68,436 104,930
SEREZ BEREE Total credit-impaired loans 1,049,226 381,197 668,029 590,496
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

326 EF KRBz @)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(2) EHsEA U E2ERRENK (b)

() BHREEEHAEE

Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) Gross amount of overdue loans

2020 2019
BEREE BEAAR(EE
BERBHE BEiezgs
Gross Gross
amount 1h#azE amount of IH4azE
of overdue Bk overdue Atk
loans % of total loans % of total
REBEFPERERE Gross advances to customers
%60 5 which have been overdue for:
—3EAMU E=6MEA — six months or less but over
three months 240,472 0.17 180,317 0.13
—6E AL EE15E — one year or less but over
six months 136,656 0.10 250,661 0.18
—1F L E - over one year 525,674 0.38 318,703 0.23
902,802 0.65 749,681 0.54

RFRITERAF] 2020F F#H
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3. HMERREERE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
326 B RE @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z) BH3EA L L2 ERK B (@) (b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
(Continued)
(i) EEKEEEARBLZHE (i) Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
G RATFA A E against overdue loans and advances
BERRER K
REBHEE HmE BFm  EAmRRRE 2]
Outstanding Current  FRAIEZ% AIEER D BEZEE
amount of market Portion  Portion not Stage 3
loans and value of covered by covered by impairment
202012831 H At 31 December 2020 advances collateral collateral collateral allowances
BHIR(EEEF  Overdue loans and
BER KRB advances to customers 902,802 930,016 593,229 309,573 302,651
B R G
REEE WHhE HHm  EHmRREE FEER3
Outstanding Current  PAYEELD AEE D B
amount of market Portion  Portion not Stage 3
loans and value of covered by covered by impairment
2019412H31H At 31 December 2019 advances collateral collateral collateral  allowances
BEAREREES  Overdue loans and
B RER advances to customers 749,681 885,515 578,446 171,235 226,415
RAEzBRmEZRERER - LB Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,
D3 AR ELAD [ TE & EE AN 3% A o mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed

assets such as equipment.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(c) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

HER) overdue advances shown above

{h#azg Ih 4R %8
AL AL
2020 % of total 2019 % of total
BEEXR Advances to customers 374,963 0.27 270,909 0.20

P ER SR E S Stage 3 impairment allowances 141,869 112,734

327 EZZE 3.2.7 Trade bills

2020 2019

ZHE - B
—6{E AN EE1F
—1FLAE

PEERSBIEEM

BRESEREREREAER -

3.2.8 W1 #iim
RERFA ZWEER @R T

Trade bills which have been overdue for:
— one year or less but over six months - 11,907
— over one year 607 -

607 11,907

Stage 3 impairment allowances = =

The overdue trade bills are fully secured.

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

2020 2019

BELE Nature of assets
BdEkyES Repossessed properties 304,514 287,397
A Others 24,923 7,782
329,437 295,179

WEHERRZRATEARERKE - BRKBERN
IEA B Z tERAREEET ©

& 5t 7] & 38 42 {8 4 63,158,000 7 T (2019 £ :
59,274,000/ 7T ) Z /£ B A 5 T H A 473 -
TN & BRI AR B it A BT 284 2 VA S T 1 A
P ERE R B o AR BN F29 2 [ E
MEEIBTHFEBLEZEE - HEZERE
AR |EHERR ©

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$63,158,000 (2019: HK$59,274,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note
29. The relevant loans had been derecognised.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 ERERH 3.2.9 Loss allowance
TREMHR ?ﬁﬁ}%ﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬁll FOTE AN EIL[EER The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s ECL
ZEFPERNBR - BEGRE MY ER 2 FEH allowances for loans and advances to customers, loan commitments
EEEE /§1%E’]§TE§ and financial guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.
28 Retail
P ER 1 P ER2 2% &5t
BHEE BHEE BHEE BHEE
EEEE BEEE ER%EE EE%EE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
2020181H At 1 January 2020 382,703 30,024 154,044 566,771
i Transfers:
% E R Transfer to Stage 1 5,543 (5,543) - =
BYERE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (6,470) 6,878 (408) -
EIZEREERS Transfer to Stage 3 (38,929) (15,105) 54,034 =
HREREY REEREMES Effect of stage transfers and
d 7 changes in allowance (3,864) 7,563 356,833 360,532
HRFTRAE © BASREERER New financial assets originated,
ZEBMEE purchased or derecognised
during the period 47,104 8,392 (5,173) 50,323
PDs/LGDs/EADs/RIE£RIE25%  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
L) looking assumptions 15,085 8,723 258 24,066
FRIRBEER Unwind of discount 33 35 9 77
5 Write-offs - - (320,891) (329,891)
HNEE B2 E B Foreign exchange and other movements 51 - - 51
2020128318 At 31 December 2020 401,256 40,967 229,706 671,929
20191818 At 1 January 2019 355,793 18,823 150,005 524,621
i Transfers:
B ERE Transfer to Stage 1 3,714 (3,133) (581) =
BT S ER2 Transfer to Stage 2 (3,208) 3,233 (25) =
B2 S PR ERS Transfer to Stage 3 (20,277) (8,796) 29,073 =
S ER B B BT E AL Effect of stage transfers and changes in
a7 allowance (2,764) 23,481 244,777 265,494
HRFTRAE © BBASREERER New financial assets originated,
LERMEE purchased or derecognised
during the period 47,896 1,521 7,729 57,146
PDs/LGDs/EADs/AIIEEH){:%  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
2% looking assumptions 1,528 (5,195) (10,431) (14,098)
FRRRBEER Unwind of discount 68 90 24 182
% Write-offs - - (266,237) (266,237)
HINEEE % L fth B Foreign exchange and other movements (@7) - (290) (337)
2019F12831H At 31 December 2019 382,703 30,024 154,044 566,771
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3. HXERREEm) 3.
3.2 FERM@m)
329 EEEE®)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

i1 3 Corporate
P EX1 P ER2 P& ER3 &5t
RHEE AHEE BHEE RHEE
EiEEE BEEE ER%EE EE%EE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
20201 81H At 1 January 2020 232,019 131,285 227,153 590,457
% Transfers:
B ERE Transfer to Stage 1 8,410 (8,410) - -
EIZEREERD Transfer to Stage 2 (25,941) 25,941 - -
EIZEREERS Transfer to Stage 3 (796) (13,860) 14,656 -
SR KRB B PTEE Effect of stage transfers and
pd-% changes in allowance (3,971) 35,881 55,545 87,455
HIAETIRAE © B ASREHRER New financial assets originated,
ZEREE purchased or derecognised
during the period 17,475 (11,432) (32,156) (26,113)
PDs/LGDs/EADs/AIEERIEE%  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
ZEE looking assumptions 3,047 15,825 192,125 210,997
FRRRBAER Unwind of discount 127 1,313 50 1,490
HisH Write-offs - - (130,271) (130,271)
HINEEE % H fth & Foreign exchange and other movements 1,048 441 (300) 1,189
2020128314 At 31 December 2020 231,418 176,984 326,802 735,204
2019F1A1H At 1 January 2019 207,514 115,053 213,002 535,569
8% Transfers:
815 B R ER Transfer to Stage 1 7,961 (7,961) = =
B R Transfer to Stage 2 (7,318) 11,216 (3,898) =
B ERES Transfer to Stage 3 (1,353) (1,371) 2,724 -
MR BRER RERREEL Effect of stage transfers and
P changes in allowance (4,540) 4,874 106,856 107,190
HAAETRA © B ASREHRER New financial assets originated,
L ERMEE purchased or derecognised
during the period 67,424 10,456 (37,096) 40,784
PDs/LGDs/EADs/AIIEEHf:%  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
L) looking assumptions (37,455) (2,326) 37,412 (2,369)
FRERALTR Unwind of discount 134 1,501 38 1,673
sy Write-offs - - (91,623) (91,623)
HINGEE T F At Foreign exchange and other movements (348) (157) (262) (767)
2019F12831H At 31 December 2019 232,019 131,285 227,153 590,457
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

TRBIRE BB 55 AR 95k AN 5 B R R ER The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross
ZEBRREMEFERIBR  RAEAERE exposure (in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of loans and

FEERIBREROLESR LR -

advances to customers and notional amount of loan commitments and
financial guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.

€ Retail
P B f B2 fis E23 &t
EBREE E#A%E E 4% B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 109,345,044 558,641 346,533 110,250,218
B - Transfers:
BT 2 PR R Transfer to Stage 1 93,558 (90,182) (3,376) -
SR S PRER2 Transfer to Stage 2 (306,510) 310,039 (3,529) -
B SR ERS Transfer to Stage 3 (352,725) (255,651) 608,376 =
BREZUN R R E E) Changes of gross exposure
other than modifications (9,962) (62,524) (3,402) (75,888)
T Write-offs - - (329,891) (329,891)
NG R E fh 2 Foreign exchange and other movements 53,616 - - 53,616
2020128318 At 31 December 2020 108,823,021 460,323 614,711 109,898,055
20191 A1H At 1 January 2019 105,622,646 227,866 343,679 106,194,191
B Transfers:
B ERE Transfer to Stage 1 53,903 (49,443) (4,460 =
EIZEREERD Transfer to Stage 2 (464,557) 464,586 (29) -
R TR Transfer to Stage 3 (296,364) (46,382) 342,746 -
BREMINZ R BEEE) Changes of gross exposure
other than modifications 4,486,410 (37,986) (68,839) 4,379,585
b6z Write-offs - - (266,237) (266,237)
GNGE K LA Foreign exchange and other movements (56,994) - (327) (57,321)
2019F12H31H At 31 December 2019 109,345,044 558,641 346,533 110,250,218
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 EERR®m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 EEEME#) 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
¥ Corporate
f Ex1 P ER2 P ER3 &t
R A R EREAEE EEAEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 98,229,248 9,000,565 713,624 107,943,437
i Transfers:
81 2 PR R Transfer to Stage 1 1,503,040 (1,503,040) - -
B B fRER2 Transfer to Stage 2 (6,360,069) 6,360,069 - -
B2 S PR ERS Transfer to Stage 3 (175,608) (106,228) 281,836 -
BrEIN BB AREEEE) Changes of gross exposure
other than modifications (1,313,794) (590,064) 97,774 (1,806,084)
HisH Write-offs - - (130,271) (130,271)
AINGE e H A B Foreign exchange and other movements 160,778 5,359 (3,580) 162,557
2020%F12A31H At 31 December 2020 92,043,595 13,166,661 959,383 106,169,639
20191 A1H At 1 January 2019 92,318,549 6,321,440 640,203 99,280,192
B Transfers:
BT 2 PR R Transfer to Stage 1 772,908 (772,908) - =
BB RER2 Transfer to Stage 2 (2,982,272) 3,007,953 (25,681) -
B ERES Transfer to Stage 3 (206,476) (51,827) 258,303 -
BREZUN BB AETEEE Changes of gross exposure
other than modifications 8,397,654 498,121 (66,069) 8,829,706
T g Write-offs - - (91,623) (91,623)
4NGE Bz ELqth B Foreign exchange and other movements (71,115) (2,214) (1,509) (74,838)
201912 A31H At 31 December 2019 98,229,248 9,000,565 713,624 107,943,437

HBEHMEEHIITANTARRZ25 -

MEASBRAS NERTOERIIABBRA
FIRRANFEFEBEEFH T AR MEE W
WEBS TR - 2REMER RN F AL SRR

% o

year’s presentation.

transition during the year.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§

Comparative information has been re-presented to conform to current

Treasury portfolio, which consists of cash and balances with banks
and debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, are classified in Stage 1 with no stage
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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3. HXERREEm)

3.2 EERMEm@)

[ /) () (/N ) [ /N ) [ /) -
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.10 EH# 3.2.10 Debt securities
TRIRA20204F 2019412 A31 BT irs The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating

BE 2RO 2 B

agency designation at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

UAFE

UAVERE  HEARZH

BEZ® GARMZE
STARE KENEREE DEERRA

HERMEE Financial HIBR
Financial assets at SREE
BEEE assets at fair value Financial
BREE fairvalue  through other assets at
Trading through comprehensive amortised D
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 assets profit or loss income cost Total
AAA AAA - - 2,126,332 255,484 2,381,816
AA-EAA+ AA- to AA+ 5,080,047 - 12,313,514 3,177,080 20,570,641
A-2A+ A-to A+ - - 17,313,130 11,162,453 28,475,583
B R EERA- Rated but lower than A- - - 6,537,625 4,002,501 10,540,126
RERHR Unrated - - 3,424,642 4,260,947 7,685,589
Ch Total 5,080,047 - 41,715,243 22,858,465 69,653,755
WATE
NATE:E  rBEEEH
BHZ SAEMEE
AAER WEMeREE IAEEBARK R
NeREE Financial 5l BRAY
Financial assets at PRERE
FIEEE assets at fair value Financial
REEE fairvalue  through other assets at
Trading through ~ comprehensive amortised At
2019412 A31H At 31 December 2019 assets profit or loss income cost Total
AAA AAA - - 2,811,206 167,541 2,978,747
AA-EAA+ AA- to AA+ 8,387,953 - 11,578,863 1,985,552 21,952,368
A-ZA+ A-to A+ = 328,768 18,205,755 7,456,374 25,990,897
B RIBERA- Rated but lower than A- - - 5,839,418 2,248,100 8,087,518
B Unrated - - 3,614,976 3,798,355 7,413,331
A&t Total 8,387,953 328,768 42,050,218 15,655,922 66,422,861

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a® a® a® a® a» a® a® a® [ J
[ J a® a» a® a® a® a® oD &b a® a®
mm-m mmm-m Qmm-m mmmm mm-m [ /N )
3. HMERREERE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
32 FERM@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
1 FEEEERBEZEMEEZREBEEF 3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
BE exposure
() B (@) Geographical sectors
BEFERZEFHATIHIREE Z RERED Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
B2 ERAMEDEE - —RME - EEX according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
BRI BRREERANR 2 RIEF - @ account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when
118 - an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area which is

different from that of the borrower.

TRARFEREEIREH AN The following table analyses gross advances to customers by
geographical area.

20204 20194
124318 12A318
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

REEREE Gross advances to customers
—&b - Hong Kong 115,234,954 113,233,394
— - China 7,630,058 7,940,270
—RF - Macau 13,687,338 14,802,077
—HAh - Others 1,026,224 972,730

137,578,574 136,948,471

AEFHRITAR DT 20205F F3] 125
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXERREEm)
3.2 EERMEm@m)

2N B EERRZ EMEEZEBRES

EEm®@)
(Z) 17%
g/g /Tyi ?g fffT%&g/Tyk /\ig

(1 4 a® I'I a®
> (/N ) @ @ P> QQ-Q @ @

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors

Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified

according to the usage of loans

2020 2019
EBBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TR Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEEERE - Property development 5,611,830 4,700,618
— R E — Property investment 17,221,674 15,972,169
— SR — Financial concerns 5,756,814 6,057,400
—IRELL - Stockbrokers 1,733,867 1,585,717
— P ETERE - Wholesale and retail trade 6,004,660 6,455,795
—BUER - Manufacturing 1,790,941 1,978,378
— B ME R — Transport and transport equipment 2,512,559 3,496,770
—FRE4ES) — Recreational activities 96,223 103,724
— BB - Information technology 51,827 52,976
—Hfth - Others 6,003,396 4,464,895
46,783,791 44,868,442
fEA Individuals
-BEIEEEEEE] - — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FAAZ2EEES & Home Ownership Scheme,
[EEHESEFEXR Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 558,428 584,349
—BEHMEEMEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 31,260,619 29,864,112
—EARER — Credit card advances 3,610,141 3,761,021
—Hfh - Others 13,079,682 13,196,910
48,508,870 47,406,392
EEREANER Loans for use in Hong Kong 95,292,661 92,274,834
2 ZmE (5E(1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 8,115,481 8,815,573
EBBAIMERNER(FEEQ)) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 34,170,432 35,858,064
137,578,574 136,948,471
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PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors (Continued)

Note:

(1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank)
totalling HK$260,328,000 (31 December 2019: HK$294,310,000)
are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

2 Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a» a® a® a® a» a® a® a® a® a® a»
W ED ¢OED ¢ ED ¢ TP ¢, THED ¢HTD g D @ TP ¢ @ TOED ¢ TP ¢ D ¢
[ /N ) - [ /N ] [ /N [ /N € [ /N ] [ /N ] [ /N ) -
3. HMERREE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 WHRR@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
RIRIT 2B ARIRFIEERITRODBR A A Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (‘BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
(MRPIFERIT ) RAFRIT(RE) BR QA Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
([RFRIT(FE) DIRBEE —EB ERBMBER treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies and
R AT AR GRIT R E 2 AR RE T 35 R AE B M TT H A within the market risk management framework set by the Bank. The
TZHEEE - ARITZERERE R EE IR RMCD of the Bank oversees the market risk arising from the treasury
MERRBEBRMIEERITEANBIT(FR)ME operations of BCM and DSB China to ensure that the risk controls put
BB M RAR - BRE BRG] B8R in place are commensurate with their businesses and consistent with
K ZE 75 [ 27 7 B B A EE— B o the Group standards.
AEEREHEEERLKRBITR 2 MSRRERT The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
B2 AR EIRER MR © in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.
331 FEEERZTHEERE 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book
AEEZEERNA @ EIMNE - BERFES - ExlE In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
BHERITET R EERHAERFEMSERE positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.
() mERBERSE (@) Market risk measurement technique
ERMZEARERE  AEEFERASEERE In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
RIRA 2 AT B TS R R s s Rk risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
REBEZRRBEEEERN - TZARTER and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
EEETIREE 2 ST E AT The major measurement techniques used to measure and control
market risk are outlined below.
128 DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(a)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
one calendar year using a method known as historical
simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR,
are monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$2,389,000 (2019: HK$3,280,000).

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

Do Dew Dew Duw Senan DEw o @» an S I ep Ew e IS @w S e O3
3. HMEBEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 WHRR@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
331 FEEERZ S EE®) 3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
() mERMITESEA® (@) Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) B AE (i)  Stress tests

BRI R 5 T AT R HIR 2
BEBERZOE AREEREE
HETHNENAREE  RRERE
DR - TTERES R AR T HETT
TRENEE  RMEAREBAAR - 77
AR A RTER LB N E IR R E R
RASETRE - thHh - TRatEFR
EEBERZRAE 2B BRAFNGEE
BHEEEEKTFRERE TSN
B IR IR E B BB IRAHRE © 1t
Sh - ETHEBENRBIER—HEXK
TREUFEARERBERAEZAR
RBIKFRIFTRE A T 5 B BRI
B o

BHARZERAESERAREL

(2) mEEBREMRE

(b)

BZE2020F12A31H1E12(8A
12 months to 31 December 2020

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
applying possible stress events to specific positions or
portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate the
maximum size of market stress that the Group can endure
before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.
VaR summary of trading portfolio

#ZE2019F12A31H 1E12{8 R
12 months to 31 December 2019

15 58] B 14 =0 =K

Average High Low Average High Low

4INGEE 2\ fix Foreign exchange risk 1,925 3,559 291 2,666 3,462 1,106
A= B Interest rate risk 1,128 3,544 494 1,525 2,650 522
el All risks 2,389 3,916 574 3,280 4,502 2,071
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PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions and
credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are regularly
performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the Group’s
banking book portfolios and manage it against the established

control measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the market
risk of the banking book.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB?”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries in
Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by
the Treasury Division of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$72 million higher (2019: HK$23 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$41 million lower (2019: HK$23 million lower).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in
its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”). From an earnings
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the net income
arising from future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
From an economic value perspective, interest rate risk is
the risk that the economic value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from both
perspectives in the banking book. As such, the interest
margins or net interest income and the economic value of
the capital may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and monitor
the interest rate impacts through scenario analysis and
stress testing regularly.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)
(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up shock
under the HKMA'’s standard parallel up scenario, with
other variables held constant, the impact on earnings over
the next 12 months and the impact on economic value of
equity would have been HK$44 million higher and HK$435
million lower respectively (2019: HK$185 million higher and
HK$504 million lower respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
broadly on the same basis for both 2019 and 2020.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s
investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed
to other price risks. Consequently, the value of such investments
could change significantly depending on a variety of factors including
liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might affect
individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 WHRR @ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
333 SMEEEE 3.3.3 Currency risk
TR A EBIZEEE S RABEZETHZ The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
CMEERAE  UREEABERINGEERF liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit
BREERE 2SR - commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by
currency.
B E bk AR% Het &t
2020128318 At 31 December 2020 HKD Usb MOP RMB Others Total
EE Assets
Re RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 6,113,630 4,154,611 488,812  1,98628 3206771 15,262,452
ERTIZE12(8R M35 Placements with banks maturing between
iz one and twelve months 1,421,182 71,516 - 3,689,143 167,924 5,355,765
REEERENES Trading securities 5,080,047 - - - - 5080047
WATEE A AES Financial assets at fair value through
STABRREREE profit or loss - - - - - -
fTEERTA Derivative financial instruments 75,404 1,031,728 - 2,320 26,362 1,135,814
RBEEAREMER Advances and other accounts 105,408,413 20,034,022 8,043,598 10,738,269 2,608,237 146,832,539
WATESrZRAZEEA Financial assets at fair value through
H2ENENEREE other comprehensive income 10,027,598 31,055,903 36,821 65,624 629,977 41,815,923
B AT RR S BEE Financial assets at amortised cost 1,722,024 18,090,666 1,337,977 1,484,883 198,693 22,834,243
SREESH Total financial assets 129,848,298 74,444,446 9,907,208 17,278,867 6,837,964 238,316,783
aff Liabilities
iGGHE S Deposits from banks 125,921 1,928,551 - 1,365,645 80,325 3,500,442
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments 80,530 3,101,754 - 1,230 7,674 3,191,188
REEERRNAR Trading liabilities 1,570,675 - - - - 1570675
XEEH Deposits from customers 123,784,023 36,677,404 9,759,059 13,484,746 7,536,449 191,241,681
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,734,650 6,391,152 - = = 8,125,802
kEER Subordinated notes - 3,828,458 - - - 3,828,458
HinfR B kB Other accounts and accruals 4,572,871 1,788,976 152,227 468,225 53,489 7,035,788
SRAESH Total financial liabilities 131,868,670 53,716,295 9,911,286 15,319,846 7,677,937 218,494,034
BERERABARE Net on-balance sheet positions (2,020,372) 20,728,151 (4,078) 1,959,021 (839,973) 19,822,749
EESERMERERTE Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 21124262 (21,136,477) - (47605 757213 (202,607)
EERE Credit commitments 66,383,165 8,126,556 1,988,267 1,824,825 166,307 78,489,120
* BEBERINGFRBEFHETZRANBEARE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
EYNESLHRGL T INESRITE T MG B4 o amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are
principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
RFRITERAF] 2020F F#H 135
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3. HXERREEm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 WHRR@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 SPEE B ) 3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)
BT e pidiils ARE Eth A
2019124318 At 31 December 2019 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
BE RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 4,902,592 4,507,189 522,948 3,697,835 4,011,567 17,642,131
ERMIZE12(EAREIE Placements with banks maturing
MR between one and twelve months 2,053,593 809,871 - 2,200,522 430,986 5,494,972
FEEBRENES Trading securities 8,387,953 = = = - 8387953
YNEER LS 1) Financial assets at fair value through
FAESHEREBE profit or loss - 328,768 - - - 328,768
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 19,256 521,810 - 15 26,735 567,816
REEDRAMER Advances and other accounts 105,066,781 18,802,530 8,884,957 9,148,459 2,718,509 144,621,236
AT (A2 AEEEEA Financial assets at fair value through
HpzAREnEeREE other comprehensive income 11,332,934 30,288,737 36,949 29,987 474,598 42,163,205
SABARRATRN S REE Financial assets at amortised cost 944,930 11,285,608 2,225,198 1,188,653 - 15,644,389
SREEA Total financial assets 132,708,039 66,544,513 11,670,052 16,265,471 7,662,395 234,850,470
a8 Liabilities
ROER Deposits from banks 1,224,195 1,240,874 - - - 2,465,069
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 21,648 1,067,788 - 313 3,279 1,093,028
FEEERENAR Trading liabilties 5,516,558 - = = - 5516558
REREN Deposits from customers 115,954,553 36,824,217 10,092,572 13,424,982 7,248,153 183,544,477
BRINERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,737,293 1,013,532 - - - 6,750,825
BEER Subordinated notes - 5,510,181 - - - 5,510,181
HifRE LTk Other accounts and accruals 8,209,474 1,854,959 186,507 412,496 51,902 10,805,338
SRAEAT Total financial liabilities 136,753,721 47,511,551 10,279,079 13,837,791 7,303,334 215,685,476
BEABRNERESR Net on-balance sheet positions (4,045,682) 19,032,962 1,390,973 2,427,680 359,061 19,164,994
BERERIGREARTR Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 20,587,701 (18,766,459) - (1,327,480) (441,468) 52,300
EEAE Credit commitments 69,092,585 7,903,019 1,959,952 2,100,341 189,287 81,245,184
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.

fEANL
38R E3k:d 1H0E
AT Over B5% SEML Rie
3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest &5
2020F12A31A At 31 December 2020 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
B RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 10,926,539 - - - 4335913 15,262,452
ERTE120HANZIH Placements with banks maturing
HER between one and twelve months 1,906,922 3,448,843 - - - 5,355,765
?—W‘é’ ERBNES Trading securities 2,743,279 2,306,679 30,089 - - 5,080,047
AL EHEREE Financial assets at fair value
W\{E HEREE through profit or loss - - - - = =
ITEERBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,135,814 1,135,814
%EE?&&%E&E Advances and other accounts 124,819,317 9,713,920 5,616,149 268,641 6,414,512 146,832,539
ADFERE B EEEA Financial assets at fair value through
A2 ENRNEREE other comprehensive income 10,058,621 6460216 16783685 8,412,722 100679 41,815,923
w%ﬁ%ﬁkm&lﬁmémﬂﬁfi Financial assets at amortised cost 2,927,087 2307555 9899995 7,694,675 4731 22,834,243
SREEST Total financial assets 153,381,965 24,237,213  32,329918 16,376,038 11,991,649 238,316,783
af Liabilities
RER Deposits from banks 3,492,389 - - - 8,053 3,500,442
fEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,191,188 3,191,188
REEERRNAR Trading liabilities 1,129,526 440,132 1,017 - - 1570675
BPREH Deposits from customers 162,596,075 11,521,431 2,285,593 - 14,838,582 191,241,681
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 4,257,530 3,766,378 101,894 - - 8,125,802
BEED Subordinated notes - 1,964,475 1,863,983 - - 3,828,458
AR A RER Other accounts and accruals 546,910 121,134 299,485 218,182 5850,077 7,035,788
SREEET Total financial liabilities 172,022,430 17,813,550 4,551,972 218,182 23,887,000 218,494,034
FEHBERSH(REHE) Total interest sensitivity gap
(unadjusted)* (18,640,465) 6,423,663 27,777,946 16,157,856
FIRTATEA YV EE Effect of interest rate derivative
contracts 29,430,281 2,830,791  (17,501,718)  (14,759,355)
FIERBERAT (KH%) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 10,789,816 9,254,454 10,276,228 1,398,501

* RAEFHEN SR EENREEABRANEEM *
BEMNFAEETE - KHEMNSHZREEDA
FUBE A X AR ETRMERITE TR S MR

R into to mitigate interest rate risk.

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered

AFTRITAR AT 20205F F 3, 137
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3. HMERREERE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 MmEEA@m 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.34 FIFEmEEE &) 3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

fERMNE
3fEA Z1F 1R E
FLAT Over Z5F 5L THE
3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest At

2019512310 At 31 December 2019 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Re RERTHEE Cash and balances with banks 16,243,422 - - S 1,398709 17,642,131
ERTZE128 AR Placements with banks maturing between

R one and twelve months 4,488,646 1,006,326 - - - 5,494,972
KEEERRNES Trading securities 4,721,761 3,666,192 = = = 8,387,953
NATEEEAHED Financial assets at fair value through

SABRHNEREE profit or loss 328,768 - - - - 328,768
(TESRTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 567,816 567,816
REERREMEE Advances and other accounts 121,407,772 7,441,193 9,379,096 1,437,664 4955511 144,621,236
IATFE:HEREZH AL Financial assets at fair value through

2ANEREREE other comprehensive income 9,164,421 4,755,593 18,246,199 9,884,005 112,987 42,163,205
PSR AR S RAE Financial assets at amortised cost 3,280,377 2,557,807 5,524,905 4,276,567 4,733 15,644,389
SREEA Total financial assets 159,635,167 19,427,111 33,150,200 15,598,236 7,039,756 234,850,470
afE Liabilities
R Deposits from banks 681,021 - 826,811 - 957,237 2,465,069
fTEeRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,093,028 1,093,028
BEEERRNAR Trading liabilities 4,611,160 895,491 9,907 - - 5516558
RERR Deposits from customers 143,567,182 29,179,214 3,578,320 - 7,219,761 183,544,477
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 2,222,760 4,059,898 468,167 - - 6,750,825
BERE Subordinated notes 1,755,635 - 3,754,546 - - 5,510,181
HinfR B kB Other accounts and accruals 347,199 124,386 239,772 22565 10,071,416 10,805,338
SREES Total financial liabilities 153,184,957 34,258,989 8,877,523 22,565 19,341,442 215,685,476
FIBBRERAT (REHARE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* 6,450,210 (14,831,878) 24272677 15,575,671
HETETRAH T2 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 17,997,105 3,096,492 (7,507,472  (13,586,125)
FIB SR Z R A T (T A% ) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 24447315  (11,735,386) 16,765,205 1,989,546
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand severe liquidity stresses. The Group
has adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) and the Core
Funding Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory standards specified by the
HKMA for reporting on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period,
the Group had maintained sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above
the statutory minimum of 25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk
management framework in accordance with the HKMA'’s requirements
set forth in the SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision
of Liquidity Risk” and the SPM module LM-2 on “Sound Systems and
Controls for Liquidity Risk Management”. The SPM LM-1 is to provide
the approach adopted by the HKMA for supervising and assessing the
liquidity risk of banks while the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement
the liquidity sound principles formulated by the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity
risk management standards of banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements
and projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including
the LMR, CFR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. In
addition, material changes in the liquidity risk metrics together with
any corresponding proposed mitigation actions will be reviewed by
ALCO. Appropriate limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and
sufficient liquid assets are held to ensure that the Group can maintain
a sufficient level of stable funding to support its asset growth. The
Treasury Division is responsible for the day-to-day management of
funding and liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for the
measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily
and monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress
testing. The Financial Control Division handles regulatory reporting in
relation to liquidity risk, and coordinates the regular forecast of loans
and deposits, and LMR, CFR, budget and analysis relating to liquidity
and funding management.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis of
the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as
the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical
observations. The cash flow projections also take into account the
historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn
lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as standby letters
of credit and guarantees. The Group always maintains an adequate
liquidity cushion, which is composed of high quality marketable
securities with sufficient market depth to meet its liquidity needs at all
times, even under adverse market conditions. Eligible securities in the
cushion mainly have low risk and simple structure and can be readily
sold or used as collateral to obtain funds within a short period of time.
Debt securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure
their market liquidity.
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3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

HEET In HK$ million
20205 20194
12A31H 12H31H
A As at As at
Internal EAR%EA| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2020 2019
ERF RIEEERBEIREENIAT - ZEERRTT - MEABRBRAS LD 16,150 16,697
EERMBETHERZEAREEROBNE EES
Tier 1 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
FE2AMR BRIECERBEIREENBT - ZEERRT  REBMLKLIESR 6,847 6,468
BEBETHERZELEE R20% N FEZS
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and non-
financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight under the
Basel Il Standardised Approach
F2BA 2L EEREBERL A BRENREBEEARFLERN RS EE 37,732 31,715
MRS RBBETHIREREMBERE S
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate or

financial institutions with at least an investment grade and those
securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets” under the
liquidity maintenance ratio

KFRITAR AR 2020F F
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help in identifying any emerging risk at early stage. The
Group maintains a contingency plan that sets out its strategies for
dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.
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3. HHERREEm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBELEK@m) 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
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3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the

afF o reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,
the earliest callable date.
1fARRL
{838 A
gUT  MEAML
188 3months BE 150
R HUT o less Over B58 SELE
Repayable Upto but over 3months  Over 1 year Over E:FEARH H
2020512A31A At 31 December 2020 on demand 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years 5years Indefinite Total
EE Assets
B¢ RERITRERS Cash and balances with banks 4613947 6775944 3,872,561 - - - - 15,262,452
ERTIZE12(EAR Placements with banks maturing
B iligreb between one and twelve
months - - 1,906,922 3,448,843 - - - 5,355,765
%WEE%E@‘ % Trading securities - 789,485 1,953,794 2,306,679 30,089 - - 5,080,047
ALTE;FEAEE Financial assets at fair value

Miﬂmﬁ’]ﬁ HEE through profit or loss - - - - = = - =
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 184,892 373,886 362,305 182,301 32,430 - 1,135814
RIE% R R R Advances and other accounts 7538882 23,628,026 12,290,148 21,061,954 39,489,609 41,806,785 1,017,135 146,832,539

ANTE;EAEES Financial assets at fair value

Eﬂ\ﬁi\ﬁﬁ@uﬁ(éﬁﬂ through other comprehensive

SREE income - 1,583,228 6,074,166 7447465 18,197,663 8,412,722 100,679 41,815,923
IR AT S R Financial assets at

BE amortised cost - 868,844 867,655 2,307,684 11,090,662 7,694,667 4731 22,834,243
BERARE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 42mer 4217927
2 ﬂ?"%‘J/\%ﬁxé Investments in jointly

controlled entities - - - - - - 105,553 105,553
HE Goodwill - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
BWAE Intangible assets - - - - - - 58,252 58,252
TEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3866036 3,866,036
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 682,911 682,911
ERERBEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 124,680 - - 124,680
RE Total assets 12,152,829 33,830,419 27,339,132 36,934,930 69,115,004 57,946,604 10,826,675 248,145,593
8k Liabilities
BOGR Deposits from banks 137,295 1,650,234 1,712,913 - - - - 3500442
ITEERTA Derivative financial instruments - 172,487 318,983 369,288  1,043400 1,287,030 - 3,191,188
BEEEREMNER Trading liabilities - 160,498 969,028 440,132 1,017 - - 1,570,675
REEH Deposits from customers 102,378,150 69,702,283 9,600,278 6,927,338 2,633,632 - - 191,241,681
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued - 1,007,680 464932 6,551,296 101,804 - - 8125802
#EER Subordinated notes - - - 1964475 1,863,983 - - 3808458
fgak Lease liabilities - 15,328 38,465 121,133 299,487 218,181 - 692,594
iR E ki Other accounts and accruals,

TeREREakE excluding lease liabilities 19,078 2,297,694 419,301 894,871 704,390 1,062,585 945,275 6,343,194
NEFIESE Current income tax liabilities - - - 382,648 - - - 382,648
BREREARE Deferred income tax liabilties - - - - 11,598 - = 11,598
gEA Total liabilities 102,534,528 75,006,204 13,523,900 17,651,181 6,659,401 2,567,796 945,275 218,888,280
FREEEE Net liquidity gap (90,381,694)  (41,175,785) 13815232 19,283,749 62,455,608 55,378,808 9,881,400 29,257,313
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3. HMERREERE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBELER@ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
342 FHHZH @) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1EANRE
ERT
FUAT  SEAME
1B 3months 2E 1EMNE
HHER HUT or less Over B5E SEMNE
Repayable Upto butover ~ 3months  Over1year Over EFHAH fif
20191274318 At 31 December 2019 on demand 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years 5years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
R RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 2683792  9462,057  5496,282 - - - - 17,642,131
EBMZE2[ERR Placements with banks maturing

HEBEnER between one and twelve months - - 4488646 1,006,326 - - - 5494972
HEEERENES Trading securities - 1,421,589 3,300,172 3,666,192 - - - 8,387,953
PUNTEREEEY £ Financial assets at fair value through

SABRHEREE profit or loss - 209,681 119,087 - - - - 328,768
fESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 113,890 163,459 161,405 91,732 37,330 - 567,816
FEERREMEE Advances and other accounts 8249780 24,796,575 12,110,732 16,981,187 39,682,449 41,608,601 1,196,912 144,621,236
IATEHEAER Financial assets at fair value

A2 Ele through other comprehensive

MemEE income - 4575692 3,064,141 4755593 19,770,787 9,884,005 112,987 42,163,205
DAE R AT Financial assets at

CRHAE amortised cost - 1,183,886 1,324,750 2,557,807 6,296,646 4,276,567 4733 15,644,389
AN EIRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 3888775 3,888,775
RREHEERE Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 96,363 96,363
BE Goodwil - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
Bl EE Intangible assets - - - - - - 58,252 58,252
HERAMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3208210 3228270
REME Investment properties - - - - - - 1,208,641 1,208,641
EtRESE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 115,216 - - 115,216
BEAH Total assets 10,933,572 41763370 30,067,269 29,128,510 65,956,830 55,801,503 10,606,623 244,257,677
af Liabilities
RIER Deposits from banks 136,602 1,501,656 - - 826,811 - - 2,465,069
fESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 86,900 125,357 148,847 302,558 429,366 - 1,093,028
REEERENEE Trading liabilities - 1,839,326 2,771,834 895,491 9,907 - - 5,516,558
REREH Deposits from customers 82,410,910 62,799,830 23,362,532 11,393,040 3,570,836 7,329 - 183,544,477
BREANERE Certificates of deposit issued - 1183319 1030441 4,050,898 468,167 - - 6750825
{&fBfER Subordinated notes - - 175583 - 3754546 - - 5510181
fEaE Lease liabilities - 15,022 29,855 124,386 239,772 22,565 - 431,600
EtiRE RER Other accounts and accruals,

TaEHEAE excluding lease liabilities 23,419 5,483,732 858,632 1,364,373 687,307 1,221,448 734,827 10,373,738
EREAR Current income tax liabilties - 9,567 - 461,181 - - - 40748
ERLREEE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 17,293 - - 17,293
A Total liabilities 82,570,931 72,919,352 29943286 18,447,216 9,877,197 1,680,708 734,827 216,173,517
FREEE Net liquidity gap (71,637,359)  (31,155,982) 123983 10,681,294 56,079,633 54,120,795 9,871,796 28,084,160
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity is shown as follows:

1f8A
Bk
{B3f8 A 3fEA
GUT Bk
1A 3months BE 1E)E
JHRE FUT or less Over 5 SENE 5]
Repayable Upto  butover ~ 3months  Over1year QOver BH i
on demand 1 month imonth  tolyear to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
20205128318 At 31 December 2020
FERER Certificates of deposit held inclued in:
WAFEER ARSI Financial assets at fair value through
EhrEbENEREE other comprehensive income - - - 100110 244,238 - - 344348
g ATIEN S RAE Financial assets at amortised cost - 238,090 99,967 1,407,544 - - - 1,745,601
2019512318 At 31 December 2019
BREAAH: Certificates of deposit held included in:
WAFEERESEHA Financial assets at fair value through
R EiENeREE other comprehensive income - - 13,989 - 100,110 - - 114099
ISR AT S REE Financial assets at amortised cost - 416,308 300,000 644,994 90,000 - - 1451302

BERABEHRRFRERMZZOELE S
BEEE+THER - HRETHNEBRZEESR
TEEWHMR R AEER - FRTME - T24E
FEMBERL N EE - THRENFEMAEESA
e - B g ERRR -

BEHBENIHERAGENRANEREB
MERENES  EFEEERBES REREF

8 1%
FREFRDHFEARNEERE -

AEE-—RIEAZ=7eREFHEBZEZED
RES  ENERNERERERTABRIEAN
RBESFRELRAENTE - ARREEE
AERFHRKIEABASRES - FARE
HEEZEEAENRENANBESBRRLER
BENASHNK -

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management
of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and of different
types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but
also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

° Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps;

o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency
interest rate swaps; and

° Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
MBAL LB 3EAMUL
EAFUT ESE:3 1€ E
1EAZLT 3 months or Over Z5F
Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5ELLE &3t
2020%12A31R At 31 December 2020 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FFTETABRER Non-derivative cash flow
B Liabilities
BRITER Deposits from banks 1,805,393 1,701,134 4,098 - - 3,510,625
RPRER Deposits from customers 127,793,193 49,940,606 11,907,828 2,713,224 - 192,354,851
HEEERENAE Trading liabilities 160,500 969,008 440,126 1,008 - 1,570,642
BRI HE Certificates of deposit issued 1,032,951 473,063 6,598,777 102,543 - 8,207,334
RIEGER Subordinated notes 43,361 - 2,063,648 1,962,136 - 4,069,145
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16,242 40,188 127,546 318,610 222,892 725,478
Hivgfs Other liabilities 2,154,246 648,539 310,372 - 253,054 3,366,211
Bffesm Total liabilities
(A#35R) (contractual maturity dates) 133,005,886 53,772,538 21,452,395 5,097,521 475,946 213,804,286
FETARSR Derivative cash flow
RYEEE Derivative financial
TESmMIA instruments settled
on net basis (16,257) 940 314 (554) 594 (14,963)
RIEBREEY Derivative financial
TESmMIA instruments settled
on a gross basis
Dol Total outflow 11,706,176 | | 21,479,924 29,343,852 3,977,676 1,256,574 | | 67,764,202
MABE Total inflow (11,649,551) | | (21,399,229) | | (28,940,253) (2,188,269) (634,012) | | (64,811,314)
56,625 80,695 403,599 1,789,407 622,562 2,952,888
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3. HXERREEm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 RBESER@® 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
343 BHEABIE Az KB BB &) 3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)
1E A LR 3fEAE
SEALLT Z[4E 1A
1fAAZAT 3 monthsor Over B56F
Upto  less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5L\ E Az
2019%12A31H At 31 December 2019 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over 5 years Total
FTETEBER Non-derivative cash flow
BE Liabilities
RIER Deposits from banks 1,642,858 7,132 4,081 826,958 - 2,481,029
BEER Deposits from customers 106,046,132 45,555,009 30,157,078 3,983,055 - 185,741,274
HEEERENAE Trading liabilities 1,840,000 2,781,000 904,717 10,119 - 5,535,836
BETNTEDGE Certificates of deposit issued 1,114,587 1,053,599 4,257,623 483,697 - 6,909,506
BEREK Subordinated notes 43,557 1,809,075 126,074 4,088,018 - 6,066,724
HEERE Lease liabilities 15,993 31,703 131,226 251,852 24,649 455,423
Hiv B g Other liabilities 5,437,434 757,219 315,274 - 345,679 6,855,606
BEAE Total liabilities
(BHEIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 116,140,561 51,994,737 35,896,073 9,643,699 370,328 214,045,398
PTHET AR SR Derivative cash flow
BEBEE Derivative financial instruments
TESBTA settled on net basis (14,014) (6,393) (41,969) (6,266) - (68,642)
REEEE Derivative financial instruments
fTEE®MIA settled on a gross basis
i Total outflow 28,484,074 24,631,710 31,354,261 3,621,619 1,346,641 89,438,305
Nt Total inflow (28,463,955) | | (24,642,771) | | (31,352,847) (3,313,787) (1,177,818) | | (88,951,178)
20,119 (11,061) 1,414 307,832 168,823 487,127
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

o Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments

WAL BEH)

s REHRAABARGIRNBN ZHBE .

(K

o AKRERABAZTAIBUEKLERAARER .
ARAEN 2 RIEBE N RERE © &

that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

where a Group company is the lessee; and

Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments

o HBERERREIEREE- e  Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1R 150 E 5L E
No later 255 Over &5t
2020F12831H At 31 December 2020 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
ERRIE Loan commitments 74,263,218 2,176,395 19,751 76,459,364
BR - AR Guarantees, acceptances and
Hth & BARA other financial facilities
—ERREREAZ — Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,065,098 114,284 3,476 1,182,858
—RENEELCHE — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 846,898 - - 846,898
AR ST KA IE Operating lease commitments 9,304 19,649 - 28,953
B HE Capital commitments 108,241 89,999 - 198,240
A&t Total 76,292,759 2,400,327 23,227 78,716,313
1FE AR 1F LA 5F A E
No later E5F Over A&t
201912 H31H At 31 December 2019 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BERURIE Loan commitments 76,388,203 2,111,719 686,125 79,186,047
BR  EHK Guarantees, acceptances and
E fth & @b AR 7% other financial facilities
—EREERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,051,259 40,065 - 1,091,324
—BRENEEERAE — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 967,813 - - 967,813
4R T AR HE Operating lease commitments 2,640 198,563 234,407 435,610
B AR EE Capital commitments 147,096 - - 147,096
R Total 78,557,011 2,350,347 920,532 81,827,890
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(a) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility for
overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to the
TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and where
appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified valuers
and the valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the
integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments
is not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value
of such financial instruments by using appropriate valuation
techniques that are widely recognised including present value
techniques and standard option pricing models. In applying
valuation techniques for these financial instruments, the Group
maximises the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples,
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads)
and minimises the use of unobservable inputs. For example,
the fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign
exchange forward contracts is generally based on current
forward rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived
using appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes model.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(a) Determination of fair value (Continued)

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit spreads
in determining the current value of its financial liabilities and other
liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option. When the
Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a gain on
these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has decreased.
When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises
a loss on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable
inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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3. BKERMEREmE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
35 SREEREBZATE@ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) R FEZER@)
BAFEFEZEERERE

(b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

BEMAFETE Recurring fair value measurements
1R 28R 3R &5t
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
NAFET=BEE Financial assets at fair value
STABEHEREE through profit or loss
BB E S Debt securities - 5,080,047 - 5,080,047
TTEEmIT A Derivative financial instruments
REEEASR Held for trading - 945,983 - 945,983
B e Held for hedging - 189,831 - 189,831
UWAFEFEAHE Financial assets at fair value
AR EEW A through other comprehensive
SREE income
BT Debt securities - 41,715,243 - 44,715,243
HERMES Equity securities 18,196 = 82,484 100,680
RANFEFTE 2 EESET Total assets measured at fair
value 18,196 47,931,104 82,484 48,031,784
AR EFZEEHE Financial liabilities at fair value
STABEHEREE through profit or loss
—RHIEEEAR - held for trading
BERES Debt securities - 1,570,675 - 1,570,675
TEEmIT A Derivative financial instruments
REEEAG Held for trading - 899,670 - 899,670
B AIEEH Held for hedging - 2,291,518 - 2,291,518
BNV EE 2 8ESST Total liabilities measured
at fair value - 4,761,863 - 4,761,863
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Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They
are stated at fair value which approximates the cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying
value represent the revaluation gains/losses.
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3. HMERREERE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 TREERABGEZAFE®E 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) R FEZR @ (b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
BRATEFEZEERBE  (#) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)
BEMAFETE @ Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)
B Fom 3R aF
201912 A31H At 31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
ARAFEFEEHE Financial assets at fair value
STABERNERMERE through profit or loss
BIEEH Debt securities - 8,716,721 = 8,716,721
TTEEmIT A Derivative financial instruments
FHEEERZ Held for trading - 457,652 - 457,652
B R ESH Held for hedging - 110,164 = 110,164
AT EAEHHE Financial assets at fair value
FTAH AL 2 EERY through other comprehensive
SREE income
(Vi er Debt securities - 42,050,218 - 42,050,218
EEMES Equity securities 30,277 - 82,710 112,987

BNV ETE 2 EES5T Total assets measured at fair

value 30,277 51,334,755 82,710 51,447,742

AT EEEEE Financial liabilities at fair value

STABEZRNEREE through profit or loss

—HIEEEAR - held for trading

B ES Debt securities - 5,516,558 - 5,516,558
PTESBTA Derivative financial instruments

REEEARE Held for trading = 370,356 = 370,356

5B BIEENH Held for hedging - 722,672 - 722,672

WA EFEZABESST Total liabilities measured

at fair value 6,609,586 - 6,609,586

AEFHRITAR DT 20205F F3] 153
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented below:

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(i) Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value of
amortised cost assets is based on market prices or broker/
dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is
the amount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings
not quoted in an active market is based on discounted
cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar

remaining maturity.
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3. HHERREEm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
35 LREEREGEZAFE®E 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
() AERFEFTEZLHT A (c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)
vy BRITHEXRESFEEEET (v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
HEZEESL notes issued

AARBEMEREZFEFME » AIFRA
EA B H B RIRET 2 & AT AR
%/ SEERENRETERME R
FE

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.

ANEEIRRR A B AR AT RN SR T A
BREE - EE 20204 &2019F 12 A31H
ZATELTEERER @ BRIATIN

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 except as

follows:
EREE
Carrying B oM E3M NN
2020%F12A31H At 31 December 2020 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
CREE Financial assets
LA SRR ARFIBREY  Financial assets at
SREE amortised cost 22,834,243 - 23,032,152 4,730 23,036,882
tREE Financial liabilities
BEETNTRE Certificates of deposit
issued 8,125,802 - 8,137,099 - 8,137,099
B EER Subordinated notes 3,828,458 - 3,840,512 - 3,840,512
IREE
Carrying FAR EVE E3R NEE
201912 A31H At 31 December 2019 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
TREE Financial assets
LA SRR AT BREY  Financial assets at
SREE amortised cost 15,644,389 - 15,666,589 4,733 15,671,322
SHEE Financial liabilities
BEETNTRE Certificates of deposit
issued 6,750,825 - 6,752,003 - 6,752,003
BEEE Subordinated notes 5,510,181 - 5,590,049 - 5,590,049

AFTRITAR AT 20205F F 3, 155
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3. HKERERE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.6 BEXEE 3.6 Capital management
TEEEREARAZBER The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:
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° To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

° To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

° To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
regularly by the Group’s management, employing techniques based on
the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by
the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed
with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

Under the regulatory framework in Hong Kong, the Bank is required to
meet three capital ratios, namely, the Common Equity Tier 1 capital,
Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against risk-weighted
assets. The internationally agreed minimum of these three ratios are
set at 4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the
HKMA. In order to comply with HKMA’s requirements as stated in the
SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank is required to
set further buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum
regulatory capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements,
internal assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under
the Pillar Il capital requirement. In addition, the Bank is required
to fulfil the capital conservation buffer and countercyclical capital
buffer requirements set by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio
forms part of Basel Ill implementation and the required information is
submitted by the Bank to the HKMA on quarterly basis. In line with the
international standards, the minimum Leverage Ratio is set at 3% by
the HKMA.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-
balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent amounts
by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each exposure, before
being classified and risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet

exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated balance sheet are share capital, retained profits, other
equity instruments and other reserves. Capital also includes collective
provisions and regulatory reserve for general banking risks as allowed
under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetéria de Macau (“AMCM?”) and the China Banking
and Insurance Regulatory Commission (“CBIRC”) respectively for
SUpervisory purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBIRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBIRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy
ratio) not lower than the required statutory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as
the Securities and Futures Commission.
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3. HMERREERE@® 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.7 ZREK 3.7 Fiduciary activities
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The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of
financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity
are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These services
could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-
administration.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment
of the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the Group’s financial statements are fair and reasonable
in all material respects.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is
further detailed in note 3.2.2, which also sets out key sensitivities of
the ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

o Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

o Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

o Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the

associated ECL; and

o Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in note 3.2.2.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried at
fair value are valued based on observable market quotations. As a
consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused by the 2008
global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed observable declines
in market liquidity and the range of market quotations for certain
securities have widened. The Group applies judgement in selecting
the most appropriate quotation for valuation purposes based on its
assessment of the range of observable quotations, recent observable
transactions, the reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the
value of securities of a similar nature.

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of
goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the assumptions
in relation to future benefits to be generated from the intangible
assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be generated from the
acquired entities, or discount rates which could be caused by major
changes in market conditions and outlook, could result in adjustments
to the carrying values of such assets. In the event that the expected
recoverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly
lower than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would have
to be recognised.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property. In making its judgement, the Group considers whether the
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that
are attributable not only to property but also to other assets used in
the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to supply
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be
sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions cannot
be sold separately, the property is accounted for as investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held to supply services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in determining whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as
investment property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.

() Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for compensation to
certain customers who had bought structured investments distributed
(but not originated or arranged) by the Group need to be recorded in
accordance with the requirements of HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates the information relating to each or similar cases, and
the likelihood and estimated amount of outflow of resources which
may be incurred to settle the obligation after considering factors such
as recent settlement experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of the value in
use is based on a discounted cash flow projection which contains
certain assumptions derived from management and observable market
information. This estimate is subject to application of management
judgement and is sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and
the cash flows arising from the holding of this investment and from its
ultimate disposal.

As at 31 December 2020, management’s estimate of the value in use is
lower than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ. As a result, in
the year ended 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in BOCQ has been written down by HK$531 million (2019:
HK$287 million).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most
relevant:

° If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the
Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

° If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

° Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical
lease durations and the costs and business disruption required
to replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in property leases have not been included in
the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or
not exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not
exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs,
which affects this assessment, and that is within the control of the
lessee. During the current financial year, the Group has not exercised
any extension or termination options.

KFRITAR AR 2020F F
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5. ABITHBRARRREEED

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK

AEBATRBAR R Statement of Financial Position of the Bank
12A31H
As at 31 December
2020 2019
BE ASSETS
& RIERITHAE 3 Cash and balances with banks 14,680,333 16,627,733
FERIT1 21218 B AEIE 7K Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 4,344,827 5,299,535
%1’%";%@&@‘ Trading securities 5,080,047 8,387,953
ANFEEBEES A Financial assets at fair value through
}amﬂﬁé@@aé% profit or loss - 328,768
TEEMT A Derivative financial instruments 1,132,482 567,790
XIE% SEREE Advances and other accounts 124,864,152 122,127,768
NHEFEREEETA Financial assets at fair value through
ﬁﬁﬂ%@ﬂﬁlﬁ?&ﬁ’\]@%ﬂﬁé other comprehensive income 41,778,647 42,125,966
LABERRC AN BRE & RV E B Financial assets at amortised cost 18,040,936 10,634,198
NI B Investment in an associate 1,213,057 1,213,057
HEERIEREIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 20,000 20,000
Mﬁ%'&i&ﬁ&%ﬁ Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 3,804,248 3,787,490
TE;EMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 3,316,633 2,685,215
REMZE Investment properties 623,663 1,148,283
BB E Deferred income tax assets 50,210 34,535
EES Total assets 218,949,235 214,988,291
=l LIABILITIES
RITER Deposits from banks 6,765,214 5,663,504
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 3,190,179 1,094,073
FIEEERENEE Trading liabilities 1,570,675 5,516,558
BPER Deposits from customers 163,978,819 156,033,961
BRITRNFERE Certificates of deposit issued 8,225,802 6,850,752
RIBER Subordinated notes 3,828,458 5,510,181
HAuER B MIEIR Other accounts and accruals 6,415,263 10,208,711
AERIAEE Current income tax liabilities 353,280 426,352
EEEsT Total liabilities 194,327,690 191,304,092
B EQUITY
BRAR Share capital 6,200,000 6,200,000
@ Other reserves
(BERBEF) F(F) (including retained earnings) Note (a) 17,522,958 16,585,612
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 23,722,958 22,785,612
EMERMIE Additional equity instruments 898,587 898,587
et Total equity 24,621,545 23,684,199
ERRaEAL Total equity and liabilities 218,949,235 214,988,291
E=2M2021F3 A23 Bt RIFRERE o Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
March 2021.
iﬁlﬁﬁ TR Hon-Hing Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EFE EHLrE Director Managing Director
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5. ZABITHBRARRRAEEZE @ 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)
R Note:

(F) ARITHFEZE)

(@) Reserve movement of the Bank

MR RER REBER
TEEMRE REERREE B2 e (&)
Premises Investment —REE Reserve for Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General  Share-based Earnings &3t
Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
20201818 At 1 January 2020 233,100 314,653 693,304 13,401 15,331,154 16,585,612
AFERERRILERE HER Fair value gain realised and transferred
ATEEBEEE to income statement upon disposal of
AR 2RO ER AR debt instruments at fair value through
ERRBBENHE other comprehensive income upon
derecognition - (13,448) - - - (13,448)
RTINS - ENABAATE Reclassification of net change in fair
FERESEHARMEE value of equity instruments at fair value
lastEst TR ATE through other comprehensive income
Z‘iﬂﬁé%ﬁ upon derecognition - (13,853) - - 13,853 -
ARTEFEBEZEHA Net change in fair value of debt
ﬁ‘r@%ﬁuﬁzmﬁ’] ERIAZ instruments at fair value through other
@?@@@J??%ﬁ comprehensive income - (99,031) - - - (99,031)
ARTEFEE AR A Net change in fair value of equity
H%&%m&z SHERETAY instruments at fair value through other
AFELETE comprehensive income - (1,550) - - - (1,550)
REASHRFESD BLEHE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - 21,451 - - - 21,451
NATETEBEZHHA Net change in allowance for expected
Hit2EWaENEBIALZ credit losses of debt instruments at fair
BHEEEBR FH value through other comprehensive
income - 6,410 - - - 6,410
FIMER I T E 2 REHE Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments - - - - (41,266) (41,266)
DABRAES? T AR D fE AR Provision for equity-settled share-based
£zl i compensation - - - 820 - 820
FERR Profit for the year - - - - 1,648,000 1,648,000
2019F R ERE 2019 final dividend - - - - (471,200) (471,200)
20205 RS 2020 interim dividend - - - - (112,840) (112,840)
2020%12831H At 31 December 2020 233,100 214,632 693,304 14,221 16,367,701 17,522,958
= Note:
NRITANESRERRAEFBR B MG HREERMRA The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
Mpl\z;ﬁﬁfﬁ}%{% Wi B e e (BT R those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
ERTRAFIRT(HR)) IAFTEEBRITESEG LA reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
BEEEABNZAMEERT - ZEE HERRE K the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory

BTRRZFRSR EERBIEHAETESER
HEITEH - WEENMESREATERE

requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

R2020F12 A31 8 + AETE 5 As at 31 December 2020, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of

7E 502,278,000 % 7T

(20194 : 1,127,403,000/6 7T ) v & 22 E R EE B HE & HK$502,278,000 (2019: HK$1,127,403,000) first against the consolidated
HIHHGE —RER SRR ANBITZEEARE R general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
FRFETE o the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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5. ZABITHBERRRRFEEESS @

i ()

(F) ARITFEZSH(E)

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(@ Reserve movement of the Bank (Continued)

IARR (D RERE RERA
TEEMRE RASRFE T (3)
Premises Investment —RHE Reserve for Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General  Share-based Eamnings At
Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
2019F1A18 At 1 January 2019 233,100 44,144 693,304 12,005 14,156,159 15,138,712
IRIER B A0 B S 2R Changes on initial application of
B16% 2% HKFRS16 - - - - 2,031) 2,031)
MEF| 2201951 R1AEH Restated balance at 1 January 2019 233,100 44,144 693,304 12,005 14,154,128 15,136,681
ATEB BN IERRE HER Fair value loss realised and transferred
NAFEEBREFHHA to income statement upon disposal of
Hit2 ARG EE AR debt instruments at fair value through
SR REBENGER other comprehensive income upon
derecognition - 24 - - - 24
NATEFEBEZHHIA Net change in fair value of debt
Hit2ElEHES instruments at fair value through other
TAZATEZEFE comprehensive income - 317,313 - - = 317,313
NATEEBEZHHA Net change in fair value of equity
0 kalheat:or-Eanled instruments at fair value through other
TAZRATEREFE comprehensive income - 986 - - = 986
REEHHEESDZETHE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - (52,300) - - - (52,300)
NRTEHE B S8 A KM Net change in allowance for expected
2ENENEB AR credit losses of debt instruments at fair
FEFBREDTE value through other comprehensive
income - 4,486 - - - 4,486
FMER M TR ZREFHR Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments = = - - (41,682) (41,682)
IARRHE S 3 AR A fE AR ERE Provision for equity-settled share-based
A compensation - - - 1,396 - 1,396
FEEH Profit for the year = = = - 1,854,208 1,854,208
2018F REIRE. 2018 final dividend - - - - (452,600) (452,600)
20195 R HIR S 2019 interim dividend - - - - (182,900) (182,900)
2019F12A31H At 31 December 2019 233,100 314,653 693,304 13,401 15,331,154 16,585,612
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other
Executive Committee members, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, is determined on the basis of
personal banking, commercial banking, treasury and overseas banking
business. Operating performances are analysed by business activities
for local banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas
banking business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following reportable
segments:

o Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales
and investment services.

o Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and
the provision of trade financing.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

o Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

o Others include results of operations not directly identified under

other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income or
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are
grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BART R BIMRIT BER
Personal Commercial BIE¥%  Overseas Hity Inter- Foey
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
BREMA /() Net interest income/
(expenses) 1,584,254 1,124,905 669,395 486,130 (179,320) - 3,685,364
EFISYON Non-interest income 1,008,393 194,070 197,802 117,623 38,212 - 1,556,100
2B/ (i) Total operating income/
(expenses) 2592647 1318975 867,197 603753  (141,108) - 5241464
EEXH Operating expenses (1,630,344)  (504,889)  (185,689)  (507,522) (14,474) - (2,842,918
HREERERERTZ  Operating profit/(loss)
BERT/ (EE) before credit impairment
losses 962,303 814,086 681,508 96,231 (155,582) - 2,398,546
EEREEE Credit impairment losses (342,197) (151,822 (20,102) (131,768 (1,079) - (646,968)
MR EERERER 2  Operating profit/(oss) after
BT/ (B8) credit impairment losses 620,106 662,264 661,406 (35,537) (156,661) - 1,751,578
HEREMEREM  Netloss on disposal and
EFEEREATE  fairvalue adjustment of
AR FER investment properties
and other fixed assets (2,902) - - (68) (84,297) - (87,267)
HEUATFETER  Net gain on disposal of
HEHt ALM2E  financial assets at fair
YmneREEL value through other
FlE comprehensive income - - 13,448 - - - 13,448
BEZREER Impairment loss on
goodwill - (98,239) - - - - (98,239)
JE(RESE DR Z%#4E  Share of results of an
associate - - - 710,370 - - 710,370
HEATHREZ Impairment loss on
REEE the investment in an
associate - - - (531,000) - - (531,000)
E(GEFEGIER 2 Share of results of jointly
E controlled entities - - - - 33,190 = 33,190
BrEiRDET]/(B1B)  Profit/(loss) before taxation 617,204 564,025 674,854 143,765 (207,768) - 1,792,080
BOA(Z L) /e Taxation (expenses)/credit (101,353)  (110,166)  (111,368) (19,217) 25,486 - (316,619
BEi&EH/(B18)  Profit/(loss) for the year 515,851 453,859 563,486 124,548 (182,282) - 1,475,462
#HZ2020F12A31H  For the year ended
LR 31 December 2020
nEREHEER Depreciation and
amortisation 74,976 14,965 7,135 56,312 238,929 - 392,317
20205124318 At 31 December 2020
NEEE Segment assets 53,965,730 66,782,037 84,562,197 38,200,663 9,655,997  (5,021,031) 248,145,593
HEERE Segment liabilities 112,788,974 46,684,129 16,220,032 29,899,300 18,316,876  (5,021,031) 218,888,280
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6. EE/ERFZ@® 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
HZ=2019F12A31H LFE For the year ended 31 December 2019
EARTT BERIT TFIMRTT e
Personal  Commercial BE%7  Overseas Hith Inter- 1Bt
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
ERIBUA/(ZH)  Netinterest income/
(expenses) 1,690,585 1,262,484 748,168 497,382 (142,844) - 4,055,775
FERBIA Non-interest income 949,299 194,505 1,539 138,119 34,749 - 1,318,211
BB/ (L) Total operating income/
(expenses) 2,639,884 1,456,989 749,707 635,501 (108,095) - 5,373,986
2EY Operating expenses (1,655,353) (528,318) (179,202) (507,483) 8,964 - (2,861,392
MK EER(E/SER 2 Operating profit/(loss) before
BERF/(Bi8) credit impairment losses 984,531 928,671 570,505 128,018 (99,131) - 2,512,504
EEREESE Credit impairment losses (260,484) (72,934) (9,240) (12,250) (1,478) - (356,386)
MG EERERE%E 2  Operating profit/(loss) after
E@Eufl/ (B8) credit impairment losses 724,047 855,737 561,265 115,768 (100,609) - 2,156,208
HEREMEREM  Net (loss)/gain on disposal
EFEEREATE  andfair value adjustment
HEZE(B8B)/ of investment properties
Wz and other fixed assets (3,524) - - 58 (31,391) = (34,857)
HEUATFEFEEE  Netloss on disposal of
Bt ALMBEE financial assets at fair
W ERMEE L value through other
FEE comprehensive income = - (24) - _ _ (24)
JEEES AT 2£%  Share of results of an
associate - - - 701,857 - - 701,857
BEARREL Impairment loss on the
AIEEE investment in an associate - - - (287,000) = = (287,000)
(G EREHIE®R 2 Share of results of jointly
#iE controlled entities - - - - 32,072 - 32,072
BREALER/(B1R) Profit/(loss) before taxation 720,523 855,737 561,241 530,683 (99,928) - 2,568,256
BE(Z ) /e Taxation (expenses)/credit (118,812) (141,019 (92,584) (18,262) 17,691 - (352,986)
BEi4%7]/(B18)  Profit/(loss) for the year 601,711 714,718 468,657 512,421 (82,237) - 2215270
HZ2019F12A31H  For the year ended
tFE 31 December 2019
WEREHER Depreciation and
amortisation 78,802 16,658 6,548 60,525 218,377 - 380,910
20195124318 At 31 December 2019
PDEEE Segment assets 53,809,806 66,154,676 84,671,487 38,406,836 6,325,726  (5,110,854) 244,257,677
NEEE Segment liabilities 108,290,918 44,136,433 19,835,415 30,335,062 18,686,543  (5,110,854) 216,173,517
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Geographical information

Geographical segment information is based on the domicile of the legal
entities within the Group with business dealing and relationship with,

and services to external customers. For the year ended 31 December

2020 and 2019, no single country or geographical segment other than

Hong Kong contributed 10% or more of the Group’s assets, liabilities,

operating income, profit before taxation, or contingent liabilities and

commitments.

7. NET INTEREST INCOME

2020 2019
FEWA Interest income
e RIERITHAEER Cash and balances with banks 267,438 475,193
BHRE Investments in securities 1,360,604 1,762,703
FHEEREEMERE Advances and other accounts 4,582,424 5,234,742
6,210,466 7,472,638
FE X Interest expense
RITERBEEX Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 2,200,266 2,835,307
BB ITRIF 8 Certificates of deposit issued 126,852 157,184
BIEER Subordinated notes 137,815 284,480
HEs&(HF27(2)) Lease liabilities (Note 27(b)) 10,574 13,499
Hh Others 49,595 126,393
2,525,102 3,416,863
FMEWAEE Included within interest income
—REEEAENILR — Trading securities and financial
AP ETEBEZ ST A assets at fair value through
BaresEE profit or loss 53,199 140,573
— AR EF=BEZEA - Financial assets at fair value through
EfermENmEr & E other comprehensive income 850,703 1,427,901
— DA AT IR S B A E - Financial assets at amortised cost 5,306,564 5,904,164
6,210,466 7,472,638
MNEZHEE Included within interest expense
—RUARFEFEBHEFTA - Financial liabilities not at fair value
BEanemaE through profit or loss 2,482,275 3,306,729

#@Ezozoi&zmgﬁmﬂm HIEFE @ WHERE
RERBEEEZFBWA °

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there was no interest

income recognised on impaired assets.
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8. FERBBERMAZWA

8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2020 2019
REERASKRA Fee and commission income
KR E=Z B EESH:TA Fee and commission income from
BEanrnemEERAGE 2 financial assets and liabilities not at
RI%E KA YA fair value through profit or loss
—EEEBZREERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 170,451 186,003
— B oA - Trade finance 78,218 87,301
—fEAFR - Credit card 255,002 338,315
HApRiSE AW A Other fee and commission income
—BHKLE A - Securities brokerage 192,396 106,243
—REREHE KM — Insurance distribution and others 284,293 336,708
—ZERERUEEERS — Retail investment and wealth
management services 269,056 255,512
—IRITREBRFEE — Bank services and handling fees 65,587 68,677
—Hib 52 — Other fees 66,779 54,655
1,381,782 1,433,414
REER AL Fee and commission expense

RAATESHE B RBBEA
RENERAERAEZ

Fee and commission expense from
financial assets and liabilities not at

RS E MRS H fair value through profit or loss

—FREERAS — Handling fees and commission 189,919 267,580

—BENEMEA — Other fees paid 10,062 18,870
199,981 286,450

AEERE=SRHTE X CEEFERK
BEERY - BEXUEFRBHNEERNREAT
DRALTESENFTHERERA

The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
investment management services to third parties. The assets subject
to these services are held in a fiduciary capacity and are not included
in these financial statements.
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9. FEEWA 9. NET TRADING INCOME
2020 2019
INEB BT Net gain arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 288,936 78,783
FEEBERGNES 2 F e Net gain on trading securities 14,133 13,709
REEBEABMITETRE 2 F ik Net gain from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose 2,443 1,334
RAATFEE P EEemI A Net gain arising from financial
FU A instruments subject to fair value
hedge 895 7,181
LAATFERT2 B HEBR AB&RA Net gain on financial instruments at
ST A2 F W fair value through profit or loss 7,120 1,766
313,527 102,773
10. HAbEEWA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2020 2019
RERDIFE ZAAFEFER Dividend income from investments
HEBF AR MEERED in equity instruments at fair value
M TERE ZIREWA through other comprehensive
income, held at the end of the year
— ERRE - Listed investments 1,612 2,284
—JEEMIRE — Unlisted investments 4,330 7,800
wEYE 2 HES WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties 22,965 27,231
HibH WA Other rental income 15,445 13,988
Hith Others 16,420 17,171
60,772 68,474

RFRITERAF] 2020F F#H
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

A, PR A o, T I T B Do, AL 3
11. &EXH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2020 2019
1B B E N R A8 A H (FfaE12) Employee compensation and benefit
expenses (Note 12) 1,918,915 1,898,620
TEREMEEEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
TEETE expenses, excluding depreciation
—TEMES S (MFE27(2)) - Rental of premises (Note 27(b)) 4,303 7,918
—Hfts — Others 211,227 197,136
e Depreciation
— 17 SR EH A E E B 2 (i aE27 (FF)) - Premises and other fixed assets
(Note 27(a)) 197,644 199,672
—BEREZWE(WF27(2)) - Right-of-use properties (Note 27(b)) 194,673 181,238
EE R ES S T Advertising and promotion costs 77,138 89,987
ENfll « TR REE Printing, stationery and postage 52,103 50,585
ZEEN B2 Auditors’ remuneration 9,546 9,315
Hit Others 177,369 226,921
2,842,918 2,861,392

12. EEFMRENZH

12.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT
EXPENSES

2020 2019
FHREMBAFEER Salaries and other staff costs 1,880,090 1,792,374
BB — [Re 3 J5HEI(GE(R)) Government grant — Employment
Support Scheme (Note (a)) (65,686) -
LARG AR /B SR 2 Provision for share-based compensation
AR (M[7E43) charged (Note 43) 821 1,406
RIke T — A EEEE Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 103,690 104,840
1,918,915 1,898,620
(2 Note:

() 120205 + AEEFRFETHBERARILIAR
TURES R RELE GBI (TR 5]
R REEASENERCERHEMEIE - U
REFREEHERNE T - BRIE[RFAE IFHEIR
R AEBTAENEIRSHUEHERE - X
BEBHMARINEREETE -
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In 2020, the Group applied for funding support from the Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by
the Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide
financial support to enterprises to retain their employees who would
otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the ESS, the Group
is restricted from making redundancies during the period covered by
the cash subsidy and to spend all the funding on paying wages to its
employees.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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13. FEREEE 13. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
2020 2019
g s (FBR 5 2 ZE64) New allowances net of allowance
releases 745,612 467,407
U [e] 381 B 88 2 SR8 Recoveries of amounts previously
written off (98,644) (111,021)
646,968 356,386
DR Attributable to:
—BPEX - Advances to customers 603,479 342,581
—HEMemEE — Other financial assets 36,162 11,430
— B REE RS R - Loan commitments and
financial guarantees 7,327 2,315
646,968 356,386
14. 1A 14. TAXATION
B S NS B TR R A1 51 FE AR v A1 LA B = Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5% (20194 : 16.5% ) IR 2EMHS BN TY 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
R A IME ET FE R m AR AR & B A & S5 overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
B ZIBITHERGE - profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.
BEHBEERREELIHEREZE - IRBHZSE Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
RIBAGBRENRREEN THRKMERZH the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
RIEDHRER o year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
2020 2019
RNEFERIA Current income tax:
—EBRED - Hong Kong profits tax 283,018 337,202
—BSMRIA - Overseas taxation 22,708 30,789
— BT FE B 2 B — Over-provision in prior years (217) (65)
IRIERIE (FI5E34) - Deferred income tax (Note 34):
— AR R ERMEE R - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 11,109 (14,940)
I8 Taxation 316,618 352,986
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. FIE@E)

AEBBRB AR 2 FHIBARRERE S QR INE
TR E 2 B BRI ¢

-
14. TAXATION (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2020 2019

B 1% At A

REBTISTE16.5%TH 2 HIE

BUBTRRIRR -
HMER 2 TRBE

BRI A

TREHIREY S

L‘M)fé?%% sl WNC]
HRAEHER XA

Hit2m R iR BB

Profit before taxation 1,792,080 2,568,256

Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax

rate of 16.5% 295,693 423,762
Tax effects of:

Different taxation rates in other

countries 14,851 (1,122)
Income not subject to taxation (23,485) (56,922)
Expenses not deductible 159,272 108,431

Results of associates and jointly

controlled entities reported net of

tax (122,687) (121,098)
ltems recorded in other

comprehensive income (6,809) -
PTG E R 2 B Over-provision in prior years (217) (65)
A Taxation 316,618 352,986
15. B=FS 15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2020 2019
EEMEE Directors’ fee 3,995 2,850
e el BE - BEYA= Salaries, bonuses, housing, benefits
PSEXith==3:11 in kind and other allowances 106,609 119,877
LARG A7 s E Rt S N A 2 £~ Share-based compensation payment - =
RINEAE B2 EEHK Employer’s contribution to retirement
benefit schemes 2,151 2,430
112,755 125,157

AEEFENINELR  WERAEEEBRTE
MEARS  BHRER - ERRNRITR/EFR—
FRABITZEEZEENEBEEER B ELRF
75 (20194F : &) o
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No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank was a party and in which
a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2019: Nil).
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14 a® a® a® a® a® a® a® a® a®
DI ESOETD g @D GO ED ¢O ED g D G5 ¢ §D ¢ T ¢ @5 O TP ¢H TP ED ¢ O TP g D @B ¢
[ /N ) [ /N ) [ /N [ 7N [ /N [ /N ) [ 7N [ [ /N ) [ /N ) [ /N ] [ /N )
15. EEME @ 15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
REZE2020F12A31BIEFE - WEREMNES No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in
FHEEBEARRITHEM B R R EHH R 2 EAtbhR respect of directors’ other services in connection with management of
A A AHE AT E A B & (20194F : f&) o the affairs of the Bank or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
AER - WESHRIEEY 2 RIES BN TES No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and
R R E E AR M M S = 5 TS 2 no consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for
FERR(E (20194 « ) - making available directors’ services during the year (2019: Nil).
16. BRE 16. DIVIDENDS
2020 2019
EIRF RS - RREEAR1.828 T Interim dividend paid of HK$1.82 (2019:
(20194 : 2.95/87T) HK$2.95) per ordinary share 112,840 182,900
FORRERE : BREERA.THET Proposed final dividend of HK$4.7(2019:
(2019 : 7.6/87T) HK$7.6) per ordinary share 291,400 471,200
404,240 654,100
17. RERERITHER 17. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
2020 2019
B & MAERITHAEER Cash and balances with banks 4,559,911 2,741,442
BA NS ERTFER Money at call and short notice 10,703,672 14,901,271

15,263,583 17,642,713
Bk - REERE Less: impairment allowance
—PEER1 - Stage 1 (1,131) (582)

15,262,452 17,642,131
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a» - - ) a» @& ) a» a» a» a» a»
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18. FEEERZENRERUATEEE 18. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AT
BHSHTTABSNERMEE FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
FEEERRNES Trading securities:
BBES Debt securities:
—&B LMW — Listed in Hong Kong 30,089 20,681
—3LEm - Unlisted 5,049,958 8,367,272

5,080,047 8,387,953

LAAFERT2 B HEEBE A Financial assets at fair value through
B/ EE profit or loss:
EISES Debt securities:
—3EETM — Unlisted - 328,768
- 328,768
A&t Total 5,080,047 8,716,721
PREEBEFAR Included within debt securities are:
—BERKR(ZRELER) — Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 482,991 1,606,484
—H i BB =g — Other treasury bills 4,566,967 6,781,469
—BTES - Government bonds 30,089 =
— H A ESE F IR TIE - Other debt securities issued by:
—1bE — Corporate entities - 328,768
5,080,047 8,716,721
R2020%F 201912310 » LilEHrRIER As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no certificates of
FERBFENE ° deposit held included in the above balances.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2020512 A1 AR M 2 STETAA N RER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
SREQNFERAT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2020 were as follows:
&8/
£5eE o¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional gE =l
amount Assets Liabilities
1) FHEEBERGEZITAETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
i) JMNEPTET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RHRHEEH Forward and futures contracts 63,546,714 857,935 (815,861)
B8\ T L N B Currency options purchased and
written 9,794,008 16,681 (16,661)

Z) FIELTETA
M= 5]
B RUR M R i

A7) #altiTA TR
BARE g I

FEEBERGEZITETA

LE/(B8E)A
2) BHEESTRRZITAETA 2)
) 1E U AP EH 2
AT A
| = 51 51

P RGRZITETR

b) Interest rate derivatives
Interest rate swaps 5,149,560 48,888 (44,691)
Interest rate options purchased and
written - - -

c) Equity derivatives
Equity options purchased and written 742,444 22,479 (22,457)

Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
trading 79,232,726 945,983 (899,670)

Derivatives held for hedging
a) Derivatives designated as fair value
hedges
Interest rate swaps 41,984,638 189,831 (2,291,518)

Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for

BE/(AfR)A: hedging 41,984,638 189,831 (2,291,518)
ERRZITESRIE Total recognised derivative financial assets/
BE/(AfR)AF (liabilities) 121,217,364 1,135,814 (3,191,188)
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19. TR I Eum 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
R20195F12 A1 AR 2 ATETASHRER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
SREQNFERAT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2019 were as follows:
a8/
£5LT AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE &
amount Assets Liabilities
1) BEBEERBZITAETA 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SMELTAET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRAEEH Forward and futures contracts 85,980,290 427,242 (346,656)
B RO o E Currency options purchased and
written 8,583,805 11,034 (10,733)
Z) FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
S Interest rate swaps 4,476,095 17,185 (10,537)
B8\ Tt U 7 o B Interest rate options purchased and
written 674,220 - (240)
A) EmtiTETA ¢) Equity derivatives
BEAROh i 1 e Equity options purchased and written 265,264 2,191 (2,190
BEEBER®BZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(afE)As trading 99,979,674 457,652 (370,356)
2) FHEEDRRSZITAETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
H) IEEURNFES 2 a) Derivatives designated as
PTETA fair value hedges
== 5 Interest rate swaps 38,285,505 110,164 (722,672)
BES ARG ZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(8E)A: hedging 38,285,505 110,164 (722,672)
ERRZTESMTAEE/ Total recognised derivative financial assets/
(BR)AG (liabilities) 138,265,179 567,816 (1,093,028)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

BERS HAR S @t
Trading Hedging Total
CEFA Notional amount 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
EEXEH Exchange rate contracts
FHRAEEN Forward and futures
contracts 63,546,714 85,980,290 - - 63,546,714 85,980,290
INEEESL Foreign exchange option
contracts
— B ASNEEE - Currency options
purchased 4,897,007 4,332,783 - - 4,897,007 4,332,783
—hHSNEEE - Currency options written 4,897,001 4,251,022 - - 4,897,001 4,251,022
73,340,722 94,564,095 - - 73,340,722 94,564,095
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
BHRAEEN Forward and futures
contracts - - - = = =
IR Interest rate swaps 5,149,560 4,476,095 41,984,638 38,285,505 47,134,198 42,761,600
FIRHESH Interest rate option contracts
— g A - Options purchased - 337,110 - - - 337,110
— i R - Options written - 337,110 - = - 337,110
5,149,560 5,150,315 41,984,638 38,285,505 47,134,198 43,435,820
Hia ) Other contracts
En RSN Equity option contracts
—B A - Options purchased 371,222 132,632 - - 371,222 132,632
— - Options written 371,222 132,632 - - 371,222 132,632
742,444 265,264 - - 742,444 265,264
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19. FTEE€RMIEwm)

FRRFAAREERI L SR FEGEE R 2
B2Z12A31REEABRINABRNEERRINE
2ER - 250

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
exposures as at 31 December, before taking into account the effect
of bilateral netting arrangements that the Group entered into, are as
follows:

2020 2019
FEREL) Exchange rate contracts
RERHIES4 Forward and futures contracts 654,837 569,901
HE A JINGEE ER i Currency options purchased 138,864 151,869
FIRE 4 Interest rate contracts
| 2= 45 B Interest rate swaps 83,423 62,922
|2 EAfE Interest rate options - 1,686
HE 4 Other contracts 38,744 8,854
915,868 795,232
WETAZANBEESENREH RN S The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of

£ U PMRREEREE -

=

EEERIMEBENZ2EEESEREL Z(RT

FEDBRADMAR 2 BER - fTEMRS 2 BER
BIXSHEF RERAHIBFEME

182
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transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period, they do
not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.
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20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

KET

Restated

2020 2019

EFEERMBEE Gross advances to customers 137,578,574 136,948,471

HIBR : REZERE Less: impairment allowances

—BEER1 - Stage 1 (486,431) (474,635)
— P& ER2 — Stage 2 (208,225) (152,754)
—F&ER3 — Stage 3 (556,508) (381,197)
(1,251,164)  (1,008,586)

136,327,410 135,939,885

BH5EE Trade bills 3,791,124 3,393,863

IR : REEEME
— P& ERA
—PEER2

Hh & E (KPRE29)

B REZERE
— P& ERA
—[&ER2
—PEERS

R20204F - EAEEETBR ZFEERKEM
fRE JBTIIR - YERDBEEMF27[1TERK
EEEERT - HELBRBFEENIIR - U
HERFEZITHER °

Less: impairment allowances

— Stage 1 (8,848) (1,982)
— Stage 2 (11) (7)
(8,859) (1,989)

3,782,265 3,391,874

Other assets (Note 29) 6,745,547 5,308,038

Less: impairment allowances

— Stage 1 (10,287) (8,496)
— Stage 2 (547) (598)
— Stage 3 (11,849) (9,467)

(22,683) (18,561)

6,722,864 5,289,477

Advances and other accounts 146,832,539 144,621,236

In 2020, right-of-use assets have been categorised under “Premises
and other fixed assets” under Note 27 and are not reported as part
of “Advances and other accounts”. The comparative figure has been
restated to conform with such presentation.
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20. BEERKRHEMIRE @& 20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Gontinued)
() BREEEFERKBR 2 HEHERER (@) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease
BRIOE : receivables as follows:
BEERRBAEREREAERAGRER Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
‘E#—%’IiZ?ﬁﬁﬁ HMEEATEECERBREF equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire
B HRMEAR AR EE I RERERE - LA purchase contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The
ﬁﬂﬁf‘ﬁfﬁi HHAEE - contracts have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset

at nominal value at the end of the lease period.

2020 2019
HEEMERE 2 EURESE - Gross investment in finance lease
receivables:
1ELAA Not later than 1 year 1,670,776 2,393,950
16 LA EZE55F Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 2,012,941 3,128,171
5% F Later than 5 years 373,460 318,939
4,057,177 5,841,060
BETE 2 REREZ g & WA Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (206,327) (406,155)
BERERE FRE Net investment in finance leases 3,850,850 5,434,905
BEREREFE 2NN ¢ The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:
1F AR Not later than 1 year 1,569,945 2,201,948
1F LA EE55 Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 1,929,074 2,949,341
5&FLA E Later than 5 years 351,831 283,616
3,850,850 5,434,905
72020 201912 A31H + L@ ERER There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
BREAW R H EERFISRERE - investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
R2020F12 A31H ' AEBZEFREEER The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
FEAAWE 2 B EH SRR IEL B EFE ST R in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2020 of the Group
109,308,000/ 7T (20194F : 68,242,000/ 7T) ° amounted to HK$109,308,000 (2019: HK$68,242,000).

184 DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21. UAFEFEEESFHFTAEMEH 21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
WEHNESmEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2020 2019
BEISHES Debt securities:
—&XLEW - Listed in Hong Kong 14,072,696 16,470,818
—&BBAIN ETT - Listed outside Hong Kong 16,750,257 16,609,379
—JEETm - Unlisted 10,892,290 8,970,021
41,715,243 42,050,218
R IEES Equity securities:
—&B LM — Listed in Hong Kong 18,196 30,277
—JEETm - Unlisted 82,484 82,710
100,680 112,987
A&t Total 41,815,923 42,163,205
BIEEEKEARANE Included within debt securities are:
— AR RE - Certificates of deposit held 344,348 114,099
—BHEZR(ZERREER) — Treasury bills which are
cash equivalents 3,551,262 4,496,472
—HAb R EER — Other treasury bills 6,026,161 5,599,844
— B ES — Government bonds 123,458 118,594
— HAfEsE — Other debt securities 31,670,014 31,721,209
41,715,243 42,050,218
ANFEEEGTEBEZEHETA Financial assets at fair value through
ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ”ﬂ( S ERLEE other comprehensive income are
REATHEER ST analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:
BEFES Debt securities:
— R R TR R ERTT — Central governments and central
banks 9,700,881 10,214,910
— N - Public sector entities 134,779 143,655
—RIT R E M S B - Banks and other financial
institutions 7,582,172 6,224,854
— 1 — Corporate entities 24,297,411 25,466,799
41,715,243 42,050,218
MBS Equity securities:
—1b% - Corporate entities 100,680 112,987
41,815,923 42,163,205
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. UAFEHEBEESEHTAEMEE
WHENEREE @)

ETFUARFEFERHEEEH AL MEE WS
MRS T AR ER2020F H AR ERE E R
EMPEE - RKRIEERA REZAFESR
163,220,000/ 7T, & H H & 25+ Wiz 413,853,000
BT e WENAFEFEEEEFH A AL BEE
URzS Y REZS 1 T AR 201 9 AR IERERR ©

22. LIBBRAIIRNEMEE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Certain investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income has been sold during 2020 due
to risk monitoring consideration. The fair value of the investments at
the date of derecognition was HK$163,220,000 and its cumulative gain
on disposal was HK$13,853,000. No equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income has been derecognised
during 2019.

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

2020 2019
BIEHES Debt securities:
—&BELD — Listed in Hong Kong 8,751,193 4,531,678
— BB T - Listed outside Hong Kong 9,297,525 6,534,167
—JE LT — Unlisted 4,809,747 4,590,077

0k : REERE

B

IEEEBEENE
—BENERE
—EEEE
— B ES
~HipERES

LA ERAC AT BR O & BB B
BEBITHRBIER DT

— RREAF R RERTT

—REHRE
—RITREMSREE

—%
—Hft
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22,858,465 15,655,922

Less: impairment allowance
— Stage 1 (24,222) (11,533)

Total 22,834,243 15,644,389

Included within debt securities are:

— Certificates of deposit held 1,745,601 1,451,302
— Treasury bills 1,308,909 2,225,843
— Government bonds 248,395 301,957
— Other debt securities 19,655,560 11,676,820

22,858,465 15,655,922

Financial assets at amortised cost are
analysed by categories of issuers as

follows:
— Central governments and central

banks 1,557,304 2,527,800
— Public sector entities 293,469 75,294
— Banks and other financial

institutions 7,681,769 5,954,650
— Corporate entities 13,323,470 7,095,725
— Others 2,453 2,453

22,858,465 15,655,922
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23. BEQNTRE 23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
2020 2019
FE(h & EFE Share of net assets 6,199,304 5,279,152
[EES Goodwill 344,623 344,623
6,543,927 5,623,775
Bk - REER Less: impairment allowances (2,266,000) (1,735,000)
4,277,927 3,888,775
12831HZAFE Fair value at 31 December 2,224,088 2,141,545
AEEREERIT([EERT]) 2RENATE The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bank of Chongqging
T3 Z EERITHRR R 20204 2019 4% 2 W h (“BOCQ”) shown above is calculated with reference to the closing
B o market price of BOCQ’s H-shares as at the end of 2020 and 2019.
2020 % 2019F 12 A1 B 2 & AR Z £ B & The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
=3 N December 2020 and 2019:
FE % A it B Frih =Bt
£ Place of incorporation FEEK Percentage of
Name and operation Principal activities interest in ownership
2020 2019
BERIT HREE AR AAE #R1T
Bank of Chongging People’s Republic of China Banking 14.66% 14.66%
2020 2019
1H1H At 1 January 3,888,775 3,620,597
FEIGFRTR IR 348 Share of results, net of tax 710,370 701,857
FEERTRIRE S Share of investment revaluation reserve,
net of tax 382 78,099
BUAR S Dividend received (118,387) (80,344)
TEE R Impairment loss charged (531,000) (287,000)
BE W Z R A R Exchange differences and other
adjustments 327,787 (144,434)
12H31H At 31 December 4,277,927 3,888,775
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23. BELTRE@®

(F) EBRITZREYHER
BERITOEEET2ZEHHA/12H31E -

HZE20205F12 AT HILFEHIHE - A&SEEBRS
ERRITHEEN2019F R1E —FZH £202049
A30RE=FW12{8 A 2 %4 - WEF %12020
F10A1HE2020F 12 A31HEAEZEAR S &
FIENAGZE -

HZE2019F12A31 HILFEHRE - AEEERS
HERITE AMAREE2019F12 A31 B IE121E A
ZHERRZEE - EREZEFEKR - HTMMEE
Al o

VA | 5 58 B R E A AN &£ (B 2020 4F A B 75 R 25 45 |
EESEMNE - EERTEZE2020F12A318 1E
R EEIREINAME o
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23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the results of BOCQ were
included by the Group by combining the results published by BOCQ
and attributable to the 12 months’ period from the last quarter of 2019
to the first three quarters ended 30 September 2020, and taking into
account the financial effect of significant transactions or events in the
period from 1 October 2020 to 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the results of BOCQ were
included by the Group on the basis of BOCQ’s financial statements
announced for and made up to the 12 months to 31 December 2019.
No restatement is made, as the differences are immaterial.

The above changes are made because by the time these 2020 annual
financial statements of the Group were approved by the Board of
Directors for issue, the results of BOCQ for the quarter ended 31
December 2020 are not yet publicly available.
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23. BZEATRE @) 23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
() ERRITZREMEER @) (@) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)
2020%F 20194
9H30H 12A31H
At At
30 September 31 December
2020 2019
ERBITZEEEERABER Selected balance sheet information of
BOCQ
B R RIRITR LR Cash and balances with central banks 43,885,655 35,824,824
e E At 3R1T I & Bl AR Due from other banks and financial
institutions 66,139,034 68,530,009
HEERRER Loans and advances to customers 306,971,588 267,144,967
HiremEE Other financial assets 221,986,438 178,355,749
Hin &z Other assets 12,754,357 10,706,630
BEAG Total assets 651,737,072 560,562,179
FEREARIRTT R & R Due to other banks and financial institutions 96,750,478 78,452,719
BEPER Customer deposits 370,884,276 314,316,390
Hiemai Other financial liabilities 126,469,718 117,860,442
Hth B & Other liabilities 7,846,215 6,748,298
BES Total liabilities 601,950,687 517,377,849
Emas Total equity 49,786,385 43,184,330
ks : BRI 2EBER Less: Preferred shares issued (5,850,240) (5,490,417)
Bk - RIEHIRERT R Less: Non-controlling interests (2,084,751) (1,861,234)
BB R E (SRS S T Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 41,851,394 35,832,679
EERITZRR R AT Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total
RRITERE M BImEAZ shareholders’ equity to the carrying
REEHERER amount in the Bank’s consolidated
financial statements
R TRE(E IR R A T The Bank's share of total shareholders’
equity 6,137,403 5,254,774
e ER 2 BERATERE Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment at
acquisition 406,524 369,001
Bk : BE Less: Impairment (2,266,000) (1,735,000
REE Carrying amount 4,277,927 3,888,775
AFRITAR AT 20204 F 3] 189
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23. BEQTKRE@) 23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
() EERITZREMEER @ (@) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)
20195
10A1RE
2020%
9A30H
128 A =l
12 months 20194
from 12H31H
1 October HFE
2019 to Year ended
30 September 31 December
2020 2019
BEERITZEEREERER Selected income statement information of
BOCQ
FERBUA Net interest income 11,571,802 10,030,546
FREE KA WA Net fee and commission income 1,563,508 1,427,103
B BEER Loan impairment charges (4,995,097) (4,100,652)
BIES Tax expense (1,300,839) (1,419,428)
F 5 A Profit for the year 5,011,428 4,903,942
Hip2mes Other comprehensive income (39,250) 548,202
ZHWN B Total comprehensive income 4,972,178 5,452,144
BRERRITIRE Dividends received from BOCQ 118,387 80,344
(Z2) BEZRERZERA2020F R ZH (b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
=l recognised in 2020
2020512 A31H - AEEESEERITZREZ At 31 December 2020, the fair value of the Group’s investment in
ANEEDERRRBEANTE - Al - AEERE BOCQ had been below the carrying amount for approximately 7
HEBERITZRE Z REEETRERF AT years. On this basis, the Group continues to perform an impairment
EA U EISEE - test on the carrying amount of the investment in BOCQ to assess the
recoverable amount.
AR UG EFERAEE(ERAERE])mE The impairment test is performed by comparing the recoverable
EZEERITAIRESREMZINE ZREE ° F amount of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation,
REAEDZRBEREEGRE 2EERITRFIFIRR with the carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation uses
BREE - REZEREERITH MK 2GR discounted cash flow projections based on management’s estimates of
REEFERBRRNIERTFEE - ER BOCQ’s earnings and dividends to be paid in future, and the estimated
BIRBRSRERAGE - ERARNERAEBESNE probable exit value in future after considering the growth of BOCQ and
B KR I ER R AR TI5EER 2 EERITIRA its net asset value for the medium and longer term. The discount rate
RATEE o applied to the VIU calculation was estimated with reference to BOCQ’s
cost of equity, which is publicly available in the market.
190 DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2020 (Continued)

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable amount
of the investment, the Group considers all relevant factors including
market views and qualitative factors to ensure that the inputs to the
VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments need to be made to
reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ and also market outlook for
the medium and longer term that are relevant in projecting BOCQ’s
future performance. Significant management judgement is required in
estimating the future cash flows of BOCQ.

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31
December 2020, the recoverable amount, as determined by the
VIU calculation and after considering all relevant factors (including
the cumulative impairment charge having been recognised as of
31 December 2019) and valuation assumptions, remained below
the carrying amount. The latest impairment test performed by the
Group for the position as at 31 December 2020 concludes that the
recoverable amount, based on the VIU calculation, is assessed
as lower than the carrying amount, after deducting the cumulative
impairment allowance made up to 31 December 2019 of HK$1,735
million, by HK$531 million. As a result, an additional impairment charge
of HK$531 million was recognised in the year of 2020 to reduce the
value of the investment to HK$4,278 million.

The calculation of the Bank’s capital adequacy does not include the
retained earnings from the investment, except for BOCQ cash dividend
received by the Bank. Provided that the investment continues to
be held at or above the original cost of the investment of HK$1,213
million, impairment made on the investment does not affect the Bank’s
capital adequacy.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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24, HEZEHERRE 24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
2020 2019
FE LR - HZPAR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FE(GU SR Share of post-acquisition reserves 85,553 76,363
105,553 96,363
720204 % 20194F 12 531 B /9 H [R5 5 & B2 40 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2020
T ¢ and 2019:
hERREZESL
1 4t 26 TEERRSE I Percentage of
£ Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
PRI A R A A BE REER - &%
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
REETARARA BB MBS R BB
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
RIS RARRA 5 MBS ER - B
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
TESRBHEIRAR AR 2 Eam A ARIRITIFHE - MR The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by the
B E5E AR AR RIREE S BB R A 7 D IREFIEAR Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial
BRATIZEEWBAF - Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium Holding
Limited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EFER
CE BOER BREE
BV EE BREE Customer
BE Contract  Core deposit  relationship (i e
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
20201 A18 &% At 1 January 2020 and
2020F12431H 31 December 2020 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
2FERE Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
202041818 At 1 January 2020 - 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 177,859
VAERE: Impairment charge 98,239 - - - - 98,239
2020F12A31H At 31 December 2020 98,239 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 276,098
REE Carrying value
2020%12H31H At 31 December 2020 713,451 - - - 58,252 771,703
RPHR
BH ‘LR B AR
BV AE EVEAE Customer
RS Contract  Core deposit  relationship ki &5
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
2019F1 418 % At 1 January 2019 and
2019F12A31H 31 December 2019 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
ZRERE Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
201951 A1B &% At 1 January 2019 and
20194 12H31H 31 December 2019 = 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 177,859
FEE Carrying value
2019412 A431H At 31 December 2019 811,690 = = = 58,252 869,942

ERERAPRZEBEVEERRALD  RUERAEE
FRARER B E/ARBRRAIREN F5E12F
ZPAI RS o B AERERMRY S FFA
AERERIE RARANGR RIERER IR

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core deposit
intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are amortised
over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of indefinite life
and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss.

KFRITAR AR 2020F F
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25. BEREFEEE®
EENREERENBEEREEE —BHNELD

BERPAZRSELS
BORMEZ2FIMT °

S ([BReEEEM]) - /@

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is

presented below.

Bk BPY
Hong Kong Macau
RIEERTT B A SB4T IMRAT
Commercial Personal Overseas &%
Banking Banking Banking Total
PR Cost
2020F1 A1H At 1 January 2020 196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690
EFHHEGE) Reclassification (Note) (98,239) 98,239 - -
2020412 H31H At 31 December 2020 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
E2ERE Accumulated impairment
20201 A1H At 1 January 2020 - - - -
RERTE Impairment charge 98,239 - = 98,239
2020F12 H31H At 31 December 2020 98,239 - - 98,239
BREE Carrying value
2020%12AH31H At 31 December 2020 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
6 JRFY
Hong Kong Macau
PRI ERTT & ARTT ABINRTT
Commercial Personal Overseas a5
Banking Banking Banking Total
[B#N Cost
2019F1 A1 & At 1 January 2019 and
201912 A31H 31 December 2019 196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690
ZERBE Accumulated impairment
2019F1 A1H & At 1 January 2019 and
2019412 H31H 31 December 2019 - - - -
BREE Carrying value
201912 H31H At 31 December 2019 196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690

i

R20204F - ENFHEM A EE MEREH 2 HE - 5
MREERIT THRESRESEARITT -

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Note:

During 2020, part of the goodwill under Commercial Banking was transferred to
Personal Banking following the change in the management and reporting line of

a business unit.



a»
n I'. a» a» a® a®
N J (/N ( mm-m

@ @ @
25. BEREFEEE®
(2 BEREFEEZRERR
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AEBEREUBBRCELEN EBRZER
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9.97%(20194F : 10.1%) °

BB FHEIT 2 REARA T ERALRRAAEBR
52 3% iRl B E R UAR B8 2 A
B AR E F IR FE2%HORFE5F AR EKIE  FT
FEF 2 BRI % 59.97% (20194F : 10.1% ) JhiE &
RAEE 2 EARKAINEFHE -

R20204F - BRI S ELBMH ] EKSEE
REEHEE SBEEABRTHEERITR
EREXB R SEABMNERBERAERE
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

)

@ -
25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
(@) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use discounted cash flow
projections prepared by the Senior Management based on the latest
5-year business plan, taking into account projected annual growth
rate of net profit, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth rate
after the fifth year. The 5-year business plan was developed by the
Senior Management based on their evaluation of the businesses and
associated projected discounted cash flow of net profit of the relevant
CGU and the conditions in which such businesses will operate over
the projection period. The discount rate used is based on the Group’s
weighted average cost of capital at 9.97% (2019: 10.1%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate of 9.97%
(2019: 10.1%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of

capital.

During 2020, the Senior Management had decided to recognise a
goodwill impairment charge of HK$98,239,000 for the CGU of the
equipment finance business of Commercial Banking given that the
recoverable amount of the equipment finance business under this CGU
is lower than the carrying value. No impairment losses on goodwill in
other segments and trade name were identified in the year (2019: Nil).

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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26. MIBAQT]
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26. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Bank’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

T 2020:
ERTZBERBRAE
Particulars of
AEEE FEEK it 25 issued ordinary

Name of company

Principal activity

Place of incorporation

share capital

ARFERTT (B BR QA #R1T R AR AR

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China RMB1,200,000,000

RIS IRTTIRGD IR A $R1T R

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau MOP225,000,000

AIFREBERBR AR Rigas4 B

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong HK$200,000

ANHEFEAR AT IR ARRTS BB

Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong HK$100,000
REE B

Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$9,998

RHBEFARA EHFEE BB

Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
REER BB

DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$1
REER B

DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$1
MERE REBRAES

CWL Prosper Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands US$1

ZEIEERAF W& BB

OK Finance Limited Money lending Hong Kong HK$1,000

BREUE(EB)BRAR EidE BB

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong HK$450,000,000

HERERRAT MERE B

Vanishing Border Investment Property investment Hong Kong HK$20

Services Limited

MERE REBRLES

Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands US$1
MERE REERELHE

Reliable Associates Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands US$1
MEE KBRS

Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands us$2

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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26. MIEBDE @) 26. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BORPIRE SR TR (D B R A R (R 22% i m A The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
DSB BCM (1) Limited 2DSB BCM (2) Limited+F Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
BN AERRERARITEEERES - indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2) Limited,

which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

BORFPIEERITRMDBBR AT « RFTRT(FHE) Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
BRAR R EF|BAESEAINEMK A A Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
N - A ARIIERBLEE o above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.
RHERTT (R E) B R A ER200847 ATEF BIA Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
HEEMA AL - HARR AP EE AR AT 2 AR M July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
RIERABI(EHEE  BEBIRMAZLER by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
&) the People’s Republic of China.
27. TEREMBEEEE 27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS
==l
Restated
2020 2019
11 « 280 RR4E Premises, furniture and equipment 3,203,229 2,814,303
EREEE Right-of-use assets 662,807 413,967

3,866,036 3,228,270

MR2020%5 - FAEEERFEN1TERAMEE In 2020, right-of-use assets have been categorised under “Premises
BEETIR - MERFERI SEER K EA and other fixed assets” and are not reported as part of “Advances and
BRE JET - LB FTEENIIR - UFER other accounts”. The comparative figure has been restated to conform
F2BRER o with such presentation.

AEFHRITAR DT 20205F F3] 197
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27. TEREMEEEE@® 27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

() 17E - KR REE (a) Premises, furniture and equipment
B
BERAE
Furniture,
equipment
TE and motor &
Premises vehicles Total
HZ2019F12B31HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2019
FRERE Opening net book amount 2,459,194 463,953 2,923,147
g Additions - 101,593 101,593
HE Disposals - (7,495) (7,495)
FES W (1) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (63,237) (136,435) (199,672)
EHER Exchange difference (1,981) (1,289) (3,270)
FREREFE Closing net book amount 2,393,976 420,327 2,814,303
201912 A431H At 31 December 2019
BXAR Cost 2,898,260 1,129,842 4,028,102
B vl Accumulated depreciation (504,284) (709,515) (1,213,799)
BREHE Net book amount 2,393,976 420,327 2,814,303
BZE2020512A31ALFE Year ended 31 December 2020
FYRMFE Opening net book amount 2,393,976 420,327 2,814,303
g Additions 8,618 128,492 137,110
HE Disposals - (3,163) (3,163)
PrES H(FHTE11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (70,905) (126,739) (197,644)
EHER Exchange difference 6,956 4177 11,133
ENOERENERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 441,490 - 441,490
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,780,135 423,094 3,203,229
2020%F12A31H At 31 December 2020
BXAR Cost 3,356,404 1,219,746 4,576,150
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (576,269) (796,652) (1,372,921)
BREHE Net book amount 2,780,135 423,094 3,203,229

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(@) Premises, furniture and equipment (Continued)

TEZE@DFERRE The net book value of premises comprises:
2020 2019
TR e Leaseholds
EBBRAZ2FHEDY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(102504 2 [H) lease (between 10-50 years) 2,411,069 2,028,388
FEEBLAINEE 2 PRI A Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(102504 2 [H) term lease (between 10-50 years) 369,066 365,588
2,780,135 2,393,976
(2) HE (b) Leases

IR AR B RAEEA 2 HEREE R

() ERRIBERIEZEHE

MISRRRANEREEZ SRR

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of financial
position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

20205 20194
12A31H 1A1H
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2020 2019
EREEE Right-of-use assets
e Properties 662,807 413,967
HESE Lease liabilities
(BEEHEMRE RER) (included in other accounts and
accruals) 692,594 431,600

20 F M BRMFEANHMEFTREEES
439,890,000 7t (20194F : 72,647,000
JL) °

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 financial
year were HK$439,890,000 (2019: HK$72,647,000).

AEFHRITAR DT 20205F F3] 199
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27. TERAMBEEEE@ 27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

() HE@m
(i) BRRKZHRZELHE
WEHBEANEBHEE 2 %5RT ¢

(b)

Leases (Continued)
(i) Amounts recognised in the income statement

The income statement shows the following amounts relating to
leases:

b
Note 2020 2019
FRAEEEZIEXE Depreciation charge of right-
of-use assets
UE S Properties 11 194,673 181,238
FEZH(PEEMNEZE -HEEE) Interest expense (included
in interest expense
— lease liabilities) 7 10,574 13,499
EHRRHERREREEEZSH Expense relating to short-term
(BRETEREMEEEES T leases and low-value assets
TBERE) (included in premises and
other fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation) 11 4,303 7,918

2020 F N EMECH S RLBAE A
193,822,000/% 7T (20194 : 191,394,000/%
JT) °

(i) B EZERENAALR

AEBEHERBYE - 120194 %2020 -
HEAR—RA1FEEZF 2 BT HRE A A
B A0 T 21 (v) St 2 3T AR 24 o

HERRERNBIBZREEZTEZITR
fERR B AR A ﬁ%tﬁ%ﬂ/\ﬁﬁﬁ%zg%z%
REEzIN - ESRIL @ IEMRL - 18
BEZEEMFFTENMEERE ERIFRREY -

1E|E

(iv) HERRAIZEERE

EE&%?JJ:%%% BREAEERRIIZET
MERER - AAKBEEENSEPERZ
BEMS - @Eﬁ%E SR ERRERER
A e REBEFAZIER R IDEEER T
AR EmIER HAATTEE ©

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was HK$193,822,000
(2019: HK$191,394,000).

(i) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years for 2019 and
2020, but may have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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28. REME 28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2020 2019
1H1H At 1 January 1,208,641 1,236,930
HHAFEEE Fair value losses on revaluation (84,240) (28,289)
BN BREMESITE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises (441,490) -
12A31H At 31 December 682,911 1,208,641
RERFH 2 BEARERSR Unrealised gains or losses recognised
B R AP E Wk &R in income statement relating to those
assets held at the end of the year
—nEEBE — Fair value losses (84,240) (28,289)
KB REFERE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2020 2019
TR Leaseholds
ERBRFE 2R EHELD Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(102504 2 ) lease (between 10-50 years) 554,740 1,073,388
TEBBAINEE 2 HAFEAY Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(FE102=50F 2 ) term lease (between 10-50 years) 128,171 135,253
682,911 1,208,641
FTEREMEZAFE Fair value measurement of investment properties

REE 720204 220195F12 A31 H AR EMEH)
BEET T B o A E BB L EERSTAER
FE-—ARFEEM(EERTEER)BRAE AN
REBRFEBRZIREMERE — K FH T
CRF) BRARABMINRF ZIREMEREFELL
BHESWMARBEEETEATTLRE Z U
ST HAR SR AT SR SRAET T ©

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2020 and 2019 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited for investment properties in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for investment properties in
Macau.

MSEERMEZ HERER - HEFBWERE
ZRF1FA A FEFE)R 2 A FEEE R
EFtARTISR28EM S < HKe MxEN YD
& o property from the perspective of market participants.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the

AFTRITAR AT 20205F F 3, 201
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28. REWEm)
STEREVMEZAFE@®

WEMEURSBTIAER 2 BIEERBERE
AEATE  EWOBEWAT AT AV BHE
EHFE1FCAFEAE)P A FESHNEIR
Al o

T EREMENEER HR—HFEKEAR
KERRR - R RENEZNEFHRNRE
BT R E BALER - TS ZBENTE
7 R1,92875 7T (20194 : 1,850 L) 2 FF A
IR 114,000/5 7T (20194F : 127,600/87T) - $4E &
UEROTREERREME L AFEFZ=EE
FEE D LERE D - RZINA o

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are classified
as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
value measurement”.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$1,928 (2019: HK$1,850) to HK$114,000 (2019: HK$127,600) per
square foot. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage and vice versa.

29. Hih&EE 29. OTHER ASSETS

2020 2019
FEW R IE RIENIE B Accounts receivable and prepayments 5,668,310 3,988,929
FERTULA Accrued income 886,868 1,099,930
HAh Others 190,369 219,179

30. FHMFEEMARNER

6,745,547 5,308,038

30. TRADING LIABILITIES

2020 2019

mEBEREMBEEES

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 1,570,675 5,516,558
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31. EFER 31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
2020 2019
V& BT R R A AR TF K Demand deposits and current accounts ~ 53,780,706 40,877,718
HEFER Savings deposits 40,948,121 33,076,969
EH - BN EITER Time, call and notice deposits 96,512,854 109,589,790
191,241,681 183,544,477
XEFO&B®RESWHIFEADERBE N HE Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$18,222,000 (2019:
ANE 2 R 2 15 7018,222,000/%5 7T (2019 4F - HK$10,136,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments under
10,136,000/ 7T) ° import letters of credit.
REHR - BANREHERIN  IBEEMEFER Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits
BRIZEFEHR carry variable interest rates.
32. ERITHERE 32. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED
2020 2019
TR R Z R T A SRR At amortised cost with fair value
RSN FEE R ARSI hedge adjustments (for hedging
interest rate risk) 1,561,697 4,911,274
AR AT | BR At amortised cost 6,564,105 1,839,551
8,125,802 6,750,825
20204F 2019F A + ZREBIR A R W) iA HERR R During 2020 and 2019, the Group did not designate on initial
EEFMERTERERBAATEFE B &S recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit
T AEE - or loss.
RNEEE S F D BITFRE SRR E AR The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
SR A A7 2 BRE{E 1K 1,000,0007% 7T (2019 maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$1 million
F : 156,000,000/ 7T) © lower (2019: HK$6 million higher) than the above carrying amount.
AFRITAR AT 20204 F 3] 203
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33. #ZEFK 33. SUBORDINATED NOTES
2020 2019

TR R 2R B B T LA RRA AN S A8 A F1E At amortised cost with fair value

¥R IREER IR hedge adjustments (for hedging

interest rate risk):

225,000,000 7T 720204 £ #AY US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

EEBEREFGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2020 (Note (a)) = 1,755,635
250,000,000 7T7220264F £I| Hi#Y US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

EEZRERKGE(Z)) Rate Notes due 2026 (Note (b)) 1,964,475 1,946,445
225,000,000 7T 20294 ZI| # Ay US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

EEZERFGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2029 (Note (c)) 1,863,983 1,808,101

1R20204F & 2019F A » A5 B KRB R VA FERRF
EETMBEEEANATFEFEBEESHTA
B35 -

i

() 1L J3724R77HA 201042 A 11 H 277,2.225,000,000
ETEFIMER Z AT ([#2FT]) ET AT A
MiinE AR E BB EER([ER]) - RETER
20202 A 11 BB B 2 BURE L ET -

(Z) W hAEITHR20164F11 A308 %172
250,000,000 TEBERER H ([ BAERXSA])
tHREAEBEBRENTERAE A - FERN
10FHiE B A EER (&) (RETEB(ER
TEER)RADZIERK) o 1 EEH K 572026
11 A30H 2|8 - EEHEEEH /20214 11
AB0H - HETHEHEREUEER §F84
4.25% @ FEFEMB K - Hi - WEKKRER
BUEEEED SN ES5RERSF
NERBEES S KM2B58T - ZEEEES
ERTELRE - RIRITRIAREEEEE A GE
B )ELS o ANRITINE E— R RITRI M ARz
AR BB H EE I SRR AR T RITR 3
P EAERA)ZENF SR -
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3,828,458 5,510,181

During 2020 and 2019, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

(0)

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 11 February
2010 (the “Notes”), which were listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange
Trading Limited (“SGX”). The Notes had been fully repaid by the Bank on
the maturity date of 11 February 2020.

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 30
November 2016 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 30 November
2026 with an optional redemption date falling on 30 November 2021.
Interest at 4.25% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to
the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed,
the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at the then
prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. The Bank
may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the
Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.
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33.
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1t T 7R 88771420194 1 A 15 B 317 2 225,000,000
ETEEAR I LT RS BERG TN
REA-FERNNIOFHTE SHREER(TERH])
(7BEFEBCRITE(ER) BRI ZIER) - E
ESHER2029F1 158 B - REMEER A
20241 H15H - BEITHEHEEHEER -
FRAR% BEEMBE—K - Hi%  WEBEK
EREMBEERED AN ESEAER
5EHEBIR (&5 5 R N25520 F - BEBES
SERELME - ABTALZEEERLEMA
(FEEH ) ET - ANRITINE B —BPRERITET L F
i B S A K BB H EE I SR AUETRT
R E AETERZENF SR -

NEBENSFEBHIHKFZEOENNSE
B A _F AT 5 2 BR M {E 1K 146,000,000 7t (2019
F : {£59,000,000/& 7T ) °
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33. SUBORDINATED NOTES (continued)
Note: (Continued)

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 15 January 2029 with an optional redemption date falling on 15
January 2024. Interest at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at
the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. The
Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem
the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract
to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest
rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$146 million

lower (2019: HK$59 million lower) than the above carrying amount.

KFRITAR AR 2020F F
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34. EEHIIE

EEHBEERBBENHBREABRENITE
555 B HA 18 8 AN B AT 18 B (B B RO AR IR
B[R -G EE R T AT - HiE 2SR

a® a® a»
a®

[/ ] @ Q- >

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes

T relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
2020 2019

BEEHEEE Deferred income tax assets 124,680 115,216

ELEREAE Deferred income tax liabilities (11,598) (17,293)

EEVBREERABERBERERZHRER R
Bz T BB AT AT

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date of
recovery and settlement are as follows:

2020 2019
RETHHEE Deferred income tax assets:
— AJTE12E B g Y Bl 2 IR IR & B — Deferred income tax assets
to be recovered after more than
12 months 255,876 257,860
FERIEBE ¢ Deferred income tax liabilities:
— 12 AR EERE ZREFRIARE — Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled after more than
12 months (142,794)  (159,937)
113,082 97,923

IEETIRAR B BT -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2020 2019
1H1H At 1 January 97,923 136,846
U BR AFEIE (2 ), B (i sE14) Tax (charged)/credited to the income
statement (Note 14) (11,109) 14,940
PiEERABIIBEIE (X H) (K:E38) Tax credited/(charged) to equity
(Note 38) 21,423 (52,294)
EHER Exchange difference 4,845 (1,569)
12A31H At 31 December 113,082 97,923

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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34. EIEBIE @)

BEEHBREERBBERAFEZEE  TRER
MRBUREERE THE G T

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

BEERBEEE : Deferred income tax assets:
HE
EHEREE EEXH
Impairment KA
allowances Deferred
and expenses and S&h
provisions others Total
20191 H1H At 1 January 2019 198,646 52,644 251,290
RUREER A (S ),/ el (Charged)/credited to the income statement (997) 9,136 8,139
EHER Exchange difference (862) (707) (1,569)
201912 431H % 20201 H1H At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 196,787 61,073 257,860
RURESEE AR/ (S H) Credited/(charged) to the income statement 5,057 (11,886) (6,829)
ERER Exchange difference 3,024 1,821 4,845
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 204,868 51,008 255,876
BLEREBESE: Deferred income tax liabilities:
NERBHE REWEER
Accelerated Investment REE
B tax properties Investment SHr
Provisions depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
201941 A1H At 1 January 2019 14,636 90,486 4,734 4,588 114,444
RSB ASE /(B8)  Charged/(credited) to the
income statement 207 (6,611) (397) - (6,801)
PR AR TR ] £ Credited to equity - - - 52,294 52,294
2019F 12318 & At 31 December 2019 and
20201 A1H 1 January 2020 14,843 83,875 4,337 56,882 159,937
RUGEEER (%) /S (Credited)/charged to the
income statement (7,117) 11,862 (465) - 4,280
WEREERSE /(E#)  Charged/(credited) to equity 1 = = (21,424) (21,423)
202012831 R At 31 December 2020 7,72 95,737 3,872 35,458 142,794

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The deferred income tax credited/(charged) to equity during the year is
as follows:

2020 2019
IR R 2 A AR Fair value reserves in shareholders’
equity:
— UAFEE B HEE S ALt 2 EmREER - financial assets at fair value through
S & E (H5E38) other comprehensive income
(Note 38) 21,423 (52,294)

35. HEEENFZER

RAMBARERARE SR ESKKERRERE
BRARR—BRERGCRETRIMELE Z BHRF

35. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies

FEAT arising from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:
2020 2019
EEERREAMRE Advances and other accounts 580 573
EEFM Deposits from customers 1,031,024 953,000
HAbhR B KELR Other accounts and accruals 313 2,033

RAMBAREARE BRERRHERR.ZE

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions

BREFFIZATE - are balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:

2020 2019
ZHEERLEMERE Advances and other accounts 6,888 8,746
EEFM Deposits from customers 309,312 476,180
HhBER H KTERE Other accounts and accruals 15,411 13,109

208 DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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36. HARBERARE 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
() EXRELE (@) Capital commitments

R12A31BERB RIDRIRRERE 2 BEE KiE
ABEEEEZEARENT :

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets
as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

2020 2019

EROBERERERZAX

(2) FEESE

AEBEERBRIMERETEFZERIA
BRTBEREEERRINEEENT

Expenditure contracted but not

provided for 198,240 147,096

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-balance
sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to customers
are as follows:

EHEHE
Contract amount
2020 2019
BEEREERES Direct credit substitutes 645,720 563,882
X 51808 2 kAT E Transaction-related contingencies 537,138 527,442
R B HREE 2 S AIEE Trade-related contingencies 846,898 967,813
ATEGHEUB M N ETB L B2 & Commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice 72,035,740 74,428,118
HAbAE - ARANERA Other commitments with an original
maturity of:
— PP - under 1 year 4,060,949 3,999,906
—1FERNAE -1 year and over 362,675 758,023
78,489,120 81,245,184
EERMESREE
Credit risk weighted amount
2020 2019
R BB AP Contingent liabilities and commitments 1,574,554 1,794,624

KFRITAR AR 2020F F
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36. FABEBERAE®@

() BEEREE

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

2020 2019
BB ZHEEERAGREEN Trading assets and financial
SRS EIEREER investments pledged to secure
liabilities 3,077,937 4,600,158
—Hrh iR EERE - of which: under repurchase
agreements 1,506,126 686,003
ERzAESEE Amount of liabilities secured 3,123,207 4,597,103
—Hr RO — of which: under repurchase
agreements 1,551,207 671,153

ERIRIERRANEEMT L ERERERE
RZEE - ZERZDIRERREENERRZ S
(BIEE B R IR E E U REA R R R f4E
B2 AR ) 16T

(T) EEEERE

WAEEZ ARRHEA - BTATBUE RS
HEMRARRKEW 2 HEBENFRAETELT

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted to
secure liabilities on a legal and contractual basis. These transactions
are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to
collateralized transactions including repurchase agreements, and
include assets pledged to cover short positions and to facilitate
settlement processes with clearing houses.

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating leases
are as follows:

2020 2019

1F AR Within 1 year 16,180 24,891
1FF24 Between 1 and 2 years 11,521 5,186
2FEIF Between 2 and 3 years 839 2,253
28,540 32,330

BEoN - ANEEEREME A - B R2020%F %2019
12A31 BRI ETIHARBRZAE - ZRSHE
i fE 2 < 2 M E I B EE & 5T 428,953,000/% 7T
(20194 : 435,610,000787T) °

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number of leases
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 that have not yet commenced.
The aggregate lease payments payable under these leases amount to
HK$28,953,000 (2019: HK$435,610,000).
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37. A& 37. SHARE CAPITAL
2020 2019

€ ;&N e &N
EER Ordinary shares, Number of Share Number of Share
ERTRHAZRKRAE : issued and fully paid: shares capital shares capital
1H1B K&12H31H At 1 January and 31 December 62,000,000 6,200,000 62,000,000 6,200,000

2020F 12 A31AE BT EBBRBRMHEE A A
62,000,000/% (20194F : 62,000,000f%) ° FTEE

BT RIDI B BT - paid.

RFRITERAF] 2020F F#H

The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2020
is 62 million shares (2019: 62 million shares). All issued shares are fully
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38. f#fE 38. RESERVES
TEEf REER NRARE REEF
i B il A (&)
SafE Premises  Investment i —fRf#E  Reservefor Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation Exchange General  Share-based Earnings &t
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
2020F151A At1 January 2020 8,827 233,100 415,026 (369,660) 700,254 14,514 19,983,512 20,985,573
NFEMERNEILRAEHER  Fair value gain realised and transferred
IATEHEEEEHAA  toincome statement upon disposal
E2ANENESTAE  of debtinstruments at fair value
ERREBENGRE through other comprehensive
income upon derecognition - - (13,448) - - - - (13,448)
IATEFEBESE: AL Net change in fair value of debt
2EREHEFIAZATE  instruments at far value through
838 other comprehensive income - - (78,340) - - - - (78,340)
IVAT(E S BEZHE AL Net change in fair value of equity
SENGEHNBEETAZATE  instruments at fair value through
2858 other comprehensive income - - (1,387) - - - - (1,387)
RAS(ERERYZETHE  Deferred income tax on movements in
(Frzka4) investment revaluation reserve
(Note 34) - - 21,423 - - - - 21,423
INAFERE EEZFF AL Net change in allowance for expected
SANENEBIEZES  oreditlosses of debt instruments
EEBRERRYTE at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 6,422 - - - - 6,422
PR IEERR - EFAE Reclassification of net change in fair
IATEHEEEEHHA  value of equity instruments at fair
Ef2EREAESETAZ  value through other comprehensive
ATEEEFE income upon derecognition - - (13,853) - - - 13,853 -
BOMERHTEZIREZUE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments = = = - - - (41,266) (41,266)
HEBMEENBRR Exchange differences arising
HERZE on translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities = = = 387,859 = = - 387,859
DA FIAREAZR  Provision for equity-settled share-
Tz BEREMEE based compensation and other
adjustment - - - - - 820 (352) 468
FERf Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,475,462 1,475,462
0195 KBRS 2019 final dividend - - - - - - (471,200) (471,200)
20205 HHRS 2020 interim dividend - - - - - - (112,840) (112,840)
2020%12A318 At 31 December 2020 8,827 233,100 335,843 18,199 700,254 15,334 20,847,169 22,158,726
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38. fEiE@ 38. RESERVES (Continued)
BZE12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
2020 2019
BERRERNANZ Proposed final dividend/final dividend
RO REAR S, BIRAER S paid included in retained earnings
(Fff¥zE16) (Note 16) 291,400 471,200
3 Note:
NEITREUEE BT GG BB R RE LR FRE The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
AN AR ER R - @52 BB M (FiEET ORI those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
ZRITRAFRIT(FR)) DATEEBIRITEGDI KRIA reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
FEHEEABNZAHMEERTE - ZEERBERRE AR the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
BIRREEESRE EEREZEHERETEEER requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
TR WEEANERFEERNTR - restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.
MR2020F12 A31 8 + AR 172 5 502,278,000 7T As at 31 December 2020, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
(20194F : 1,127,403,000/8 7T ) 2 @ BBIE BB 5 HK$502,278,000 (2019: HK$1,127,403,000) first against the consolidated
AR — MR G BB ARRITZEAREBRFH general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
HEE ° the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
AHFRITERR AR 20204 F 3] 213
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38. fEiE@ 38. RESERVES (Continued)
R A REEF
EBRGEE RESEER R G (i)
Gakh Premises  Investment 381 —M&E  Resenefor Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation Exchange General  Share-based Eamings Rt
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
2019F1A1H At1 January 2019 8,827 233,100 66,446 (209,714) 700,254 13,108 18,455,241 19,267,262
MEEAEASHAEEE  Changes on initial application of

Al pa ] HKFRS16 - - - - - - 0817) 0817
&Y 22019F1 A1R &S Restated balance at 1 January 2019 8,827 233,100 66,446 (209,714) 700,254 13,108 18,445,424 19,257,445

F@Eﬂﬁwﬂﬂ:ﬁﬁ 'EHIEH)  Fair value loss realised and transferred

ANFEFEEEZHHAA  toincome statement upon disposal
ﬁﬁ!?ﬁﬂﬁ(éﬂ@%ﬁlﬁ of debt instruments at fair value
KERREBENRE through other comprehensive
income upon derecognition - - 24 - - - - 24
IATEFEEEZHHA  Netchange in fair value of debt
Ef2EUENEKTIEZ  instruments at fair value through
’WEF )t other comprehensive income - - 395,412 - - = - 395,412
AATEFEEEZEA  Netchange in fair value of equity

HM%WZ SEESMTEYZ  instruments at fair value through

INTEEE) other comprehensive income - - 951 - - - - 951
REERREZYZETHA  Deferred income tax on movements in

(Firza4) investment revaluation reserve

(Note 34 - - (2.294) - - - - (52.294)
ATEFEAAEE AL Net change in allowance for expected
%Wiﬁnﬂﬁﬁ%lﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ credit losses of debt instruments
EEFREREDTR at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 4,487 - - - - 4,487
BIVERIETEZRESUE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (41,682) (41,682)
BEBMEER AR Exchange differences arising
MERZE on translation of the financial
statements of foreign entities - - - (159,946) - - - (159,946)
DARIES AR G{EAZR  Provision for equity-settled share-

HM B based compensation - - - - - 1,406 - 1,406
ERER Profit for the year - - - - - - 2215270 2215270
2018FREEE 2018 final dividend - - - - - - (452,600) (452,600)
20195 HRS 2019 interim dividend - - - - - - (182,900) (182,900)
20195124318 At 31 December 2019 8,827 233,100 415,026 (369,660) 700,254 14,514 19,983,512 20,985,573
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PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

39. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

On 8 December 2017, the Bank issued Basel lll-compliant undated
non-cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities (the
“AT1 Capital Securities”) with a notional principal of US$115,000,000.
They were fully subscribed by DSFH.

The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up to the
amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that in
the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body that a write-
off is necessary, without which the Bank would become non-viable.

Distribution at 4.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December 2022.
Thereafter, if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed, the
distribution rate will be reset every 5 years and it will bear distribution
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 248.5 basis
points. The Bank has the right to cancel distribution payment, subject
to the requirement as set out in the terms and conditions of the
AT1 Capital Securities, and the distribution cancelled shall not be
cumulative.

The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part, at par either
on the optional redemption date or any distribution payment date
thereafter.

KFRITAR AR 2020F F
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40. FERERBEFERME

() MilrE TREREEEEZWHERER
Az EERAEKEEFH A, RA

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net

w TS > e w TS &> @

REFEHER cash (used in)/from operating activities
2020 2019
MBETRERETEEZ W REERZ Operating profit before gains and losses
BRI on certain investments and fixed assets 1,751,578 2,156,208
ERLEMA Net interest income (3,685,364)  (4,055,775)
DEeENL G Dividend income (5,942) (10,084)
EEREEE Credit impairment losses 646,968 356,386
e Depreciation 392,317 380,910
B B Ui 2 B RO SRR Advances written off net of recoveries (361,518) (246,840)
DARSHE 7 {5 LARG AR 1B 5 B R SR BN 2 B4 Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation 820 1,406
B FIE Interest received 6,134,840 7,314,139
EASFE Interest paid (2,465,493)  (2,824,308)
BEHARE Dividend received 29,942 33,484
2BEEMABEHR 2 EERT Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,438,148 3,105,526
HEEERBECE Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
— R @ RIERITH AR LIRS EI AR - cash and balances with banks and
3 A 2 xR 58 BifF K money at call and short notice
with an original maturity beyond
three months 473,839 2,492,932
— [RE|HA BB A3(E A 2 LRI TR TE 3K — placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three
months (1,626,395) 5,966,512
—FEEBERENES — trading securities 2,184,413 839,715
—TESmTA — derivative financial instruments 1,530,162 778,982
—UATEER RS AERNEREE - financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 328,768 (1,285)
—BHER — trade bills (397,261) 1,283,399
—EPEX — advances to customers (630,014)  (8,318,281)
— H At IR B — other accounts receivable (1,650,571)  (1,429,160)
—UATEEBES T A MEE — financial assets at fair value through
WamH e & E other comprehensive income (698,347) 2,207,445
— ARSI BRA £ REE B — financial assets at amortised cost (6,879,639)  (6,497,439)
—RITIE — deposits from banks 1,035,373  (1,332,487)
—FHEEBERSENARE — trading liabilities (3,945,883) (242,396)
—BFFER — deposits from customers 7,697,204 9,634,465
— BTGB - certificates of deposit issued 1,374,183 213,043
—HMERRE KR — other accounts payable and accruals (3,506,134) 2,167,779
b H AR Exchange adjustments (170,568) 51,178
MBS (FTA), /AR E Cash (absorbed by)/generated from
operating activities (2,442,722) 10,919,928
XNBEITHEREZ A Interest paid on certificates of deposit
issued (159,356) (134,799)
EHBBNEN Hong Kong profits tax paid (371,319) (460,124)
EAUBINIRK Overseas tax paid (22,291) (29,488)
wEEB(FTA) TARSFE Net cash (used in)/from operating
activities (2,995,688) 10,295,517
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

[ 7N [ [ /N ] [ /N )
40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash

and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to

Koo known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
2020 2019
iﬁ%&&%ﬂﬁé’ﬂiﬁﬁ Cash and balances with banks 4,154,361 2,325,920
FREHA B /2SR A gk LA T 2 A & 52 HATF 3k Money at call and short notice with an
original maturity within three months 10,026,173 13,759,907
[REIEA A E3ME A sk A T 2 FESRI T TR Placements with banks with an original
maturity within three months 474,017 2,234,110
BIERBEEBERRNESFRN ZBIEEE Treasury bills included in trading
securities 482,991 1,606,484
BRERAAFHEFEREZEHETA Treasury bills included in financial
EfrmianemEENBERE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 3,551,262 4,496,472
18,688,804 24,422,893

RESE BRAF AR R ER1THY 45£2405,550,0007% 7T
(2019%F : 415,522,000 70) B[ IR & R ERIE
SHE IRETIRERBEEEI RS RERITHE
ERIBRIE T ©

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$405

,550,000 (2019:

HK$415,522,000) were balances with central banks for prudential
purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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CASH FLOWS (Continued)
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40. ZEBHERELERMT@ 40.
(A) RERMETH 8B YRR (c)

TRAMAEERERE TS AEED  BF
RE mﬂﬁxﬁiﬂZEﬁ |
Hiﬁi/majfﬁxiﬁéumﬂ%
MEARRNDBEAMETERERCAE -

Re MR 2B -

activities

EAKEGERE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

REREEE
ZBEAH
Total
HEAE HREEH ERFE  liabilities from
Lease  Subordinated Interest financing
liabilities notes payable activities
720191 A1H At 1 January 2019 538,261 5,449,082 91,615 6,078,958
MERS R AT : Changes from financing cash flows:
YHERTEREES Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REBEFZHE debt securities issued = = (291,958) (291,958)
BITREED Issue of subordinated notes - 1,753,426 = 1,753,426
ERRERER Repayment of subordinated notes = (1,765,339) = (1,765,339)
BEHEAR Repayment of lease liabilities (191,394) - - (191,394)
HERSNZEDEH Total changes from financing cash flows (191,394) (11,913) (291,958) (495,265)
Hin#s) : Other changes:
ERTREEGRESBES Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
_ ZJESTAIE debt securities issued - - 292,999 292,999
%ﬂa’*ﬁ%ﬁ% Additions to lease liabilities 72,647 - - 72,647
EHER Exchange difference (1,413) (33,739) - (35,152)
HEaE 2 FEXIT Interest expense on lease liabilities 13,499 = = 13,499
NEEEE) Fair value change - 106,751 - 106,751
At E 58 Total other changes 84,733 73,012 292,999 450,744
R2019F12A31H At 31 December 2019 431,600 5,510,181 92,656 6,034,437
ERER Exchange difference 4917 - - 4917
120201518 At 1 January 2020 436,517 5,510,181 92,656 6,039,354
MERSM AT : Changes from financing cash flows:
S‘ZHE?‘MQ 151% Interest paid on subordinated notes and
KRB ESZ NS debt securities issued - - (229,021) (229,021)
BEREER Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,746,731) - (1,746,731)
ERHERRE Repayment of lease liabilities (193,822 - = (193,822)
REBERZBHLE Total changes from financing cash flows (193,822 (1,746,731) (229,021) (2,169,574)
Hitn23) : \ Other changes:
BRTRERTRELRS Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
_ ZIEEHIE debt securities issued - - 183,669 183,669
EHERE Additions to lease liabilities 439,890 - - 439,890
EXEE Exchange difference (565) (16,649) - (17,214)
BERBE MBS Interest expense on lease liabilities 10,574 - - 10,574
NEEEE) Fair value change - 81,657 - 81,657
Hit @845 Total other changes 449,899 65,008 183,669 698,576
M2020%12831H At 31 December 2020 692,594 3,828,458 47,304 4,568,356
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PR R M T
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

a®
(/N w Q-
41. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES CONNECTED
WITH DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are shown as below.

2020 2019
M12A31B 2B G AREEERE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding at 31
December
—BERRBR - Loans and advances 218 22,103
FRNEBR G 2 = iBEER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions during the year
—ERKRIAR - Loans and advances 526 23,822

R2020%F )2 20195 Ll 2 FR B BRI 5 B ANERTT

% -

42. BEBREALTZRS

NIRRT 2 EEEBR AR ARMRITEEER QA
(TRFRITEE]) RERERARAFTERER
EREEEMNEE LM ARF] e

R20204F &20194F + ANRITIZ — AR S50 B
ERARREMRARNBARREZ B ERE
R BIERITREFEREMZ HERDHA

Sh—REBER - REEMRITRE -

BN - AERIT IR A SAIER AR R ER R B R
AR ENRITERRY - HERSEMETRE
MR o

The above relevant transactions in 2020 and 2019 were all transacted
by the Bank.

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s immediate holding company Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”) and the ultimate holding company is DSFH. Both
holding companies are incorporated and listed in Hong Kong.

During 2020 and 2019, the Bank entered into various continuing
connected transactions with its holding companies, and other fellow
subsidiaries on normal commercial terms. These transactions include
interbank placements and deposit taking, marketing and distribution of
life and general insurance products and the provision of other banking

services.
In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative

services to its ultimate holding company and its fellow subsidiaries,
leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.

KFRITAR AR 2020F F
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42. BREALTZRZ @ 42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
HEBEATZ2EARSUOT ¢ Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:
() BERARAREBRMBATRNR S R (@ Transactions and balances with holding companies and
&% fellow subsidiaries
(i) WARZH ()  Income and expenses
HERBAERAT
Immediate and ERKIE AR
ultimate holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
2020 2019 2020 2019
BAFLE Interest paid (11,139) (19,194) (2,574) (5,371)
BIHE Interest received - = 37 51
BElAE Commission received - - 29,003 29,294
BRI R, Service fee received/recovery of
A EES other operating expenses 6,827 6,874 6,284 7,169
Bl S RARAE Rental and related building
.
HER management fee received - = 5,140 4,739
BT HE A 2E T Other operating expenses paid - - (9,150) 8,172)
EfHE Rental paid = - 4,412) (5,135)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) Key management personnel

(i)  Material transactions and balances with directors
and key management personnel

During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with the key
management personnel, their close family members and the
entities controlled by them including deposit taking, loans, credit
card facilities and investment services. These transactions were
provided in the ordinary course of business and at the same
terms with other employees.

Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
management personnel are immaterial and the loans and
deposits balances with them are shown below:

2020 2019

B NE Loans and advances 192 377
TR Deposits 435,409 570,189
REA 2 B 0EGE Undrawn commitments 3,373 4,128
R Guarantee - -

(i) TEEEASHZ

REITEREEABRRITES - HRPCD
BRERZFIRHES -

(A) EREQARARAREHER IR RE
23

FA - ARTEIEBELRRAEERT
118,387,0007% 7T (20194F : 80,344,000/ 7T ) i%
BUWA - FR - AETESERIZERIERBEN
i H 1202012 A 31 A 7 51 4 #4 5 540,391,000
7570 (20194F © 173,424,000/87T) °

(i) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Bank are executive directors
and their remunerations are included under Note 15.

(c) Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entity

During the year, the Bank received from BOCQ, an associate, dividend
income of HK$118,387,000 (2019: HK$80,344,000). During the year,
the Bank took deposits from the jointly controlled entities and the
balance of deposit as at 31 December 2020 was HK$540,391,000
(2019: HK$173,424,000).
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() RFRITEEE

AFTIRTT
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Each of the Bank’s immediate holding company (Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”)) and ultimate holding company (Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)) has its own share option
schemes. The Board of Directors of DSBG and DSFH can grant to any
employees, including directors of the Bank and of the Group, options
to subscribe for shares of DSBG or DSFH under the DSBG Share
Option Scheme (the “DSBG Scheme”) and the DSFH Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”) approved by shareholders.

Share-based compensation through the DSBG Scheme and the DSFH
Scheme is available to directors and senior executives of the Group.

(@9 DSBG Scheme

The shareholders of DSBG approved the adoption of a share option
scheme (the “DSBG Scheme”) on 27 May 2014.

The share options were granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the DSBG Scheme. The exercise price per option share
was concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on
behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the SEHK and was determined as no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of DSBG’s
shares traded on the SEHK for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.
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43. LR B ERHRENG B 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(Z2) R¥F&mstal (b) DSFH Scheme
201555 A27H - R¥1& BAR R @B HLHEE AN On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of DSFH approved the adoption of
R EI([ KT aEtEll) - a share option scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”).
A& BhaT & B £ B 8 E£2020F 12 A31H Ik - No share options had been granted under the DSFH Scheme since the
WA RRRERBE AT SR SR - date of its adoption to 31 December 2020.
BAFIRIT R E S 5 5 B 222020612 A 31 Share options granted under the DSBG Scheme since the date of its
B - 2T LARIAE : adoption to 31 December 2020:
BRITEECGER)
®FH 5l REHE 1758 Exercise price per
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period share (HK$)
201844 FA26H VARG 2 A~ 201854 826HZE 201954 526 H %
2023%F4 H26H 20244 A26H

26/04/2018 Equity-settled 26/04/2018-26/04/2023 26/04/2019-26/04/2024 18.24
UG IR ATER 2 AR D AERE R 2 T HA T - Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as follows:

2020 2019
LARR#E 3% 1+ 2 SRR Equity-settled options 821 1,406
LIRS 2R’ Equity-settled options
B K IRIT R BFT S AT T 2 AR FESZ Y With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the DSBG
R HRETRZATEA=ZBRAEE Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using the
BRAEHE - Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are

granted.

20204F + M R (E(I AR IESZ (< 2 RIRFERIE R No equity-settled options were granted under the DSBG Scheme and
IRTTREFT SRS REREEIRD - DSFH Scheme in the year of 2020.

KFRITAR AR 2020F F
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43. DB AERREETE @) 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(Z) R¥F&/TEm (b) DSFH Scheme (Continued)
LRSS (1 258 ) Equity-settled options (Continued)
BT 2 RSB REMETFHITEE 2 Z8hin Movements in the number of share options granted and their related
T weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
AFBTEEE RE&asE
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
2019 2020 2019
it} Sl o]
BEAS BE BE
RITEE AFiem Nk

AR OMETH  FET ETE RRET O NETS JRET  nETS
ROBE  TRE RHHE e ROHE  TEE  RHEE T8
Number (&) Number (%) Number  (%x) Number (%)
of DSBG Weighted of DSBG Weighted ~ of DSFH Weighted of DSFH  Weighted

shares  average shares  average shares  average shares  average
inshare  exercise  inshare  exercise  inshare exercise  inshare  exercise
options price  options price  options price  options price
granted (HK$)  granted (HK$)  granted (HK$)  granted (HK$)

1A1H At 1 January 1,500,000 18.24 1,562,312 17.98 - - - -
il Granted - - = = - - = -
B8 Expired - - - - - - - -
BTl /B Exercised/redeemed - - (62,312 11.68 = - = =
EEH/ % Cancelled/forfeited (300,000) 18.24 = = = = = =
12A31H At 31 December 1,200,000 18.24 1,500,000 18.24 - - - -
12A31B AT Exercisable at 31 December 480,000 18.24 300,000 18.24 - - - -
RFTIRITEERN2020F12 A31 B AR TFE 2R HﬂE DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2020 have an
ZAITE(EH18.2475 L (20194 : 18.24/57T) - exercise price of HK$18.24 (2019: HK$18.24), and a weighted average
Hin#EFHFEeRE LD ﬁ@%ﬁ%S.SQE(ZOWE ! remaining contractual life of 3.32 years (2019: 4.32 years). In respect of
4.32F) - R AEBEESRSRITHRAEI#EA directors and senior executives of the Group, there is no DSFH’s share
2 REE R AR - 122020512 A31 HIR B ARTT option outstanding as of 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

2 R¥T<& paR ki (2019F : )8 F) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

)

44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(@) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has
offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the
gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December
2020 and 2019, the net amount was a receivable and was included
in,“Accounts receivable and prepayments” in Note 29. The amounts
offset are shown below.

2020 2019
BB REE 7 FIBRRE Gross amount of accounts receivable
from HKSCC 172,133 105,902
[ENBARREE 2 IR EE Gross amount of accounts payable
to HKSCC (57,378) (16,742)
JEME B RS Net amount due from HKSCC 114,755 89,160

(2) RFREERHERBEMBRRARA
HECTRMEERAE

BEFERELH

AEEERARERIHFIVARFEEEL
B UREEERR - FREEEBHRRE  —8B
HRENEN  ESIRRBIHTFZRTKKS

BerRIt MAERRFEARHSRFHREE -
WIFRERNEMN  IARHF IR G NEE
BER—RIGEMBINKTPEHIHEERAE -

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets
and liabilities in the statement of financial position.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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4. sRIEEHESENEHE@® 44, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(Z) SERFEZHERBEEMBERRRA (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
HvemEEREBE@ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
AE R H AR AL 2 (1) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
TRIREXEH  BEAER N2 BB FHREER The following tables present details of financial instruments subject
FRERBEMORNESR T A - to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements.
et GEEHBERRZA
HRER et HEvEBLHE
SRS (S Related amounts not set
eRAmeE Arzem  Offinthestaementof RER Tk
Gross EEEE financial position BEET
amounts of Net amounts SRIA ZFE
CBRER™  recognised  offinancial  (BEFERE BN
EESE financial assets ERR) 248
Gross liabilities set  presented Financial Amounts not
amountsof  offinthe inthe instruments BKRLEH subject to
recognised  statement  statement  (including Cash enforceable
financial  of financial  of financial non-cash collateral B netting 4%
2020512A318 At 31 December 2020 assets position position  collateral) received Netamount agreements Total
SREE Financial assets
TESBTIA Derivative financial instruments 955,385 - 955,385 (690,911) (244,637) 19,837 180,429 1,135,814
REt YREFBRRRA
wREn  pamn  BEZERSR
SRS RER Related amounts not set
smEESE  Arzem  Offinthe sttement FERAE
Gross aEEE of financial position BEET
amounts of Net amounts SRIA AL
BEA4E  recognised  offinancial (E#EFHS FHEhE
%% financial  liabilities ERR) &%
Gross assets setoff  presented Financial cE# Amounts not
amounts of in the inthe  instruments ReER subject to
recognised  statement  statement  (including Cash enforceable
financial  of financial  of financial non-cash collateral B netting &t
2020%12A31R At 31 December 2020 liabilities position position  collateral)  placed out  Netamount agreements Total
eRERE Financial liabilities
BIER Deposits from banks 762,285 - 762,285 (762,285) - - 2738157 3,500,442
TESRTIA Derivative financial Instruments 2,985,107 - 2,985,107 (690,911)  (2,260,539) 33,657 206,081 3,191,188
BEEERENAR Trading liabilties 1,570,675 - 1570675  (1,570,675) - - - 1,570,675
Hinfk B kR Other accounts and accruals 490,959 - 490,959 (490,959) - - 6544829  7,035788
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44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)

44, cRIEEHBBENHEE@

(2) SREEERFEREETHERARA (b)
HifceMEERERE @

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

AR FEAEE T m) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
BT VEEHHRARA
o B HHZEESR
HiS BT UrpE Related amounts not set
cmafen  Jmzem  off inthestatementof T RARKE
Goss ~ AEFH e T 73 B
amountsof Netamounts ~ &BIE A £
B#ASR  recognised  offinancial (BIEIEES FHE R
RESH financial assets B kx|
Gross liabilities set  presented Financial Amounts not
amountsof  offinthe inthe  instruments B4R &I subject to
recognised ~ statement  statement (including Cash enforceable
financial  of financial  of financial non-cash collateral A8 netting =
2019F12A31H At 31 December 2019 assets position position collateral) received  Netamount — agreements Total
tRAE Financial assets
fEERIA Derivative financial instruments 470,924 - 470,924 (360,311) (89,227) 21,386 96,892 567,816
REM et HEEHEE
v Ak Upp ey Related amounts not set
$REESE jinzeg  Ofinthestement Ry RATHE
Goss ~ Rfgg _ offnancia posiion AT
amountsof Netamounts — £BIA L3
BEASE  recognised  offinancial (BEIEEE SR
BEME  financial  liabilities ) Pk
Gross assetssetoff  presented Financial ~BEfHE Amounts not
amounts of in the inthe  instruments il subject to
recognised  statement  statement (including Cash enforceable
financial  of financial  of financial  non-cash  collateral et netting At
2019%12R31H At 31 December 2019 liabilities position position collateral)  placedout  Netamount — agreements Total
SBAR Financial liabilities
BIER Deposits from banks 371,153 - 371,153 (371,159) - - 2093916 2465069
fTEERIE Derivative financial instruments 1,050,009 - 1,050,009 (360,311) (665,051) 24,647 43,019 1,093,028
BEBERENARE Trading liabilities 5,516,558 - 5516558  (3,914,155) - 1,602,403 - 5516558
HftfRA kR Other accounts and accruals 300,000 - 300,000 (300,000) - - 10505338 10,805,338

RFRITERAF] 2020F F#H
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45, REMB 2 TAREE

R2020F12 A - EERITEMER EEFHFR
SETETE R ARBITARNEZ ([ EERITA
RETNEREFRBZILAEEEREEZESIE -1
202012 A30H ' EFRITHE LS HHRMIHBT
BRI EREAE  BUABRARE10.8308%
71347,450,534 R ARR - EERIT AR ZEHITH
202152 A¥I5ERK - 202162 A58 £ ° B8
EERIRITAREITTKE - NEBEAEERT
HIHERS © 12020912 531 HEY14.66% &=
202142 A5H#E#)13.20% °

ERAEEESEERTNESTEARIRAR @ [
FraE 2 EARRE AR KBIE - MIAKRBRNEERTT
Pl et et — B AR R B & R Rl 2 R E W WA es
EAtE - BERRITABBEITRISEE TR -

EAREB2021 FHV B HE - HE TRNEE
RITARET - RASER202142 A5AEEE
B ERITIRE AR IR D B0 M0 - AR AR EE
ERRTHREETHOLEZTAGE - AR
TR ERRITARETE  ERRTNERFE
EBEEM TR  WEAAEREREEEERL
31,000,000/ 7T ) (&1 -
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45. NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

BOCQ announced in December 2020 that it had received approval of
the China Securities Regulatory Commission in respect of its proposed
initial public offering of A Shares for listing on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (the “BOCQ A Share Issue”). BOCQ further announced on
30 December 2020 that following the completion of preliminary price
consultations with the market, it was going to issue 347,450,534 A
Shares at the issue price of RMB10.83 per share. The issue of new A
Shares was completed as of early February 2021, with the listing of
BOCQ A Shares on 5 February 2021. With the completion of the BOCQ
A Share Issue, this has the effect of reducing the Group’s interest in
BOCQ from 14.66% as at 31 December 2020 to 13.20% commencing
5 February 2021.

The Group’s interest in BOCQ has been accounted for as an associate
using the equity method as the Group has representation in the Board
of BOCQ, and the ability to participate in the decision making process.
This remains the case after the completion of the BOCQ A Share Issue.

The completion of the BOCQ A Share Issue and the corresponding
reduction in the Group’s shareholding in BOCQ on 5 February 2021
will be accounted for as a deemed partial disposal of the Group’s
investment in BOCQ in the Group’s 2021 financial statements, and
is expected to bring about a disposal loss of approximately HK$31
million mainly because of the lowering in the net asset value per share
of BOCQ immediately after the completion of the BOCQ A Share Issue.
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The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

20204 20194
12A31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

BARF L Capital adequacy ratio
—EBRE—R - Common Equity Tier 1 13.8% 13.4%
——R — Tier 1 14.3% 13.9%
— BB — Total 17.6% 17.9%

202012 A31H &2019F 12 A1 B 2 E A7 B
L& Ty ARRITEV AR S MR (BIERFIEERITRA
FTERTT (R B ) IRECGRITE (B RADHEER
WEN ERMAFE - ZBEAT L ENFEEE
B 5 R B AR E R

ZIKﬁEﬁ7,%%7%EEH%%ETT;JE%FE%%EH%1l7n<1§|J
BITEATREERFEENR - RMPIEFRITAE
STARPFIRITEEENRERKRTRIT(PE)
BETERPBESRITREERRE

RTEECRITEGRE)RAD)  FRREEEESR
AN B A AR R BE 2 BINE R B FIE R AR T 4
H http://www.dahsing.com @ I A] &8 A T & 1 &
# : http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/
regulatory_disclosures.html # A °

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019 represents the consolidated position of the Bank (covering BCM
and DSB China) computed on Basel |l basis in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into account
market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to
the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and
DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital
and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website at
http://www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.

KFRITAR AR 2020F F
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2. 1ERtE=E 2. LEVERAGE RATIO

20204 20194

12A31H 12H31H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

AR = Leverage ratio 9.4% 8.9%

ERTIARBITZHEERNZ LR R IRERTT L
RZERGAERHE -

REECIRITE(RE) RA)  FHEAEER
BREEZBNEREHFIRARTHEE
http://www.dahsing.com i A] 4% LA N & # &

4+
Il

% ' http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/

regulatory_disclosures.html#E A °

The above ratios represent the consolidated position of the Bank and
are computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital adequacy
ratio.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules, additional information relating to the Group’s leverage ratio is
published in the Bank’s website at http://www.dahsing.com and is
accessible at the following direct link: http://www.dahsing.com/html/
en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.

3. MEMMIEHER 3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO
2020 2019
BN EHERS L Liquidity maintenance ratio 47.8% 46.4%

MBI R R Ty AIRTT (BIRRFIRERIT XA
FriRIT (R ED)) R BREEESER ANFHEAR
PEER L RN E PR o MBI LLETD
REBCGRITEORBE) RADE -

RIRTTRBBEMRITARBETBRITREE
STREMEEKERRK - RFIEHRRITAETH
BRFIRITREEETNRE RAHRIT(HE)AE
AP BRITREEHRE o

230

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average consolidated LMR of the Bank (covering BCM and DSB China)
for the financial year. The LMR is computed in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM
is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is subject to
China banking regulations.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2020 and the
corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The net position is calculated in the
basis of the delta-weighted position of all foreign currency option

Ho contracts.
Hfthhs INESFT
JBLPY Other Total
E AR¥ Macau foreign foreign
2020%12831H At 31 December 2020 US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
HERBEST Equivalent in HK$ millions
RERE Spot assets 75,606 17,846 9,931 7,825 111,208
HEaE Spot liabilities (563,937) (16,796) (11,453) (8,594) (90,780)
REIE A Forward purchases 21,686 12,044 - 3,113 36,843
REBE W Forward sales (42,823) (12,993) - (2,352) (58,168)
HiEEE Net options position = - - - _
&/ (R)®F8 Net long/(short) position 532 101 (1,522 )] (897)
H AN SNEEET
ol Other Total
% AR Macau foreign foreign
201912 A31H At 31 December 2019 US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
AEREEET Equivalent in HK$ millions
BEEE Spot assets 68,058 17,066 11,730 9,331 106,185
BEEE Spot liabilities (48,362) (15,453) (11,963) (8,965) (84,743)
REIE A Forward purchases 38,334 20,312 = 3,906 62,552
EREN Forward sales (57,101) (21,638) - (4,347) (83,086)
HiRE 55 Net options position (40) - _ 40 _
’/(R)&F8E Net long/(short) position 889 287 (233) (35) 908
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5. EBEEKEGFEZEIINDNT 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND

EXPOSURES

(R) BT B2 EFERBBEUNERA (@)
BOERUZERRRENEI LS

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed

) by percentage covered by collateral
20205124311 2019%12A31H
At 31 December 2020 At 31 December 2019
EXAE Ees
ZEARRE E%ﬁﬁ#ﬁuu%@
AR ZADE
% of gross % of gross
REBELH advances REBES advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral balance by collateral
EERERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
T Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEEE - Property development 5,611,830 66.5 4,700,618 64.6
—MERE - Property investment 17,221,674 92.4 15,972,169 97.0
—SRhE - Financial concerns 5,756,814 5.8 6,057,400 3.0
—RELL - Stockbrokers 1,733,867 46.7 1,585,717 28.6
—HEETEL - Wholesale and retail trade 6,004,660 90.4 6,455,795 90.1
— Bl - Manufacturing 1,790,941 56.4 1,978,378 59.5
— B NERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,512,559 80.1 3,496,770 71.9
—F4EH) - Recreational activities 96,223 99.6 103,724 99.8
— &R - Information technology 51,827 86.5 52,976 705
—Hft - Others 6,003,396 68.4 4,464,895 79.6
46,783,791 71.6 44,868,442 72.1
@A Individuals
-BE[EEEEEME] - Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FLAZ2REERE R Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[HEBHEEIIBFER Sector Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 558,428 100.0 584,349 100.0
-BEEMEENEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 31,260,619 100.0 29,864,112 100.0
—EHREH - Credit card advances 3,610,141 - 3,761,021 -
—Hfty - Others 13,079,682 51.6 13,196,910 52.8
48,508,870 79.5 47,406,392 78.9
EEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 95,292,661 75.6 92,274,834 75.6
Z5/E (1) Trade finance (Note (1) 8,115,481 61.5 8,815,573 62.9
EEBIMERNER () Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 34,170,432 63.7 35,858,064 66.0
137,578,574 718 136,948,471 723
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5. EERERBEZEIMD @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

() RTEPBEZ2EFEREH(UERHA (@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZoERUSEARRENBES LS classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

(Ea Note:

(1) LI RZEIRMERSLERBSERELZME (1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
FESImMAEATSED  HAMEBOMNEE - imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and
NEREREIMEZT 2 ER merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines

issued by the HKMA.

THEREBZBSHBMEER(BIERRITZEBINR Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade finance
THB AR T 2B 5RE ) #18260,328,0007% extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank) totalling
JC(2019412 A31H : 294,310,000/ 7T ) 7 $8 7 HK$260,328,000 (31 December 2019: HK$294,310,000) are classified
[ERBIMEANERIET - under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

@ HEEAEMIMEANERBERTEAERPEESR (2)  Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
BLAIMER 2 B ° located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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5. EERERBEZEIMIMD @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND

EXPOSURES (Continued)
() RIT¥DEZEFERBBE(UERA (@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZPERUZEARRENBE LD classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
1) (@0 by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

MANTHSERE P ERLTE10%3 A E/TT For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting

¥ HEEREERRE  aHERE - BFER3- & 10% or more of the total balance of advances to customers, the

FEER1 M ER2EFUREEFE T ¢ attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, Stage 3, and

Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances are as follows:

EXAT
BEREE BB R ER2
HEER EiB3fE A PR ER3 HEEE
(B ER3) Gross WEEE Stage1and
KEBLEH Impaired advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding loans  overdue for  impairment impairment
2020%12A31H At 31 December 2020 balance (Stage 3) over 3 months allowances allowances
EBEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEem Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment 17,221,674 59,373 41,590 4,705 95,584
EA Individuals
-BEEMAEE - Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 31,260,619 62,747 92,630 7,826 40,076
TERBIMERBER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 34,170,432 520,305 400,017 187,244 154,835
EEs
BRRER PR B Ik ER2
REER iE3(EA PEER3 REER
(FEER3) Gross WEEE  Stage 1and
REREH Impaired advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding loans overdue for impairment impairment
2019412 A431H At 31 December 2019 balance (Stage 3) over 3 months allowances allowances
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEsa Industrial, commercial and financial
-MERE - Property investment 15,972,169 45,985 44,910 4,721 79,461
fAA Individuals
-BEHEMEE - Loans for the purchase of other
MEEN residential properties 29,864,112 44,204 33,772 7,537 21,934
EEBMIMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 35,858,064 256,544 373,852 129,588 131,693
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5. ERERSEZRIDT@ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)
(Z) HHhBREXEEHEREE (b) Mainland activities exposures
RBEESERCRITEKE)RA) - LATEF The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the

BAEXBNRBZOMNH2REELERY P
B RPE TS R RER P AT 2 FERITRRZH TR

categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

AN EEEREREBIEN DS Hbh A aE AR with reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which
TRE Wiﬁzﬁﬁﬁ Pt A Bl T 2 FR B K RE S 75 Y includes the Mainland activities exposures extended by the Bank and
BREE o its Mainland subsidiary bank only.
BEGERA BEEEER)
HIEhEE HIEhEE
On-balance Off-balance k]
2020 2020 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. PRS- RREfTEBRME 1. Central government, central government-
KEMBARMEE owned entities and their subsidiaries and
RAR([GER7A) joint ventures (“JV”s) 9,723,405 124,954 9,848,359
2 M EIT - BB ESRKE 2. Local governments, local government-owned
REHBARMAEE R entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 1,405,599 274,501 1,680,100
3. BEEFREMMBRS 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
TEHR B A P A ) L AR other entities incorporated in Mainland China
HEARNAERH and their subsidiaries and JVs 12,076,834 1,745,392 13,822,226
4 XBELME—BER2FARE 4. Other entities of central government not
fRE s reported in item 1 above 2,221,324 36,918 2,258,242
5. RABELME-IB2H AT 5. Other entities of local governments not
FFE reported in item 2 above 1,609,556 283,753 1,893,309
6. EEEFEMNMMIN2BERSE 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
BRI AN L BOHERE -+ T or entities incorporated outside Mainland
W RE SRR Bl A China where the credits are granted for use
in Mainland China 11,647,569 592,157 12,239,726
7. EMRSETF - HEEHAEY 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
B RREIERI TR P RIBAE considered to be non-bank Mainland China
exposures 1,100,005 - 1,100,005
39,784,292 3,057,675 42,841,967
AT REAMBITHEARZ Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
MR BRERCEERR subsidiary bank after provision 230,973,725
BEBBRANSBIEEEST  On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
B total assets 17.92%
i Note:

L2 RBBEEERTFERERELE

o

HEFPREZS

balances of claims on the customers.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§

The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and other
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5. EERERBEZEIMIMD @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(Z) BB RPE A EREE (8 (b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)
BEBREXA BEBERD
igfo HIRAEE
On-balance Off-balance e
20194 2019 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. PRI - RREfFEBRME 1. Central government, central government-
REKBARMNAELAR owned entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 10,376,553 501,429 10,877,982
2 M EE - A RKE 2. Local governments, local government-owned
REKBARNEEAR entities and their subsidiaries and JVs 1,075,406 323,331 1,398,737
3. BEETEA BER%AFE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
PR S R E RS R EL S other entities incorporated in Mainland China
ARMEE DT and their subsidiaries and JVs 183,873,770 1,310,785 15,184,555
4 XBHELME—AER PRI 4. Other entities of central government not
FTEE s reported in item 1 above 2,397,774 49,341 2,447,115
5 RBELME_HEHF 20 5. Other entities of local governments not
& E ke reported in item 2 above 1,039,800 290,552 1,330,352
6. BEEFEAMUIN2BERSE 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
BRI AN L OHERE + T or entities incorporated outside Mainland
W R R SR Bl it China where the credits are granted for use
in Mainland China 11,912,699 405,440 12,318,139
7. B R FHTF - ERBWEES 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
FE AR RITIRR P HIEAEE considered to be non-bank Mainland China
exposures 1,329,873 - 1,329,873
42,005,875 2,880,878 44,886,753
ABRITRENMRTERE Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
ZMBREEE CEERR subsidiary bank after provision 224,615,205
BEABRANGE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
MEEGT AL total assets 18.70%
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5. EERERBEZEIMD @ 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)
(A) RESSMZEFERBERANEN (c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
loans by geographical area
BEFERZEESTIHRED ZREKREBE 2 Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
RGEFMERDE - — M E + BERHOER to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
FHERZSHFNR 2 @I - BRI ER - transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is

guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of
the counterparty.

TRARFPERERE REZFER(BESI) & The following table analyses gross advances to customers, impaired
HIRPER « BEER3 - RIS LB R2BEEFHIR advances to customers (Stage 3), overdue advances to customers,
[RIHHHT © Stage 3, and Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances by

geographical area.

HEEFER LY

(P&Fx3) PEEr3 HE%ER

EFENAE Impaired  EHiIEFEHK HE%HE Stage1and

Gross  advances to Overdue Stage 3 Stage 2

advances customers  advances to impairment impairment

2020F12H31H At 31 December 2020 to customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
B Hong Kong 115,234,954 1,239,712 600,421 467,445 595,174
H China 7,630,058 63,294 28,269 1,119 50,382
RF Macau 13,687,338 270,797 270,797 87,944 42,121
Hit Others 1,026,224 - 3,315 - 6,979
137,578,574 1,573,803 902,802 556,508 694,656

HEZPER )

(B&£R3) REER3 R EAER

REER @ Impaired  BHARFER WEEE  Stage 1and

Gross  advances to Overdue Stage 3 Stage 2

advances customers advances impairment impairment

20194124318 At 31 December 2019 to customers (Stage 3)  to customers allowances allowances
B Hong Kong 113,233,394 933,795 500,123 355,400 548,920
H China 7,940,270 64,274 64,274 11,496 50,993
RF Macau 14,802,077 46,036 177,735 13,308 22,908
Hit Others 972,730 5,121 7,549 993 4,568
136,948,471 1,049,226 749,681 381,197 627,389
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a» @ a» @

5. EEREREZBEIDH @

(T) EIFR{EHRE

BREREHREZRARNERR  RIEX
HFNAMEBMEEHSINERI S HFREK EQE’]
R —RME  EXZEFNEEEHETR
BRNZ—TER  XETEES —RRTHE
31T > MERBRERTRNBER - 1 E8%R
RRA—BEREEES—BR - L5 REMRA
ZEBEBRE - RBBKBEREEETE10%A
EZRIETIEHIE -

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (Continued)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are

disclosed.
FRITRARE
Non-bank private sector

kem

FER1T FAAKE

SREME Non-

ER#E Non-bank financial
20205124310 At 31 December 2020 #®1T Official financial private ERAE
BEER In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
BERA D Offshore centres 6,928 15,016 6,727 143,869 172,540
—Hi1 BE — of which: Hong Kong 6,441 13,595 6,727 128,137 154,900
FRADAR Developing Asia and Pacific 27,306 1,060 880 17,681 46,927
—He: e - of which: Mainland China 19,036 894 526 14,159 34,615

FERITAAKIE
Non-bank private sector

ke

JEIRIT TS

SRE Non-

B Non-bank financial
20195124318 At 31 December 2019 AT Official financial private (B
BEBT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
BEEA L Offshore centres 5,309 19,518 10,501 135,768 171,096
—Hi EB - of which: Hong Kong 4,560 17,167 10,500 119,445 151,672
ERATAR Developing Asia and Pacific 28,110 1,377 877 16,492 46,856
—He:p - of which: Mainland China 20,533 1,297 524 18,277 35,631
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B B EN RS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to
228, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§

239



B BN RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

a® a® a» (1 J a» a® a® a® a® a® a»
a® (1 4 a® a® a® a® a® a®
QQQ-Q mm@m Qm-m mmm-m wmm-w
ERNER BASIS FOR OPINION

240

BPCRBEEESHMASRMAN(EEEE
ANETTER - RAERSETAENEEEE
RBEZBEET AV BREBEAENT
E BB i — SRt

HFIHEE - HPPMESHBRBRERET R E
AR FIMES B RIRHERE -

ok

By
REFBSMAGEMACEXSTENERT

ADCUATRERE TR - BPPBIRN BEEE - I
EETTARMEMERERERE -
FARETEE

FRET FHERBRMANFEEHE - RAHAN

MM BHREANEITR/ERNEH - 5LF
ARAERMEFTBERFAMBHERRLAZRR
EITRER - BT SHELEHREHEBNE
B

BAIEET BRI MR E FEMEL T

s  EFERKREIRE

o  HEENF-ZERIT(EERTHOKRE
B

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment of loans and advances to customers
° Impairment of the investment in an associate, Bank of Chongqing
(HBOCQH)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Refer to notes 4(a) and 20 to the consolidated ~ We tested key controls in relation to:

financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
loan impairment allowance of HK$486,431
thousand, HK$208,225 thousand and
HK$556,508 thousand for stage 1, 2 and 3
respectively, against the total loan portfolio of
HK$137,578,574 thousand.

The balances of impairment allowance for
loans and advances to customers represent
the management’s estimates at the balance
sheet date of Expected Credit Losses (“ECL")
under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
9. Its application is considered as a complex
process and requires considerable judgements
and interpretation.

The determination of ECL for 2020 has been
more challenging following the volatility in the
macro-economic environment as a result of
COVID-19.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of
the measurement of ECL include:

o Applicability of ECL models under
COVID-19 and appropriateness of
key measurement parameters and
assumptions;

o (riteria for determining whether or not
there was a significant increase in credit
risk (“SICR”), or a default or impairment
loss was incurred;

o Determination of macro-economic
forecasts, and the application of
economic scenarios and weightings;

o The estimated future cash flows for loans
and advances to customers in stage 3;
and

o Appropriateness of management overlays
applied.

Management’s oversight and governance
process over the applicability of the
ECL models, supportability of significant
management judgements such as staging
and macro-economic forecasts and
their related probability weightings, and
appropriateness of management overlays
applied;

Management’s assessment of the credit
quality of the Bank’s borrowers, including
the performance of ad-hoc thematic reviews
of borrowers in industries impacted by
COVID-19;

Timely identification, assessment and
reporting of non-performing loans and
advances to customers; and

The accuracy and completeness of the
key data inputs between underlying source
systems and the impairment models.

In addition to testing the key controls, we have
also performed the following procedures:

With the support of our internal modelling
specialists, we reviewed the reasonableness
of modelling methodologies for ECL
calculation and significant management
judgements and assumptions, with
consideration of the implications of
COVID-19. We also assessed the
supportability of the management overlays
applied;

We assessed management’s analysis in
determining the macro-economic forecasts
and challenged the reasonableness of
the weightings of each scenario. We
also independently reviewed the macro-
economic forecasts by comparing them
to available public information, along with
taking the latest developments of COVID-19
into considerations;

AFERITHAR AT 2020F F 3§
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

Impairment of loans and advances to
customers is an audit focus due to the
materiality of the balances and the underlying
calculations being subject to significant
judgement of management.

We critically assessed the key assumptions
and inputs in management’s credit reviews
and evaluated the reasonableness of the
assigned credit risk ratings for a selected
sample of loans, with attention on borrowers
from industries impacted by COVID-19. We
further assessed the appropriateness of
the management’s identification of SICR,
defaulted and credit- impaired loans, in
consideration of the financial information and
non-financial information of the borrowers,
relevant external evidence and other factors;
and

For a sample of stage 3 loans, we assessed
whether key management judgements
were appropriate given the borrowers’
circumstances and tested key inputs to the
impairment calculation such as valuation of
collateral held and estimated future cash flow
from borrowers.

Based on the procedures performed, we

considered the model methodology, significant
judgements and assumptions adopted by

management were reasonable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of the investment in an associate, Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

Refer to notes 4(f) and 23 to the consolidated We have performed the following procedures in

financial statements.

The Group’s investment in BOCQ is accounted
for as an associate, using the equity method.
The Group carried the investment in BOCQ of
HK$4,277,927 thousand as at 31 December
2020, after making a provision for impairment
of HK$2,266,000 thousand as at year end.
The impairment loss charged for the year is
HK$531,000 thousand.

Management identified the carrying value of
the investment is higher than the market value
of BOCQ which is considered an indicator
of impairment. Management performed an
impairment assessment and assessed that
the recoverable amount of the investment in
BOCQ was lower than its carrying value. The
recoverable amount was measured as value-in-
use (“VIU”) estimate calculated by discounted
cash flow model.

Impairment of the investment in BOCQ is an
audit focus because the estimation of the
recoverable amount is subject to high degree
of estimation uncertainty. The inherent risk
in relation to the impairment assessment of
investment in BOCQ is considered significant
due to subjectivity of management judgements
and assumptions used in developing the
estimate.

relation to the assessment of impairment of the
investment in BOCQ:

. We obtained an understanding of
the impairment assessment and the
processes applied by management with
respect to the determination of the VIU of
the investment in BOCQ;

. We evaluated the appropriateness of the
valuation model used by the management;

. We challenged and assessed the
reasonableness of key assumptions
and inputs used by the management,
including the discount rate, profit growth
rate and price-to-book ratio, based
on relevant supporting evidence (with
reference to market information and third
party sources, including analyst reports)
and our knowledge of the business and
industry; and

. We performed scenario analysis and
developed our range of VIU estimates,
by using independent inputs and
assumptions, and compared with the
management’s estimates.

Based on the above, we considered that
management’s judgements and assumptions
applied in the impairment assessment of the
investment in BOCQ were reasonable.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Corporate Information, Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Profile, Report of the Directors, Directors of Subsidiaries and Lists of
Branches (but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, and the Unaudited Supplementary Financial
Information, which is expected to be made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information,
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Sin Bun, Benson.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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BEBEDIT

Hong Kong Island Branches

BEBF2T
Aberdeen

SEBERLAMT
Admiralty Centre

SR 21T

Causeway Bay

FER1T
Central
BEWLDT
Fortress Hill

ERRERDT

Queen’s Road East

BE D 1T
Happy Valley

BT
Heng Fa Chuen

HEBEHIT
Johnston Road
tADIT

North Point
LEEDIT
Shaukiwan
BEHEDT
Shek Tong Tsui
FBRA1T
Sheung Wan
REBDIT
Taikoo Shing

EBFROESE =M E

Shop 1, G/F and Portion of the Basement of Site 3,
Aberdeen Centre

BERB185E E R OIS —E 1054

Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road

SRS E ST B R T8 4685 LB R A Ot T Kt E

G/F and Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre,

No. 468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay

EE B9 R R E M TASR
Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central

b A 5 2 56293-2995 i = A E 3 T~ 15-225% # K ith B
Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments,
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

B ERANBR248F AR TR LI TG7, GTAKG8IR

Shop No. G7, G7A & G8, Ground Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai
MRS A 13R G AEM AT

Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street,
Happy Valley

S E R 10058 AAE ER A TE #1218 234-235 5 &
Shop Units 234-235, 2/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall,
100 Shing Tai Road, Chai Wan

BT T BEE16458

164, Johnston Road, Wanchai
HE2IEA33-43THRE A E

Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road

G EEST-8T I AR IE M T GBS

Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road
E /5 KiE75443-45357 1 T 15-165% 40

Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West

ERIBEE 2885 B FE A E M T B2t fHE —EBE
G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan

BERA S AREE 528 & 501554
Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing Road &
No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing

2554 5463

2529 1338

2891 2201

2521 8134

2922 3389

2507 8866

2572 0708

2558 7485

2572 8849

2561 8241

2568 5271

2857 7473

2851 6281

2884 4802

2554 0843

31102818

2591 6037

2526 9427

2887 7604

2598 5300

2572 0718

2889 2520

2891 3743

2811 4474

2567 5904

2108 4539

2581 2216

2884 3151

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



DT

LISTS OF BRANCHES

NEEDTT
Kowloon Branches
REH DT

Shing Yip Street

AW DT
Hunghom

EBDAT

Jordan

BEDT

Kwun Tong

EZHWPHT
Mei Foo Sun
Chuen

RADT
Mongkok
RYEAT
Cheung Sha Wan
EREES 1T
Telford Gardens
TINED1T
Tokwawan
HERDIT
Tseung Kwan O
5 BB
FEBRODIT
Tseung Kwan O
Metro City Plaza

BEST
LOHAS Park

RPBHT
Tsimshatsui
EARLDT
Wong Tai Sin
SRRt 21T
Yaumatei

BB 1090 TASE

Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong

AT R H 152858 & [ Rt T3 R 45k f 11825 0 R 21E 35k 4
Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop
No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

R BB 33555

335 Nathan Road, Jordan

Bl R EEASTRE RO T 7-955 4

Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road,
Kwun Tong

FEF B A AR 8 10AH TN26E M55 &8
Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

AT /4R 2B 697 5%

697 Nathan Road, Mongkok

R E B89 Ot T 1557 &

Shop 1, G/F, CRE Centre, 889 Cheung Sha Wan Road
BEE R RS — I —IEF5A-FBASR

Units F5A-FBA, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay

T I E245B 24757 < S 21 T
G/F, Mei King Mansion, Phase Il, No. 245B and 247 Tokwawan Road

18 BB = £ 47955 PopCorn B35t T [E G585 74
Shop G58, G/F, PopCorn, 9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O
145 ®MCP Discovery—1£1275% 4

Shop 127, Level 1, MCP Discovery, Tseung Kwan O

5 BB R PR 15 The LOHAS R 4124145748
Shop Unit 414, Level 4, The LOHAS, 1 Lohas Park Road,
Tseung Kwan O

LR BEEE6-705R & A E
Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui

F|mAME AT O E 8 T G3CH M
Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Temple Mall South, Wong Tai Sin

YR T SR FE 56157
561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei

2191 8103

2365 8110

2385 0161

2389 3911

2370 2660

2394 4261

2361 0951

2927 4130

2365 9035

2752 1223

2927 2101

2838 2023

2366 9121

2326 5165

2782 1339

2191 8723

2363 5917

2782 0993

2389 8239

2370 2006

2391 9104

2958 0985

2755 4967

2363 5696

2752 1098

2702 2305

2719 6373

2311 1491

2350 0894

2385 9285
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HREST
New Territories Branches

BENT

Kwai Fong

BRILESS1T
Ma On Shan Plaza

BEXREDIT
Maritime Square
Bl 51T
Ocean Walk
PHST

Shatin
WIHES T

Sha Tsui Road

EkaeT
Sheung Shui

RERIT
Tai Po

KE ST
Tai Wai

KKBEAIT
Tin Shui Wai

2EIT
Tsuen Wan
B AIT

Tuen Mun

FRDAT
Tung Chung

BEST

Fanling

B ILEDTT
Yuen Long Castle
Peak Road

35 B RR1785% S N 2554

Shop 2, G/F, Edition 178, 178 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung
FSEL TR F86085% 534 L1 535 = 1233557 &

Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road,
Ma On Shan

B BRI 3355 5 738108 D-E5f &

Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi
TH P9 )93 3R 55 168-236 5% /& 1 11 2 93-9555% 4

Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun
7 HE A R0 R 95 Al

Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin

YD IH 18286-2885 1 T

G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan

KT 2K 55-595% JKRUIE M T BSR &

Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui
NI LRI SR AN EI5 1h T-535% K 5455 48

Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po
D HAEIE55-5657 B IR E14-185% EEEH T 1 X257 i
Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden,

14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
ROKERIFET35E R ARS8 KA 5 112 L1205k 4

Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre,

Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai
EEATE14-1655EHAE

Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan

T PI4%0 5 & 1852-625% & 1 18 3 T 4558 K557 4

Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion,

52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road

R L BROM B R AT 1 5% SRR B 3t TS 23557 47

Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

#48 B MK 88SR E D IS TA11-A14 5 110-1125%

Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza,
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

TLEAS L AR T EAER 162-1685k B S AE i N CoR 4

Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long

2487 8033

2929 4137

2435 1368

2404 6931

2606 3533

2615 1510

2671 5030

2667 2588

2691 1272

2448 9008

2492 8102

2441 6218

2109 3484

2677 8830

2479 4555

2489 1253

2633 3432

2435 1582

2404 7130

2601 2413

2615 1099

2672 1533

2664 3637

2606 1531

2448 9112

2415 0984

2441 6613

2109 4353

2669 9950

2479 4522
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DITAMR (MEET)
LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

417 Branch

ik Address

B 21T

Macau Branches
RERLT

Main Branch
REDT
Almirante Lacerda

HEDIT

lao Hon

BENT
Kin Wa

BFRT 21T
La Cite
BT
Mercadores
EBH1T
Nape

BHih 51T

Palha

FITODTT

Ponte e Horta
DREH
Ribeira do Patane

AT
Toi San

st SEHD T

Pedro Coutinho

&R S RE57255%
Avenida da Praia Grande, 572

5 LE I 2 B K RS B8 43-B 5k

Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43-B

HOEFT 58 — 465X TR AE (S — Hl)itb TACEE

Rua Um Bairro lao Hon No. 45, Industrial Yau Seng (Fase I) R/C AC

BIRGIE B IR245 BRI 13 TARE
Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, No. 24, Edificio Kin Wa,
Bloco 13 R/C A

2 PIRPH1230-2385R B F K T U » VEE

Rua Central da Areia Preta No. 230-238, R/C U e R/C V
I A FTA05R 1 FARE

Rua dos Mercadores No. 40 R/C A

RE 4 E 5363 EL TR Lt O/

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Asumpgao, No. 363,

Edificio Hot Line, R/C O

B H i 45 TARE

Rua da Palha, No. 4, R/C A

AT 2957 3t N FAE
Praga Ponte e Horta, No. 29, R/C F

B =T H & 47402557 1 AL

Rua Visconde de Pago d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C A

BILERA S E T —EFR MR 518 H FCCRE
Rua Onze Barrio Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,

Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C CC

=i S 14525-D5k & 2 i T B4

Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, R/C B

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 2831 6191

(853) 2837 8262

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 2822 8380

(853) 2857 2610

(853) 2872 2515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 2837 8704

(853) 2895 2942

(853) 2823 8483

(853) 2821 6523

BHEEDTT

Taipa Branch
RFERD T
Prince Flower City

BRI AR FIEW — BRI T IR

Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

BREST

Coloane Branch

BT
Coloane

HRIRE SR 797 1 TN DR
Largo do Matadouro No. 7, R/C D, Coloane

(853) 2888 2374

AFTRITAR AT 20205F F 3,
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BT
Head Office

FINACEXRT
Shenzhen Qianhai
Sub-Branch

BEMND1T

Guangzhou

EE51T
Shanghai

MEATT
Nanchang
EIDAT
Zhenjiang
HL=AT

Foshan Sub-Branch

FRIIT 78 A A R AT 38 R R SR B 50165k R 100K EARE 1512

15/F, Tower A, Kingkey 100 Building, No. 5016 Shennan Road East,

Guiyuan Street, Luohu District, Shenzhen

AT L e B T3k 2 Mg 8250 (JL R )4- 74812123
Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North),
Industrial Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

EREEMT SR ARILEE604-250 K FTER1TAIE1EM2/E01 8T
Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604-2,

North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
BT O & R K4 50155 _£/8 B R &5 15/E06, 075 T
Room 06 & 07, 15th Floor, Sinar Mas Plaza,

No. 501 Dong Da Ming Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai
IFEEEmENEEILEK1365%1-2/8

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi
TLERA LT R O =B REE 5958

59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu

BRAH LTREE NSRRI EE IR E LA

111148 ~ 12048

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,

Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-755) 2519 9033

(86-755) 2519 9033

(86-20) 8116 0888

(86-21) 5598 7000

(86-791) 8688 7333

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Paper from responsible sources
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Dah Sing Bank, Limited X#ETHERAF

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
BBBFERRKEBER2485F AF R +H 12612

Telephone ZE&E ' (852) 2507 8866

Facsimile  f8E :(852) 2598 5052

Website  #84t : www.dahsing:com
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